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LETTER OF
TRANSMITTAL

Hon’ble Shareholders

Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms, Bangladesh
Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited

Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited

Sub : Annual Report-2024

Dear Sir(s),

Enclosed please find the Annual Report of Aftab Automobiles Limited together with the
consolidated Audited Financial Statements comprising of Statement of Financial Position,
Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity
and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30 June 2024 alongwith notes there on for your
kind information.

Sincerely yours,
On behalf of Aftab Automobiles Limited

Robt Fobmind

(Rahat Mahmud)
Company Secretary
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Corporate
Chronicles

Nature of Business: Aftab Automobiles Limited is mainly a vehicle assembler and
bus-body fabricator. It has been successfully assembling TOYOTA & HINO vehicles for
Bangladesh market since 1982. The principal activities of the Company are assembling of
Toyota Land Cruiser soft top/ Pick-up, Land Cruiser Prado, Hino Bus, Hino Mini Bus/Truck
with a yearly production capacity of 2400 units of vehicles in 3 shifts.

Presently, the Company is mainly engaged in assembling of Hino Bus Chasis and Bus body
fabrication of HINO Bus including luxury bus. HINO buses are widely operated in all the
routes of the country. HINO luxury buses are also plying in the International Routes, e.g.
Dhaka-Kolkata-Dhaka and Dhaka-Agartola-Dhaka.

The Bus Body fabrication Unit of the Company has also been modernized by introducing
high-tech equipment, where buses are being painted with fully automation ensuing
international quality.

Date of Incorporation 7" September 1967
Converted into Public Limited Company 1981
Listing with Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited 1987
Listing with Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited 1996

Registered with Central Depository Participant (CDBL) 2005

Renewal of membership certificate from Bangladesh | 2022
Association of Publicly Listed Companies (BAPLC)

Face value per share TK. 10/-

Authorized Capital TK. 3,000,000,000/-
Paid-up Capital TK. 1,055,449,950/-
Number of Shares 105,544,995
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Notice4_4th

of the

general meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 44™ Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Shareholders of Aftab Automobiles
Limited will be held on Tuesday, 24 December 2024 at 11.00 am under Digital Platform to transact the following
business:

01. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2024
together with Auditors’ Reports and Directors’ Reports thereon.

02. To declare Dividend for the year ended 30 June 2024.

03. To re-elect Directors in terms of the Articles of Association of the Company.

04. To appoint External Auditors of the Company for the year 30 June 2025 and fix their remuneration.
05. To appoint Corporate Governance Compliance Auditors of the Company for the year 30 June 2025.
06. Any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

Roakal (otmund

(Rahat Mahmud)
Company Secretary

Dated: Dhaka
01 December 2024

Notes:

a) The Shareholders whose names will appear in the Share Register of the Company and/or Depository
Register of CDBL as on record date, i.e., 18 November 2024 will be entitled to attend the AGM and
receive dividend.

b) Attendance to the AGM through log in confirmation under Digital Platform of AGM.

c) The Proxy Form affixed with requisite revenue stamp of Tk.20/- must be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company at least 48 hours prior to the AGM.

d) The Annual Report-2024 of Aftab Automobiles Limited will be sent to the respective Shareholders’
email address available with CDBL on Record Date.

e) The copy of AGM notice, Proxy Form and Annual Report-2024 will also be available in the Company’s
website www.aftabautomobiles.com.
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Dear Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum,

It is my pleasure to place the Annual Report of
Aftab Automobiles Limited, for the year ended
30 June 2024. On behalf of the Board of
Directors, | would like to welcome you all at the
44™ Annual General Meeting of the Company. |
would also like to take the opportunity to share
and exchange our thoughts and views on the
performance of the company in the past years
and the potentials and possibilities going
forward.

As you know that, the commercial vehicle
industry is facing a volatile business
environment in a rapidly changing competitive
landscape. The national lockdowns due to
coronavirus and ongoing Russia-Ukraine war
have had a distressing effect across all sectors of
the automotive industry. However, we believe
the present impact on the business is
temporary. We predicted to overcome the
current environment within the next year. The
construction of Padma bridge and other
infrastructure will have a huge economic impact
on the country as well as on automotive
industry. The Padma Bridge connected the
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The Chairman
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south-western part of the country with the
capital and as a result a revolutionary change
occurred in the transport sector. As transport
companies are opening new routes there is a
growing demand for air-conditioned and
non-air-conditioned buses.

The Assembling Unit of the Company has
assembled 21 Units of non-air-conditioned Hino
Diesel Bus chassis.

The Bus Body Fabrication Unit of the Company
has fabricated 05 Units of Hino Buses. DGDP
Modification Toyota Jeep 209 units.

Navana Batteries Limited, subsidiary of Aftab
Automobiles Limited has produced various
types of Batteries and experienced good
response from the market.

Finally, thanks to all my colleagues who have
worked and continue to work very hard for the
betterment & growth of the Company. | also
express my deepest appreciations to you all, our
business partners, suppliers, shareholders,
regulatory authorities and other concern, for
their confidence on us and valuable contribution
to the company.

(Shafiul Islam)
Chairman
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DIRECTORS’

Keport

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum,

We have the pleasure to welcome you on behalf of the Board of Directors of Aftab Automobiles
Limited at the 44th Annual General Meeting of the Company and present before you to receive,
consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on 30 June
2024 together with the Auditors’ Report and Directors’ Report thereon, for your valuable guidance,
opinion and consideration.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Due to covid-19 pandemic in worldwide and Russia-Ukraine War the global economy continues to be
weakened significantly. Disruptions occurred in trade, food and fuel price shocks, all of which are
contributing to high inflation and subsequent tightening in global & local financing conditions. As a
result, Aftab Automobiles Limited could not achieve its desire goal as assumed. However, we are
optimistic that the Company has taken necessary steps to increase production and sales. We have
summarized herewith Industry outlook and segment wise activities of the company during the year
under review:
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Vehicle Assembling Unit
In the Vehicle Assembling Unit of the company a total of 21 chassis of Hino Diesel Bus were sold and
DGDP Modification Toyota Jeep 209 units. The Unit has contributed an amount of Tk. 12.46 crore to
the Company’s turn-over.

Bus Body Fabrication Unit
Bus Body Fabrication unit sold total of 05 units Hino non-air-conditioned bus body. An amount of
Tk.0.63 crore has been contributed to the sales of the Company.

Navana Batteries Limited
Various types of batteries produced during the year; an amount of Tk. 34.58 crore added as sales of
the company.

Industry Outlook and Possible Future Development

Over the years, Bangladesh achieved considerable economic growth and rise in foreign investments.
As a result, the purchasing power of individuals has risen along with the demand for automobiles. To
cover the market demand activities of Aftab Automobiles Limited and Navana Batteries Limited (a
subsidiary of Aftab Automobiles Limited) are narrated hereunder:

Bus

The demand for Buses is growing rapidly inthe country as well as increased economic activities in the
last decade. Bus Operators are controlled mainly by large fleet owners throughout the country and
demand is dominated by non-air-conditioned buses. However, there is a growing demand for luxury
air-conditioned buses owing to the air pollution, environmental change and change of customers’
choice.

Batteries
Navana Batteries Limited a subsidiary of Aftab Automobiles Limited has produced various types of
Batteries as per market demand.

Risk and Concern
Due to global effect of Covid-19 pandemic and Russia-Ukraine War our business also affected by risk
and uncertainties. However, we think uncertainties may be overcome in next year.

Related party transactions

During the year the Company carried out several transactions with related parties in the normal
course of business. The name of related parties, nature of transactions and total transaction value
have been set out following the provisions of ‘BAS 24: Related Party Disclosure’ disclosed in the note
38 of the notes to the financial statements.

A discussion on Cost of Goods sold, Gross Profit Margin and Net Profit Margin (Consolidated).
Amount in Taka

Particulars 30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Revenues (Turnover) 476,750,640 1,184,911,272
Cost of goods sold 349,540,526 966,055,971
Gross profit 127,210,114 218,855,301
Net profit for the year after tax (148,296,976) 4,116,866

Margin Analysis

Gross profit margin and Net profit margin compared with the previous year as hereunder:

Particulars 30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Gross Profit 26.68% 18.47%
Net Profit (31.11%) 0.34%

09
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Extra-Ordinary Events
No events of extra ordinary gain or loss reported in the financial statements which would require to
adjust and/or disclose during the reporting period.

The Variance between the Quarterly and Annual Financial Statements
Variance in financial performance from quarter to quarter has been considered usual based on the
variation of economic activities.

Fairness of Financial Statements

The financial statements together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the
Companies Act 1994 and other related laws fairly present the Company’s state of affairs, the results of
its operations, cash flow, and changes in equity. Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer have
given the declaration about the fairness of the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2024
which is shown on page no. 21 of the report.

Books of Accounts
Proper books of accounts of the Company were maintained.

Accounting Policies
Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial
statements and the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

Application of IAS and IFRS

International Accounting Standards (IAS) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) have
been followed in the preparation of the financial statements and any deviation therefrom has been
adequately disclosed.

Internal Control

The systems of internal controls were sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored. The Company has an internal Audit Department to ensure effective internal control
mechanism. The Audit Committee always gives their suggestion and recommendation as and when
required.

Minority Shareholders’ Interest Protection
Rights and interests of the minority shareholders have been duly protected by means of transparent
operations and proper disclosure of material information of the Company.

Going Concern

There are no doubts about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The Board of
Directors has reviewed the Company’s business plan and is satisfied that the Company has adequate
resources to continue its operations in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the financial statements
are prepared on a going concern basis.

Five Years key Operating and Financial Data
The Key operating and financial data for the last five years have been disclosed at page no. 16.

Declaration by the Managing Director and the CFO
Declaration by the Managing Director and CFO has been given on Annexure- A (Page 21)

Consolidated Financial Result and Appropriation of Profit:

The consolidated financial results for the year ended 30 June 2024 is given hereunder comparing with
the previous year ended on 30 June 2023.
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Amount in Taka

Particulars 30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Retained Earnings Brought Forward 2,424,397,179 2,494,875,777
Add: Net Profit for the year after tax (148,296,976) 4,116,866

Recommended for appropriations:

2024 2023

Cash Dividend @ 10% 10%

(7,45,95,464)

(7,45,95,464)

Stock Dividend @ - -

Un appropriated profit carried forward

2,201,504,739

2,424,397,179

Aftab Automobiles Limited (AAL)

The operating results of AAL for the year ended 30 June 2024 is given hereunder compared

to the previous year ended on 30 June 2023.

Amount in Taka

Particulars 30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Turnover 130,933,817 985,465,143
Gross Profit 29,655,951 162,842,911
Net Profit for the year after tax (148,299,129) 4,116,866
Earnings Per Share (EPS) (1.412) 0.04
Net Assets Value Per Share (NAVPS) 49.64 51.76
Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share (NOCFPS) 3.79 1.88

Navana Batteries Limited (NBL), Subsidery of Aftab Automobiles Limited

Navana Batteries Limited is a fully owned subsidiary company of Aftab Automobiles Limited. The
operating results of NBL for the year ended 30 June 2024 comparing with previous year ended on 30

June 2023 are given below:

Amount in Taka

Particulars 30 June 2024 30 June 2023
Revenues 345,816,823 199,446,129
Gross Profit 97,554,163 56,012,389
Net Profit After Tax 3,953,096 (1,852,427)
Earnings Per Share (EPS) 0.22 (0.10)
Net Assets Value Per Share (NAVPS) 40.75 40.53

Investment in the associated company
Navana Real Estate Limited

Aftab Automobiles Limited is holding 60,00,000 shares of Tk.10/- each of Navana Real Estate Limited. The
acquisition cost of the said shares was Tk.3.33 per share. As Navana Real Estate Limited is not listed, its
market price cannot be determined. However, Navana Real Estate Limited’s Earning per share (EPS) and Net
asset value (NAV) as on 30 June 2023 stood at Tk. 5.02 and Tk. 75.29 per share respectively.
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Board of Directors Meetings
Total 7 (Seven) meetings held by the Board of Directors during the year 30 June 2024.

Amount in Taka

Name of Directors Position Board Meeting attended
Mr. Shafiul Islam Chairman 4
Mrs. Khaleda Islam Director 5
Mr. Saiful Islam Managing Director 7
Mr. Sajedul Islam Director 6
Ms. Farhana Islam Director 4
Md. Mustafizur Rahman Independent Director 4
Mr. Abul Layes Afsary Independent Director 4

Independent Directors
Mr. Md. Mustafizur Rahman, currently serving as an Independent Director of Aftab Automobiles
Limited, brings a wealth of expertise to his role.

Mr. Rahman is an experienced banker. He completed his graduation in Accounting and
post-graduation in Finance from the University of Dhaka. Later on, he completed his DAIBB form The
Institute of Bankers, Bangladesh (IBB). Mr. Rahman had started his career as a Financial Analyst at
Sonali Bank Limited. He served the Bank over 35 years in different capacities across the country and
abroad and retired from the Bank in 2014 as a Deputy Managing Director.

Mr. Rahman attended various training courses on Banking & Finance, Basel Il, Entrepreneurship
development, Credit management, Bank management, Managerial Planning & Control, Project
Appraisal & Evaluation, Urban Branch Management in Bangladesh and abroad.

Mr. Abul Layes Afsary appointed as Independent Director of Aftab Automobiles Limited vide Board
resolution dated 15.06.2023 for three years up to 14.06.2026 subject to approval by the shareholders
in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Mr. Abul Layes Afsary is a seasoned corporate leader who has more than 35 years of experience in
Banking. In his academic attainments, he completed his graduation and post-graduation from the
University of Dhaka. Later on, he completed his Banking Professional Examination JAIBB and DAIBB
from the Institute of Bankers Bangladesh. Mr. Afsary had started his career as Senior Officer at Sonali
Bank Limited and served the Bank till 2018 in different capacities across the country and abroad. Along
with various career accomplishment Mr. Afsary achieved all business/remittance targets of about
200% in 2002 and 2003, and received letter of appreciation from the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Sonali Exchange Co. Inc. New York, USA & Managing Director of Sonali Bank Limited. He
attended various training programs at home and abroad.
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Remuneration paid to Directors and Independent Directors
An amount of Tk.95,000/- paid to Directors and TK.40,000/-paid to Independent Directors for
attending at Board of Directors meeting held during the financial year ended on 30 June 2024.

Recommendations for Re-election

In terms of Article 125 and 126 of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Shafiul Islam and
Mrs. Khaleda Islam, Directors retire by rotation from the Board in the 44" Annual General Meeting.
Being eligible under Article 127 of the Articles of Association of the Company, the retiring Directors
have offered themselves for re-election.

Disclosure of information of the directors who are willing to be re-elected:

Mr. Shafiul Islam

Mr. Shafiul Islam joined the Islam Group, a reputed business conglomerate in Bangladesh in 1968 and
started his career with automobile business as well as in the construction, real estate business. In the
early years, he gained valuable experience by being involved in the management of the Group’s
diverse business operations. He played a major role in establishing “Navana“ as the Toyota brand car
trading company in Bangladesh, and finally set up Aftab Automobiles Limited. He was also in charge
of the construction company named Bengal Development Corporation (BDC) where he was directly
responsible for the construction work of BDC in the Middle East and from 1981, he was also taking
care of Eastern Housing Limited, then the largest real estate development company in Bangladesh. In
1996, the then Chairman of Islam Group, separated from Islam Group with Navana Limited and Aftab
Automobiles Limited and formed Navana Group. He has a very good relationship with all business key
people in the country.

Mr. Shafiul Islam is the Chairman of Navana Group, consisting of companies involved amongst others
in vehicles assembling, bus body fabrication, trading, real estate, construction, CNG/LPG conversion
and CNG/LPG station, electronics, petroleum and renewable energy.

Names of companies in which Mr. Shafiul Islam also holds the directorship:

Navana Limited, Aftab Automobiles Limited, Navana Real Estate Limited, Navana Construction Ltd.,
Navana Foods Ltd., Navana Building Products Ltd., Navana Interlinks Ltd., Navana Electronics Ltd.,
Navana Batteries Ltd., Navana Furniture Ltd., Navana Engineering Limited, Navana Welding Electrode
Limited, Navana Plastic Products Ltd., Navana Toyota Service Center Ltd., Navana Logistics Ltd.,
Navana Renewable Energy Ltd., Navana Paints Ltd. and Navana LPG Ltd.

Membership in committees of the Board of other Companies-None.

Mrs. Khaleda Islam
Mrs. Khaleda Islam is the wife of Mr. Shafiul Islam, Chairman of the Navana Group. Mrs. Khaleda Islam
has experience in business for more than 30 years. She traveled many countries in the world.

At present, Mrs. Khaleda Islam is a Director of Navana Group, involved amongst others in vehicles
assembling, bus body fabrication, trading, real estate, construction, CNG/LPG conversion and
CNG/LPG stations, electronics, petroleum and renewable energy.

Names of companies in which Mrs. Khaleda Islam also holds the directorship:

Navana Limited, Aftab Automobiles Limited, Navana Real Estate Limited, Navana Construction Ltd.,
Navana Foods Ltd., Navana Electronics Ltd., Navana Toyota Service Center Ltd., Navana Engineering
Limited, Navana Welding Electrode Limited, Navana Interlinks Ltd., The Essential Industries Ltd.,
Biponon Ltd., Navana Logistics Ltd., Navana Renewable Energy Ltd., Navana Building Products Ltd. and
Navana LPG Ltd.,

Membership in committees of the Board of other Companies-None.
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Corporate Governance Compliance
The Company complies with the requirements of Corporate Governance Code.

a. Compliance Certificate on Corporate Governance Code in page no. 22 (Annexure-B)
b. Corporate Governance Compliance Report in page no. 23 (Annexure-C)
c. Pattern of shareholding in page no. 15

Next Year Plan

Aftab Automobiles Limited could not achieve its target as expected due to covid-19 pandemic in
worldwide and Russia-Ukraine War. However, the management of the Company has taken plan to
grow its business significantly.

Dividend
The Board of Directors of Aftab Automobiles Limited in its meeting held on 27 October 2024 has
recommended dividend as follows:

a. 10% Cash Dividend for the general shareholders only excluding Sponsors and Directors. The
Sponsors and Directors are holding 3,0949,531 shares out of total 1,05,544,995 shares of
Aftab Automobiles Limited. Dividend amount payable to the general shareholders only is
Tk. 7,45,95,464/- for shares 7,45,95,464; and

The general shareholders whose names appeared in the share register of the Company and/or
Depository Register of CDBL as on Record Date i.e., 18 November 2024 will be entitled to have the
cash, subject to approval in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company scheduled to be held
on 24 December 2024.

Appointment of External Auditors

Being illegible the existing auditors of the Company M.Z. Islam & Co., Chartered Accountants,
expressed their willingness to continue as External Auditors of the Company for the year ended 30
June 2024. The Board of Directors of the Company in a meeting dated 27 October 2024 recommended
for re-appointment of M.Z. Islam & Co., Chartered Accountants for conducting audit as external an
auditor of the Company for the year 30 June 2025. Matter to be placed for approval in the ensuring
Annual General Meeting scheduled to be held on 24 December 2024.

Appointment of Corporate Governance Compliance Auditors

Existing Corporate Governance Compliance Auditors MNA Associates, Chartered Secretaries have
completed their work as compliance Auditors for the year ended 30 June 2024. The Board of Directors
in a meeting dated 27 October 2024 recommended to appoint MNA Associates for the year ending on
30 June 2025, Subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting scheduled to be held on 24 December 2024.

Acknowledgement

On behalf of the Company, we would like to record our sincere thanks to all shareholders for their
continued confidence in us, and employees of Aftab Automobiles Limited and its subsidiary for their
contribution and at the same time thanks to all the stakeholders and other concern for their
continuous support.

Best regards to all the shareholders. May you all have a healthy, peaceful and progressive life.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

(Saiful Islam)
Managing Director
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PATTERN OF
SHAREHOLDINGS

The pattern of shareholdings of the Directors and others as on 30 June 2024 are as follows:

Namewise Details

Parent/Subsidiery/Associated
Companies and other related parties

Directors, Chief Executive Officer/ Managing Director,

Company Secretary, Chief Financial
Officer, Head of Internal Audit and Compliance
and their spouse and minor children:

Directors, Chief Executive Officer/ Managing Director:

Mr. Shafiul Islam - Chairman

Mr. Saiful Islam - Managing Director
Mrs. Khaleda Islam - Director

Mr. Sajedul Islam - Director

Ms. Farhana Islam - Director

Mr. Md. Mustafizur Rahman - Independent Director
Mr. Abul Layes Afsary - Independent Director

Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary
and Head of Internal Audit & Compliance
and their spouse and minor children:

Executives

Shareholders holding ten percent (10 %)
or more voting interest in the company:

Mr. Shafiul Islam

15

No. of Shares held

19,820,620
3,398,047
2,804,167
2,719,581

2,191,853

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

19,820,620
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HIGHUGHTS OF FINANCIAL

&
KEY OPERATING DATA

[Consolidated]

(Amount in ‘000 Taka)

Particulars 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

Authorized capital 3,000,000| 3,000,000| 3,000,000/ 3,000,000 3,000,000
Paid-up capital 1,055,449 1,055,449| 1,005,190 957,324 957,324
Face Value Per Share Tk. 10/- Tk. 10/- Tk. 10/- Tk. 10/- Tk. 10/-
Shareholders’ equity 5,239,681| 5,462,575 | 5,516,746| 5,542,366| 5,762,720
Fixed asset 2,089,601| 2,090,008 1,924,542| 1,885,081| 1,936,566
Turnover (Net) 476,750 1,184,911 710,591| 1,254,021| 1,947,025
Gross profit 127,210 218,855 174,187 307,009 515,482
Net profit after tax (148,296) 4,116 1,092 | (185,517) 8,409
Total comprehensive income for the (148,296) 4,116 1,092 (185,517) 8,409
period/year

Operating cash flow per share 5.01 2.39 3.71 6.65 (6.02)
Book value per share 49.64 51.76 54.88 57.89 60.20
Earnings per share (1.41) 0.04 0.01 (1.94) 0.09
Cash dividend 10% 10% 5% 5% 10%
Stock dividend ) B} 5% 5% -
bt @ ellisliallelans 19256| 18701 18,869|  20,177| 21,182

aftab automobiles limited
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GRAPHICAL
____ PRESENTATION

PRODUCTION SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

in million taka

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

(ASSEMBLING UNIT) QUANTITYIN NOS. QTY

SALE SHARE CAPITAL

in million taka in million taka

SHARE CAPITAL

1,055
1,055

in million
taka

2020 2021 M2022 [¥12023 2024

VALUE ADDED STATEMENT Value Added Graph
For the Period ended June 30, 2024

Amount in '000' Taka %
Sale/ Turnover 476,750 | 4 AL, 22T
Bought in- Material & Service 296,591 (148,296) ;
Value Added 180,159 (82.31)%
Application
to National Exchequer 4,962 2.75 239.929
to Providers of Loan 133i18‘%:
as Interest & Charges 239,929 133.18
to Providers Emp. Salaries
Wages & other benefits 67,888 37.68
to Providers of Capital- as Dividend 15,676 8.70
Reserve & Surplus / (Loss) (148,296) (82.31)

15,676, 8.70%
180,159 100.00
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REPORT ON

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors of Aftab Automobiles Limited is collectively responsible to shareholders and
concern to enhance good governance practice and maintaining effective corporate governance
culture of transparency and good governance in the Company.

The Company has complied with all the requirement of Corporate Governance Code-2018

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors comprises of 7(seven) members including 2 (two) Independent Director. All
Directors have sound knowledge in the area of related business, managerial expertise and sound
academic and professional knowledge. They are well conversant with corporate governance code.

Policy on appointment of Directors

BSEC notification on Corporate Governance Code and Companies Act, 1994 are followed to appoint
the Directors of the Company. Being a member of the Board, a director other than a nominated,
Independent and alternate Director, must maintain at least two percent shares of Paid-up shares of
the company. According to the provision of Companies Act 1994, at least one-third of the Directors
retired by rotation in every AGM. The tenure of office of an Independent Director is for a period of 3
(three) years and may be extended for 1 (one) more tenure only. With regards to appointment of the
directors, the Company follows all relevant rules and regulations.

Independent Directors

The Board of Directors appointed Mr. Md. Mustafizur Rahman and Mr. Abul Layes Afsary as
Independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 23.10.2022 and 15.06.2023 respectively. The Board
believes that their experience and knowledge will enable them to provide constructive as well as an
effective contribution to the Company.

Independency of Independent Director

As per Corporate Governance Code, one-fifth of the total Directors of the Board shall be Independent
Directors. The Company has two (2) Independent Directors out of the total seven (7) Directors. For the
purpose of independence, the Board decided that its Independent Directors do not hold any shares of
the Company and does not have any other relationship, not a member, Director or officer of any Stock
Exchange.

The Role of the Chairman and the Managing Directors
The position of the Chairman and the Managing Director of the company shall be filled by the different
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individuals who are the member of the Board. There is a division of responsibilities between the
Chairman’s functions and that of the Managing Director. The responsibility of the Chairman is to
provide leadership to the Board and to ensure that the Board works efficiently and discharges their
responsibilities effectively. The Chairman shall preside over the meeting of the Board of Directors and
General Meeting.

The Managing Director has the overall responsibility for the performance of the Company's business.
He is also responsible for establishing and executing the Company's overall strategic and operating
plan which is necessary to achieve the Company's objectives.

Financial and Accounting Knowledge and Expertise of the Directors

The Board of Directors, consists of members who possess a wide knowledge and experience in
finance, management, business administration, rules and regulation as required. They formulate the
right policy for the development of the business while having the specialized skills and the ability to
foresee development across a larger perspective.

Mr. Md. Mustafizur Rahman one of the Independent Director completed his graduation in Accounting
and post-graduation in Finance from the University of Dhaka.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee is comprised
of three members including two Independent Directors of the Company. Mr. Md. Mustafizur Rahman
Independent Director, is the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. The Committee assists the Board to
ensure that the financial statements reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and ensuring a good monitoring system within the business and to oversee the determination of audit
fees based on scope and magnitude, level of expertise deployed for effective audit and evaluate the
performance of external auditors of the company.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) is comprised of three members of the Board
including 2 (two) Independent Directors. Mr. Abul Layes Afsary is the Chairperson of the NRC. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible to the Board and to the Shareholders.

Company Secretary

Rahat Mahmud is the Company Secretary of Aftab Automobiles Limited. He is responsible for dealing
with corporate and various regulatory compliances, making bridge between the Board of Directors
and other Stakeholders, custodian of the Shareholders and also conducts the statutory functions
pursuant to the applicable laws and regulations. The Board of Directors defined the respective roles,
responsibilities and duties of the Company Secretary in compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC).

Chief Financial Officer

Md. Shahadat Hossain Miah has been appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He is
responsible for accounts and financial activities of the Company. The Board of Directors clearly defined
the respective roles, responsibilities and duties of the Chief Financial Officer in compliance with the
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Corporate Governance Code and other applicable rules and regulations.

Head of Internal Audit & Compliance (HIAC)

Abdur Razzak is the Head of Internal Audit & Compliance of Aftab Automobiles Limited. He is
responsible for management and oversight of the company's Internal Audit activities. The Board of
Directors have defined the roles, responsibilities and duties of HIAC in conformity with the Corporate
Governance Code.

Financial Reporting

Financial Statements have been prepared in line with the International Accounting Standards (IAS),
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and other legislations as applicable in Bangladesh.
Preparing un-audited quarterly and annual audited financial statements with comprehensive details
as per legal requirements.

Statutory Audit

Statutory Auditor of the Company worked under the Companies Act, 1994, Corporate Governance
Code and other applicable laws. The Act and Code provides guidelines for the appointment, scope of
work, retirement/re-appointment of auditors and fix their remuneration. Their appointment will be
approved by the shareholder of the Company in ensuing Annual General Meeting.
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Declaration by

Annexure-A
[As per condition No. 1 (5) (XXVI)]

Managing Director
& Chief Financial Officer

27 October, 2024

The Board of Directors
Aftab Automobiles Limited

Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on 30 June 2024.

Dear Sirs,

Pursuant to the condition No 1(5)(xxvi) imposed vide the Commission’s Notification No. BSEC/CMRRC-
D/2006-158/207/Admin/80, Dated 3 June 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969 we
do hereby declare that:

(1)

(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)

The Financial Statements of Aftab Automobiles Limited for the year ended on 30 June 2024 have been prepared
in compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), as applicable in the Bangladesh and any departure there from has been adequately disclosed;

The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and reasonable basis,
in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

The form and substance of transactions and the Company’s state of affairs have been reasonably and fairly
presented in its financial statements;

To ensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal control and
maintenance of accounting records;

Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the established
policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

The management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements is
appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also certify that:

(i)
(a)
(b)
(i)

We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 30 June 2024 and that to the best of our
knowledge and belief:

these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements
that might be misleading;

these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with
existing accounting standards and applicable laws.

There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year
which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the Company’s Board of Directors or its
members.

Sincerely yours,

(Saiful Islam) (Md. Shahadat Hossain Miah)
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
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Annexure-B

Chartered Secretaries

ANNEXURE-B
[(Certificate as per condition No. 1(5)(xxvii)]

Report to the Shareholders of Aftab Automobiles Limited
on Compliance to the Corporate Governance Code 2018;

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by Aftab Automobiles
Limited for the year ended on 30 June 2024. This Code relates to the Notification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006 -158/207/ Admin/80, dated 03 June 2018 of the Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company. Our
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the Management
in ensuring compliance to the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code.

This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of the
Corporate Governance Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards
(BSS) as adopted by Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) in so far as those
standards are not inconsistent with any conditions of this Corporate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required, and after
due scrutiny and verification thereof, we report that, in our opinion:

a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as stipulated in
the above-mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the Commission except those mentioned
in the statement of compliance status;

b) The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards
(BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) as required by this
Code;

c) Proper books and records have been kept by the company as required under the Companies Act,
1994, the Securities Laws and other relevant laws; and

d) The governance of the company is satisfactory.

MNA Associates
Chartered Secretaries

Nurul Alam FCS
Chief Executive Officer
Enroliment No. 015

Place: Dhaka

MNA Associates
Tropical Molla Tower 3" Floor| Sha-15/1-4 Pragati Sarani (Guishan Link Road Badda end) | Middle Badda, Dhaka-1212
Mob: +880 1880887760 | Email: info@mnaassoc 010 | Website: htt

aftab automobiles limited 22



Annexure-C
[As per condition No. 1 (5) (xxvii)]

STATUS OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Status of Compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission’s Notification No.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80, dated 3 June 2018 issued under section 2CC
of the Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969:

(Report under Condition No. 9)

Compliance Status

. (Put v in the
Condition Title appropriate Remarks
No column) (if any)
Complied Not
Complied
1 Board of Directors
1(1) Board's Size v Aftab Automobiles
[The total number of members of a Company's Board of ke
Directorsshall not be less than 5 (five) and more than 20 (twenty). (Seven) Directors
1(2) Independent Directors
1 (2)(a) At least one fifth (1/5) of the total number of Directors shall be v ndepere e 02 s
Independent Directors out of 07 Directors
1(2)(b) Independent Directors means a director

1 (2)(b)(i) | Who either does not hold any share in the company or holds not v
less than one percent (1%) shares of the total paid-up shares of the
company

1 (2)(b)(ii) | Who is not a sponsor of the company and is not connected with the v
company’s any sponsor or director who holds one percent (1%) or
more shares of the total paid-up shares of the company on the basis
of family relationship and his/her family members also should not
hold above mentioned shares in the company

1 (2)(b)(iii) | Who has not been an executive of the company in immediately v
preceding 2 (two) financial years

1 (2)(b)(iv) | Who does not have any other relationship, whether pecuniary or v
otherwise, with the company or its subsidiary or associated
companies

1 (2)(b)(v) | Who is not a member or TREC (Trading Right Entitlement v
Certificate) holder, director or officer of any stock exchange

1 (2) (b)(vi)| Who is not a shareholder, director excepting independent director v
or officer of any member or TREC holder of stock exchange or an
intermediary of the capital market

1 (2)(b)(vii)| Who is not a partner or an executive or was not a partner or an v
executive during the preceding 3 (three) years of the concerned
company’s statutory audit firm or audit firm engaged in internal
audit services or audit firm conducting special audit or professional
certifying compliance of this Code

1(2)(b)(viii)| Who is not independent director in more than 5 (five) listed v
companies

1 (2)(b)(ix) | Who has not been convicted by a court of competent jurisdiction as v
a defaulter in payment of any loan or any advance to a bank or a
Non-Bank Financial Institution

1 (2)(b)(x) | Who has not been convicted for a criminal offence involving moral v
turpitude
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Condition
No

Title

Compliance Status
(Put v in the
appropriate

column)

Complied Not
Complied

Remarks
(if any)

1(2)(c)

The independent director(s) shall be appointed by the Board and
approved by the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting (AGM)

v

1(2)d)

The post of independent director(s) cannot remain vacant for more
than 90 (ninety) days

1(2)(e)

The tenure of office of an independent director shall be for a period
of 3 (three) years, which may be extended for 1 (one) tenure only.
Provided that a former independent director may be considered for
reappointment for another tenure after a time gap of one tenure,
i.e., three years from his or her completion of consecutive two
tenures [i.e. six years]:

1(3)

Qualification of Independent Director

1))

Independent Director shall be a knowledgeable individual with
integrity who is able to ensure compliance with financial laws,
regulatory requirements and corporate lawsand can make
meaningful contribution to the business.

1 )(b)

Independent Director shall have following qualifications:

1 (3)(b)(i)

Business Leader who is or was a promoter or director of an unlisted
company having minimum paid-up capital of Tk. 100.00 million or
any listed company or a member of any national or international
chamber of commerce or business association; or

N/A

1 (3)(b)(ii)

Corporate Leader who is or was a toplevel executive not lower than
Chief Executive Officer or Managing Director of Deputy Managing
Director or Chief Financial Officer or Head of Finance or Accounts
or Company Secretary or Head of Internal Audit and Compliance or
Head of Legal Service or a candidate with equivalent position of an
unlisted company having minimum paid-up capital of Tk. 100.00
million or of a listed company; or

1 (3)(b)iii)

Former official of government or statutory of autonomous or
regulatory body in the position not below 5" Grade of the national
pay scale, who has at least educational background of bachelor
degree in economics or commerce or business or Law; or

N/A

1 (3)(b)iv)

University Teacher who has educational background in Economics
or Commerce or Business Studies or Law; or

N/A

1 (3)(b)(v)

Professional who is or was an advocate practicing at least in the
High Court Division of Bangladesh Supreme Court or a Chartered
Accountant or Cost and Management Accountant or Chartered
Financial Analyst or Chartered Certified Accountant or Certified
Public Accountant or Chartered Management Accountant or
Chartered Secretary or equivalent qualification.

N/A

The independent director shall have at least 10 (ten) years of
experiences in any field mentioned in clause (b)

In special cases, the above qualifications may be relaxed subject to
prior approval of the Commission.

N/A

Duality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairperson of the Board and the Managing
Director (MD) of the company shall be filled by different individuals.

v

The Managing Director (MD) of a listed company shall not hold the
same position in another listed company.

v

The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected from among the non-
executive directors of the company.

The Board shall clearly define respective roles and responsibilities of
the Chairperson and the Managing Director.

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Board, the remaining
members may elect on of themselves from non-executive directors
as Chairperson for that particular Board’s meeting the reason of
absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the minutes.

N/A
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Compliance Status
i
Condition Title (::;ror;:at:\ee Rt?marks
No. co|umn) (lf anY)
Complied Not
Complied
1(5) The Directors’ Report to the Shareholders
1 (5)(i) An industry outlook and possible future development in the v
industry
1 (5)ii) The segment-wise or product-wise performance v
1 (5)iii) Risks and concerns including internal and external risk factors, v
threat to sustainability and negative impact on environment, if any.
1 (5)(iv) A discussion on Cost of Goods sold. Gross Profit Margin and Net v
Profit Margin, where applicable
1 (5)(v) A discussion on continuity of any extra-ordinary activities and their N/A
implications (gain or loss)
1 (5)(vi) A detailed discussion on related party transactions along with a
statement showing amount, nature of related party, nature of v
transactions and basis of transactions of all related party
transactions;
1 (5)(vii) A statement of Utilization of proceedsraised through public issues,
. . . N/A
rights issues and/or any others instruments;
1 (5)(viii) An explanation if the financial results deteriorate after the company N/A
goes for IPO, RPO, Rights Offer, Direct Listing etc.
1 (5)(ix) An explanation on any significant variance that occurs between v
Quarterly Financial performances and Annual Financial Statements;
1 (5)(x) A statement of remuneration paid to the directors including v
independent directors
1 (5)(xi) A statement that the financial statements prepared present fairly its v
state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes
in equity
1 (5)(xii) Proper books of accountshave been maintained v
1 (5)(xiii) A statement that appropriate accounting policies have been v
consistently applied in preparation of the financial statements and
that the accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent
judgment;
1 (5)(xiv) IAS/IFRS, as applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed 4
withadequate disclosure;
1 (5)(xv) A statement that the system of internal control is sound in design v
and has been effectively implemented and monitored
1 (5)(xvi) A statement that minority shareholders have been protected from v
abusive actions by, or in the interest of, controlling shareholders
acting either directly or indirectly and have effective means of
redress.
1 (5)(xvii) | A statement that there is no significant doubt upon the issuer v
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, if the issuer
company is not considered to be a going concern, the fact along
with reasons there of shall be disclosed;
1 (5)(xviii) | An explanation that significant deviations from the last year's v
operating results of the issuer company shall be highlighted and the
reasons thereof shall be explained;
1 (5)(xix) A statement where key operating and financial data of at least v
preceding 5 (five) years shall be summarized.
1 (5)(xx) An explanation on the reasons if the issuer company has not N/A
declared dividend (cash or stock) for the year
1 (5)(xxi) Board’s statement to the effect that no bonus share or stock N/A
dividend has been or shall be declared as interim dividend
1 (5)(xxii) | The total number of Board meetings held during the year and 4
attendance by each director
1 (5)(xxiii) | Pattern of shareholding and name wise details:
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Compliance Status
(Put v in the
Condition Title appropriate Remarks
No. column) (if any)
Complied Not
Complied
1(5)(xxiii)(a)| Parent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies and other related v
parties (hame wise details)
1(5)(xxiii)(b)| Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief v
Financial Officer, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and
minor children (name-wise details)
1(5)(xxiii)(c)| Executives v
1(5)(xxiii)(d)| Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or more voting interest in v
the company (name wise details)
1 (5)(xxiv) | Disclosure on appointment/re-appointment of Director:
1(5)(xxiv)(a)| A brief resume of the director; 4
1(5)(xxiv)(b)| Nature of his/her expertise in specific functional areas v
v

1(5)(xxiv)(c)

Names of companies in which the person also holds the directorship
and the membership of committees of the Board.

1 (5)(xxv)

A Management’s Discussion and Analysis signed by CEO or MD presenting detailed analysis of the

company’s position and operations along with a brief discussi
statements, among others, focusing on:

on of changes in the financial

1 (5)(xxv)(a)

Accounting policies and estimation for preparation of financial
statements;

v

1 (5)(xxv)(b)

Changes in accounting policies and estimation, if any, clearly
describing the effect on financial performance or results and
financial position as well as cash flows in absolute figure for such
changes

v

1 (5)(xxv)(c)

Comparative analysis (including effects of inflation) of financial
performance or results and financial position as well as cash flows
for current financial year with immediate preceding five years
explaining reasons thereof

1 (5)(xxv)(d)

Compare such financial performance or results and financial
position as well as cash flows with the peer industry scenario

1 (5)(xxv)(e)

Briefly explain the financial and economic scenario of the country
and the globe

1 (5)(xxv)(f)

Risks and concerns issues related to the financial statements,
explaining such risk and concerns mitigation plan of the company

1 (5)(xxv)(g)

Future plan or projection or forecast for company’s operation,
performance and financial position, with justification thereof, i.e.,
actual position shall be explained to the shareholders in the next
AGM

1 (5)(xxvi)

Declaration or certification by the CEO and the CFO to the Board as
required under condition No. 3(3) shall be disclosed as per
Annexure-A

1 (5)(xxvii)

The report as well as certificate regarding compliance of conditions
of this Code as required under condition No.9 shall be disclosed as
per Annexure-B and Annexure-C.

Meetings of the Board of Directors
The company shall conduct its Board meetings and record the
minutes of the meetings.

Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board members and Chief Executive Officer

The Board shall lay down a code of conduct, based on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC) at condition No. 6, for the Chairperson of the Board, other
board members and Chief Executive Officer of the company

v

1(7)(b)

The code of conduct as determined by the NRC shall be posted on
the website of the company including, among others, prudent
conduct and behavior; confidentiality; conflict of interest;
compliance with laws, rules and regulations; prohibition of insider
trading relationship with environment, employees, customers and
suppliers; and independency a
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Compliance Status

. (Put v in the
Condition Title appropriate Remarks
No. co|umn) (if anY)
Complied Not
Complied
2 Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company.
2(a) Provisions relating to the composition of the Board of the holding
company shall be made applicable to the composition of the Board v
of the subsidiary company
2(b) At least 1 (one) independent director on the Board of the holding v
company shall be a director on the Board of the subsidiary company
2(c) The minutes of the Board meeting of the subsidiary company shall
be placed for review at the following Board meeting of the holding v
company
2(d) The minutes of the respective Board meeting of the holding ,

company shall state that they have reviewed the affairs of the
subsidiary company also.

2(e) The Audit Committee of the holding company shall also review the v
financial statements, in particular the investments made by the
subsidiary company.

Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Head of
Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) and Company Secretary (CS):

3(1) Appointment

The Board shall appoint a Managing Director (MD) or Chief
3 (1)) Executive Officer (CEQ), a Company Secretary (CS), a Chief Financial v
Officer (CFO) and a Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC)

The positions of the Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive
Officer (CEQ), Company Secretary (CS), Chief Financial Officer v

3 (1)(b) (CFO) and Head of Internal Audit and Compliance (HIAC) shall be
filled by different individuals

3(1)(0) The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC of a listed company shall not v
hold any executive position in any other company at the same time

3 (1)(d) The Board shall clearly define respective roles, responsibilities and v

duties of the CFO, the HIAC and the CS

The MD or CEO, CS, CFO and HIAC shall not be removed from their
3(1)e) position without approval of the Board as well as immediate v
dissemination to the Commission and stock exchange(s)

Requirement to attend Board of Directors’ Meetings
Provided that the MD, CS, CFO and/or the HIAC shall not attend v
such part of a meeting of the Board which involves consideration of
an agenda item relating to their personal matters.

3(2)

3(3) Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the Board that they have
3 (3)@a) reviewed financial statements for the year and that to the best of v
their knowledge and belief:

These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or
3 (3)@)() omit any material fact or contain statements that might be v
misleading;

These statements together present a true and fair view of the
3 (3)(a)(ii) | company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting v
standards and applicable laws;

The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that there are, to the
best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the v
company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation
of the code of conduct for the company’s Board or its members;

3 (3)(b)

The certification of the MD or CEO and CFO shall be disclosed in v
the Annual Report.

3(3)(c)

Board of Directors’ Committee For ensuring good governance in the company, the Board shall have at

leastfollowing sub-committees:
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Condition
No.

Title

Compliance Status
(Put v in the
appropriate
column)

Complied Not
Complied

Remarks
(if any)

Audit Committee; and

v

Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

v

Audit Committee

Responsibility to the Board of Directors

The company shall have an Audit Committee as a sub-committee of
the Board of Directors

The Audit Committee shall assist the Board in ensuring that the
financial statements reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the company and in ensuring a good monitoring system within
the business

The Audit Committee shall be responsible to the Board; the duties
of the Audit Committee shall be clearly set forth in writing.

Constitution of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee shall be composed of at least 3 (three)
members

The Board shall appoint members of the Audit Committee who shall
be non-executive directors of the companyand shall include at least
1 (one) independent director.

All members of the audit committee should be ‘financially literate’
and at least 1 (one) member shall have accounting or related
financial management background and 10 (ten) years of such
experience.

5(2)(d)

When the term of service of any Committee member expires or
there is any circumstance causing any committee members to
unable to hold office before expiration of the term of service, thus
making the number of the Committee members to be lower than
the prescribed number of 3 (three) persons, the Board shall appoint
the new Committee member to fill up the vacancy immediately or
not later than 1 (one) month from the date of vacancy in the
committee to ensure continuity of the performance of work of the
Audit Committee.

The company secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee;

The quorum of the Audit Committee meeting shall not constitute
without at least 1 (one) independent director.

Chairperson of the Audit Committee

The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the Audit Committee to be
Chairperson of the Audit Committee, who shall be an independent
director,;

5(3)(b)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the Audit Committee, the
remaining members may elect one of themselves as Chairperson for
that particular meeting, in that case there shall be no problem of
constituting a quorum as required under condition No. 5(4)(b) and
the reason of absence of the regular Chairperson shall be duly
recorded in the minutes;

N/A

Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall remain present in the
Annual General Meeting (AGM).

Meeting of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee shall conduct at least its four meetings in a
financial year.

5 (4)(b)

The quorum of the meeting of the Audit Committee shall be
constituted in presence of either two members or two-third of the
members of the Audit Committee, whichever is higher, where
presence of an independent director is a must.
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Compliance Status
. . (Put v in the
Condition Title appropriate Rgmarks
No. column) (if any)
Complied Not
Complied
5(5) Role of Audit Committee
The Audit Committee shall:
5 (5)(a) Oversee the financial reporting process; v
5 (5)(b) Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles; v
Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is
5(5)(c) adequately resourced, including approval of the Internal Audit and v
Compliance Plan and review of the Internal Audit and Compliance
Report;
5 (5)(d) Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors; v
Hold meeting with the external auditors for review of the annual
5(5)(e) financial statements before submission to the Board for approval or 4
adoption;
5 (5)f) Reviewthe annual financial statements before submission to the v
Board for approval;
5 (5)(g) Reviewthe quarterly and half yearly financial statements before v
submission to the Board for approval;
5 (5)(h) Review the adequacy of internal audit function; v
5 (5)() Review and Analysis before disclosing in the Annual Report; v
5(5)() Review statement of all related party transactions v
Review Letter of Internal Control weakness issued by statutory
3 (5)K) auditors; N/A
Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and
5(5)) magni.tude, It:::vel of expertise deployed and time requireq for v
effective audit and evaluate the performance of external auditors;
and
Oversee whether the proceeds raised through Initial Public Offering
5 (5)(m) (IPO) or Repeat Public Offering (RPO) or Rights Share Offer have N/A
been utilized as per the purposes stated in relevant offer document
or prospectus approved by the Commission.
5(6) Reporting of the Audit Committee
5 (6)(a) Reporting to the Board of Directors
5 (6)(a)i) The Audit Committee shall report on its activities to the Board. v
5 (6)a)i) The Audit Committee shall immediately report to the Board on the N/A
following findings, if any
5 (6)(a)(ii)a) | Report on conflicts of interests N/A
Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity material defect
5 (6)(a)(ii)(b)| identified in the internal audit and compliance process or in the N/A
financial statements
. Suspected infringement of laws, regulatory compliances including
5 (6)(ai) securities related laws, rules and regulations; and N/A
. Any other matter which the Audit Committee deems necessary shall
5 (6)(aliiXd) be disclosed to the Board immediately N/A
5 (6)(b) Reporting to the Authorities
5(7) Reporting to the Shareholders and General Investors v
6 Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)
6 (1) Responsibility to the Board of Directors
6(1)a) The company shall have a Nomination and Remuneration v
Committee (NRC) as sub-committee of the Board;
The NRC shall assist the Board in formulation of the nomination
criteria or policy for determining qualifications, positive attributes,
6 (1)(b) experiences and independence of directors and top level executive v
as well as a policy for formal process of considering remuneration of
directors, top level executive;
6 (1)) The Terms of Reference (ToR) of the NRC shall be clearly set forth v
in writing covering the areas stated at the condition No. 6(5)(b).
6(2) Constitution of the NRC
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Compliance Status
. . (Put v in the
Condition Title appropriate Rt.emarks
No. column) (if any)
Complied Not
Complied
The Committee shall comprise of at least three members including
6 (2)(a) ) .
an independent director
6 (2)(b) All members of the Committee shall be non-executive directors; v
Members of the Committee shall be nominated and appointed by
6 (2)(c) . v
the Board;
6 The Board shall have authority to remove and appoint any member
(2)(d) : v
of the Committee;
In case of death, resignation, disqualification, or removal of any
6(2)e) member of the Committee or in any other cases of vacancies, the N/A
Board shall fill the vacancy within 180 (one hundred eighty) days of
occurring such vacancy in the Committee;
The Chairperson of the Committee may appoint or co-opt any
external expert and/or member(s) of staff to the Committee as
6 (2)(f) advisor who shall be non-voting member, if the Chairperson feels N/A
that advice or suggestion from such external expert and/or
member(s) of staff shall be required or valuable for the Committee;
6(2)(g) The Company Secretary shall act as the secretary of the Committee; v
6 (2)h) The quorum of the NRC meeting shall not constitute without v
attendance of at least an independent director;
No member of the NRC shall receive, either directly or indirectly,
6 (2)(i) any remuneration for any advisory or consultancy role or otherwise, v
other than Director’s fees or honorarium from the company.
6 (3) Chairperson of the NRC
6 (3)a) The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the NRC to be Chairperson v
of the Committee, who shall be an independent director;
In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC, the remaining
6 (3)(b) members may elect one of themselves as Chairperson for that N/A
particular meeting, the reason of absence of the regular Chairperson
shall be duly recorded in the minutes;
6(3)0) The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the annual general meeting v
(AGM) to answer the queries of the Shareholders.
6(4) Meeting of the NRC
6 (4)(a) The NRC shall conduct at least one meeting in a financial year; v
6 (4)b) The Chairperson of the NRC may convene any emergency meeting N/A
upon request by any member of the NRC
The quorum of the meeting of the NRC shall be constituted in
6 (4)0) presence of either two members or two third of the members of the v
Committee, whichever is higher, where presence of an independent
director is must as required under condition No. 6(2)(h)
The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC shall duly be recorded
6 (4)(d) in the minutes and such minutes shall be confirmed in the next 4
meeting of the NRC.
6 (5) Role of the NRC
6 (5)a) NRC shall be independent and responsible or accountable to the v
Board and to the shareholders
6 (5)(b) NRC shall oversee, among others, the following matters and make v
report with recommendation to the Board:
Formulation the criteria for determining qualifications, positive
6 (5)b)i) attributes and independence of a director and recommend a policy v
to the Board, relating to the remuneration of the directors top level
executive, considering the following:
The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and
6 (5)(b)(i)(a) | sufficient to attract, retain and motivate suitable directors to run the v
company successfully
6 (5)(b)i)(b) ;I'he rela.tionship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets v
ppropriate performance benchmarks
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Compliance Status

. 5 (Put v in the
Condition Title appropriate Remarks
No. column) (if any)
Complied Not
Complied

Remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a balance
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term v
performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company
and its goals

6 (5)(b)i)(c)

Devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking into consideration age,

6 (5)(b)(ii) gender, experience, ethnicity, educational background and v
nationality
Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who

6 (5)(b)iii) may be appointed in top level executive position in accordance with v

the criteria laid down, and recommend their appointment and
removal to the Board

6 (5)(b)(iv) Formulahng Fhe criteria for evaluation of performance of v
independent directors and the Board;
Identifying the company’s needs for employees at different levels

6 (5)(b)(v) and determine their selection, transfer or replacement and v
promotion criteria

6 (5)(b)(vi) Developing, recommending and reviewing annually the company’s v

human resources and training policies

The company shall disclose the nomination and remuneration policy
6 (5)(c) and the evaluation criteria and activities of NRC during the year at a v
glance in its annual report.

7 External Auditors
7(1) The issuer company shall not engage its external or statutory auditors to perform the following services
of the company, namely: -
7 (1)) Appraisal or valuation services or fairness opinions v
7 (1)(i) Financial information systems design and implementation v
Book-keeping or other services related to the accounting records or
7 (1)(iii) . v
financial statements
7 (1)(iv) Broker-dealer services v
7 (1)(v) Actuarial services v
7 (1)(vi) Internal audit services or special audit services v
7 (1)(vii) Any service that the Audit Committee determines v
7 (1)(wiii) Audit or certification services on compliance of corporate v
governance as required under condition No. 9(1)
7 (1)(ix) Any other service that creates conflict of interest. v
No partner or employees of the external audit firms shall possess
7(2) any share of the company they audit at least during the tenure of v
their audit assignment of that company; his or her family members
also shall not hold any shares in the said company.
Representative of external or statutory auditors shall remain present
7(3) in the Shareholders’ Meeting (Annual General Meeting or v
Extraordinary General Meeting) to answer the queries of the
shareholders.
8 Maintaining a website by the Company
The company shall have an official website linked with the website
8 (1) v
of the stock exchange.
8(2) The company shall keep the website functional from the date of v
listing.
The company shall make available the detailed disclosures on its
8 (3) website as required under the listing regulations of the concerned v
stock exchange(s).
9 Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance
The company shall obtain a certificate from a practicing Professional
Accountant or Secretary (Chartered Accountant or cost and
9 (1) Management Accountant or Chartered Secretary) other than its v
statutory auditors or audit firm on yearly basis regarding compliance
of conditions of Corporate Governance Code of the Commission and
shall such certificate shall be disclosed in the Annual Report.
The professional who will provide the certificate on compliance of
9(2) this Corporate Governance Code shall be appointed by the v
shareholders in the annual general meeting.
The directors of the company shall state, in accordance with the
9(3) Annexure-C attached, in the directors’ report whether the company v
has complied with these conditions or not.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committeeis a sub-committee of the Board of Directors of Aftab Automobiles Limited. In
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code, the Board of Directors of the Company appointed 3
(three) members of the Audit Committee including 2 (Two) Independent Director. The Audit Committee
shall assist the Board of Directors to ensure that the financial statements reflect true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and to ensure a good monitoring system within the business and they
shall be responsible to the Board.

Members of the Audit Committee:

Mr. Md. Mustafizur Rahman Independent Director Chairperson
Mr. Abul Layes Afsary Independent Director Member
Mr. Sajedul Islam Non-Executive Director Member

The Committee held on Four (4) meetings during the year under review. Mr. Rahat Mahmud, Company
Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.A record of the Members’ attendance at the Audit
Committee meetings during 2023-2024 is given below:

Name Designation Attendance %
Mr. Md. Mustafizur Rahman Chairperson 4/4 100
Mr. Abul Layes Afsary Member 4/4 100
Mr. Sajedul Islam Member 4/4 100

Role of Audit Committee

Role of audit committee shall include the following:
a. Oversee the financial reporting process;
Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles;
Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors;
Review the quarterly and annual financial statements before submission to the Board for
approval;
Review the adequacy of internal audit function;
Review statement of related party transactions;
Audit committee shall submit their recommendation to the Board regarding the change or
addition of any accounting principle if they think necessary;
The Audit committee shall disclose to the Board immediately on any matter if deems

. necessary; and o . . )
i. Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude, level of expertise

deployed for effective audit and evaluate the performance of external auditors.

aovo

> m o

Activities of the Audit Committee carried out

The Audit Committee of Aftab Automobiles Limited carried out works during the reporting period for
the year ended 30 June 2024 as follows:

A. The Committee reviewed un-audited quarterly financial statements.

B. Reviewed the Financial Statements of Navana Batteries Limited (subsidiaries of Aftab
Automobiles Limited) for the year ended 30 June 2024 and found adequate arrangement to
present a true and fair view of the financial statements of the Companies.

C. Reviewed the procedure and task of the internal audit, financial audited report prepared by
the external auditors on the consolidated financial statements of Aftab Automobiles Limited
for the year ended 30 June 2024 and forwarded the same to meeting of the Board of
Directors.

D. Reviewedprocedures to ensure compliance with regulatory and financial reporting
requirements.

E. Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude, expertise deployed
for effective audit and evaluate the performance of external auditors.

The Audit Committee expressed its sincere thanks to the members of the Committee, Board,
Management and the auditors for their valuable wisdom, guidance and support in carrying out their
duties and responsibilities.

=

(Md. Mustafizur Rahman)
Chairperson
Audit Committee
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NOMINATION & REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE (NRC)

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is a sub-committee of the Board of Directors of Aftab
Automobiles Limited, constituted pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code of the Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC). The Committee is accountable to the Board and to the
shareholders.

The main activities of NRC are to assist and advise the Board.The Committee discharge the responsibility
and oversee the function as defined in the Corporate Governance Code of BSEC.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) consists of the following:

Mr. Abul Layes Afsary Independent Director Chairperson
Mr. Md. Mustafizur Rahman Independent Director Member
Mr. Sajedul Islam Non-Executive Director Member

The Committee held on one (1) meeting during the year under review. Mr. Rahat Mahmud, Company
Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

Role of the NRC

a. NRCshall be independent and responsible or accountable to the Board and to the shareholders;

b. Devising a policy on Board diversity taking into consideration age, gender, experience and
nationality;

c. ldentifying persons who are qualified to become directors/ top level executive and recommend
their appointment/ removal;

d. Assess as to whether the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and efficient to
attract, retain and motivate suitable Directors to run the Company successfully;

e. Evaluate as to whether remuneration of Directors, top level executive involved a balance between
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the
working of the company and its goal;

f. Developing, recommending, and reviewing annually the Company’s human resources and training
policies; and

g. Ildentify the Company’s need for employees at different levels and determine their selection,
transferor replacement and promotion criteria;

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee expressed its sincere thanks to the members of the
Committee, Board and Management for their support in carrying out their duties and responsibilities.

(Abul Layes Afsary)
Chairperson, NRC
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AFTAB AUTOMOBILES LIMITED

Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board Members
and Chief Executive Officer/Managing Director

In compliance with the Notification dated 3 June 2018 of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission on Corporate Governance Code under Condition 1. (7)(b), the Board laydown a code of
conduct as determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) as follows:

This code of conduct is a guideline for the Chairperson, other Board Members and Chief Executive
Officer/Managing Director of the Company.

Code of Conduct

1.
a)

b)

f)

g)

h)

a)

b)

Prudent conduct and behavior

The Chairperson, other Board Members and Chief Executive Officer/ Managing Director shall act
honestly, ethically, in good faith and for the greater interest of the Company;

They shall dedicate, attention to ensure diligent performance of his/her duties and
responsibilities as set forth in the Company’s Memorandum of Association, Articles of
Association and Corporate Governance Code;

They shall be free from exercising in any discriminatory practice or behavior based on race,
gender, age, color, ethnic or national origin, religion;

They shall conduct themselves in a professional, courteous & respectful manner and shall not
take any improper advantage of their position;

They shall use Company’s assets, properties, intellectual rights for business purposes of the
Company not for any personal benefits or gains;

They shall comply with all applicable laws, regulations, confidentiality, obligations and corporate
policies;

They shall aware of the Countries/Foreign business policies, new innovations, future
prosperity/prospect and so more; and

The Chairperson shall preside over all the meetings of Board of Directors and General Meetings.

Confidentiality

Directors shall be aware of confidential information concerning the affairs and business
transaction of the Company;

Directors neither disclose any information to persons outside of the Company, nor they use
information for their personal benefits or for the benefit of any person/concern outside of the
Company; and

All confidential information must be held in confidence unless authorized by the Board for public
dissemination, permissible in accordance with the Corporate Governance Code of BSEC, Listing
Regulations of the Exchange(s) or any applicable rules and laws.

Conflict of Interest

The Chairperson, Chief Executive Officer/Managing Director and other Board Members shall not
enter into any transaction which is may likely to have a conflict with the interest of the Company.
All transaction having conflict of interest, if any, be carried out in accordance with the law and
rules fully disclosed to the Board.

Compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations

The Chairperson, Chief Executive Officer/Managing Directorand other Board Members shall
ensure compliance with relevant legal/regulatory requirements, as applicable to/from the
business of the Company and endeavor that before any directions are given or decisions taken,
relevant legal/regulatory requirements are considered;
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b)

c)

10.

They shall adhere to the laws of the Government and compliance with regulatory requirements
applicable for the business. This includes compliance with Company’s Act, Regulatory Directives,
notification/orders, Income Tax Laws, VAT Act/Rules, Labour Laws, Industry Laws, Trade &
Finance Laws, Securities Laws, Copyright Act, Employment Policy, Health & Safety Laws,
Environmental Laws, Legal Laws and other applicable rules and regulations; and

They shall comply/implement all applicable laws, rules and regulations in order to assist the
Company in promoting lawful and ethical behaviors, any possible violation of laws, rules,
regulations or the code of conduct shall be reported to the Board.

Prohibition of insider trading

Insider trading means using confidential material information about the Company to achieve an
unfair advantage in the buying or selling of the company’s share/securities. Material Information
is usually defined as information which, if publicly disclosed, would reasonably be expected to
influence decision to investor to buy, hold or dispose of securities/shares of the Company;
Insider trading is both unethical and illegal. It is also illegal to pass on undisclosed material
information in the necessary course of business;

All these materials are subject to take necessary action against who is involves and may be taken
prosecutions; and

They shall comply applicable rules and regulations, notifications/orders issued by the regulatory
authorities.

Relationship with employees

They shall strive for causing the Company to maintain cordial employee relation;

They shall build competency based on human resource systems and maintain human resource
policies that have been directed at managing the growth of the Company efficiently; and

They shall assist the Company in future aligning its human resources policies, process and
initiatives to meet the business needs.

Relationship with shareholder/investor

They shall preserve the lawful benefits and interests of its shareholders/investors. They shall
provide with accurate, relevant, transparent, information on Company’s operation/business.
They shall make utmost endeavor to maximize the project.

Relationship with customer

They shall maintain a good business relationship and liaison with its customers through proper
business communication, manufacture and market its products of the highest quality and
standards as per customer needs backed by efficient market analysis and review with the
requirements of the customers to ensure their total satisfaction.

Relationship with suppliers

They shall ensure that the suppliers are committed to supply the raw-materials persistentl| to
keep the production stream moving, as well as consider the availability, quality, price of raw
materials.

Relationship with environments
Environmental and climate protection are among the most pressing global challenges of the
time. Risks inherent to environment and social events/activities need to be taken consideration.

Independency

They shall remain independent in all material aspects;

They shall works with independency in every sphere of activities, business of the Company; and
They shall ensure the independency of employees at their workplace with a view to deriving the
best performance from them that will influence the growth proceeds of the business of the
Company.
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DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION POLICY OF
AFTAB AUTOMOBILES LIMITED

Introduction

A Dividend Distribution Policy maintaining by Aftab Automobiles Limited since long. In Compliance
with Directive No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2021-386/03 dated 14 January 2021 of Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (BSEC), the issuer shall formulate a Dividend Distribution Policy which shall be
disclosed in the Annual Report and official website of the Company. In this connection the Board of
Directors of Aftab Automobiles Limited has adopted a Dividend Distribution Policy, which to be
published in the Annual Report and website of the Company.

Dividend

Dividend means distribution of profit earned by the Company, to its shareholders in proportion to the
and paid-up shares by the respective shareholders on Record Date. Dividend may be final in cash
and/or stock. Dividend may be declared on the basis of audited financial statements regardless of
interim or final. The Company may declare Dividend at the end of financial year which is called final
Dividend. Final Dividend shall be declared on the basis of recommendation of the Board and
subsequent approval by the shareholders of the Company in Annual General Meeting. The Company
may also declare dividend from the profit of current year which is called interim Dividend and the
Board of Directors at its discretion/approve/declare an interim Dividend out of current profit in
conformity with the regulatory rules/regulations.

Objective

The objective of the policy is to provide guideline to stakeholders on the dividend distribution policy
adopted by the Company. The Board of Directors of the Company shall consider this policy when taken
decision for recommendation of dividend, always in compliance with the regulatory requirement,
directive, notification which applicable.

Eligibility for Dividend

Dividend is declared on the face value of each equity share. Unless otherwise clarified all the
shareholders whose name appear in the share register of the Company or with CDBL on Record date
declared by the Company for entitlement of dividend are eligible to get the dividend.

Factors for recommendation of Dividend
The Board of Directors of the Company shall consider the following factors among others while
recommend Dividend.

Financial factors

. Profit earned during the financial year

o Profit growth

. Financial feasibility

. Debt equity relation

. Company’s liquidity position and future cash flow requirements for operations of business of the
Company

Internal factors

o Accumulated reserves

o Dividends distribution status of the Company
. Earnings stability

o Growth rate of predicted profits
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External factors

o Cost and availability of alternative sources of financing

. Industry outlook for the next year/future years

o Shareholders’ expectations

. Changes in the government policies or changes in regulatory provisions
o Other relevant factors that the Board may deem fit

Utilization of retained earnings
The Company may utilize its retained earnings in the manner which is beneficial to the interest of the
Company and its stakeholders. Retained earnings helps in maintaining a healthy capital adequacy ratio
and supports the future growth.

. Investment in new business and/or additional investment in existing business
o Diversification of business if any
o Market or product development/expansion plan

Apart form the above, the Board may consider to recommend on no dividend in accordance with
financial position of the Company.

Policy Review

The Board of Directors of the Company may modify/amend this policy from time to time, if deem fit
and necessary in accordance with related laws/directives/notifications.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
AFTAB AUTOMOBILES LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Consolidated financial statements of Aftab Automobiles Limited (the Company), which
comprise the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at June 30, 2024; Consolidated Statement of Profit
or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income; Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the Consolidated financial statements including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information disclosed in notes 1 to 55 and
Annexure- A, B, C& D.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view the consolidated
financial position of the Company as at June 30, 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Accounting Standard (IASs) and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and other applicable laws and regulations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code)
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

As per BSEC notification no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2021-391/20/Admin/121, Dated: 01 June 2021, any cash or stock
dividend or right share are laying unclaimed or undistributed or un-allotted for a period of 3 (three) years or
more, shall be transferred to the Capital market Stabilization Fund (CMSF). But the entity didn’t transfer
unclaimed Dividend amounting Tk. 82,191,880 to Capital Market Stabilization Fund (CMSF) which is carry
forwarded more than 3 years.

Our key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended on June 30, 2024. These matters were addressed in the
context of the audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole and in forming the auditors’ opinion
thereon and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In addition to the matter described in the basis for opinion section each matter mentioned below our description
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in the context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.

Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the

risks of material misstatements of our consolidated financial statements, the results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below;
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Key Audit Matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Revenue

At year ended the reported total Turnover Tk.
476,750,640. There is also a risk that revenue may be
overstated/ Understated due to the timing
differences.

We identified revenue recognition as key audit
matter as it is one of the key performance Indicators
of the Company, which give rise to an inherent risk of
the existence and the accuracy of the revenue.

We have tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls focusing on the
following:

e Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design and operating effectiveness of controls
designed to ensure that revenue is recognized in
the appropriate accounting standards.

e Segregation of duties in invoice creation and
modification and timing of revenue recognition.

e Assessing the appropriateness of the company’s
accounting policies for revenue recognition and
compliance of those policies with applicable
accounting standards.

e QObtain supporting documentation for sale
transaction recorded either side of year-end to
determine whether revenue was recognized in
the current period.

e Comparing a sample of revenue transactions
recognized during the year with the sale invoices
and other relevant underlying documentation.

e (Critically assessing manual journals posted to
revenue to identify unusual or irregular items,
and finally assessed the appropriateness and
presentation of disclosures against relevant
accounting standards.

We were satisfied that the revenue recognition
policies have been applied appropriately. Based on
the work performed, we concluded that revenue has
been recorded appropriately.

Inventories

As at June 30, 2024, the reported amount of
inventories is Tk.1,253,551,855 held in plants
warehouses.

On the reporting date, inventories are carried at the
lower of cost and net realizable value. As such, the
companies apply judgment in determining the
appropriate values of inventory in accordance with
International Accounting Standard (IAS).

Considering the risk as stated above the valuation of
Inventory is a key audit matter to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

We verified the appropriateness of, management’s
assumptions applied in calculating the value of the
inventory as per International Accounting Standard
(1AS) by:

e Evaluating the design and implementation of key
inventory controls operating across the factory,
warehouse

e We have collected inventory count data sheet
and relevant certification of inventories which
indicates inventory items were maintained in
good condition and maintaining all compliances.
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e Reviewing the historical accuracy of inventory
provisioning and the level of inventory write-offs
during the year.

Obtaining a detailed review with the subsequent
sales to compare with the net realizable value.

We were satisfied that the inventory recognition and
measurement  policies have been applied
appropriately. Based on the work performed, we
concluded that inventories have been recorded
appropriately.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Our audit included the following procedures:

The carrying value of the tangible fixed assets is
Tk.2,089,601,982 as at June 30, 2024. The valuation
of tangible fixed assets was identified as a key audit
matter due to significance of this balance to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

The costs (Capital in nature) are classified as an
asset, if it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the
entity and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably.

The useful lives of tangible fixed assets items are
based on management’s estimates regarding the
period over which an asset is expected to be
available for use. The estimates of the useful life on
the experience of the entity with similar assets and
also take into a consideration the physical condition
of the assets.

e We assessed whether the accounting policies in
relation to the capitalization of expenditures are
in compliance with IFRS and found them to be
consistent.

e We obtained a listing of capital expenditures
incurred during the year and, on a sample basis
checked whether the items were procured during
the year.

e We verified the invoices and L/C documents on
sample basis to segregate the capital and
operation expenditure and found that the
transactions are appropriately classified.

e We evaluated whether the useful lives
determined and applied by management were in
line with the nature of assets, the physical
condition of the assets and its uses.

e We checked whether the depreciation of tangible
fixed assets items was commenced from the date
of ready to use and found the depreciation had
been started accordingly.

We were satisfied that the property, Plant and
equipment recognition and measurement policies
have been applied appropriately. Based on the work
performed, we concluded that property, plant and
equipment have been recorded appropriately.

Long Term Loan and Short Term Loan

As at June 30, 2024, the reported amount of total
Long-Term Loan is Tk. 13,902,309,039 and
Short-Term Loan is Tk. 5,051,986,504 respectively.
The company borrowed fund from various bank for

We have tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls focusing on the
following:
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the purpose of acquisition of non-current assets and
working capital as well.

The company may face difficulties due to unfavorable
movement in interest rate & monetary policy that
may result in short term and cash flow crisis.

e Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design and operating effectiveness of controls
designed to ensure the proper use of loan.

e We verified sanction letter, loan schedule bank
statements to confirm the loan outstanding and
found that the balance had been reported in the
consolidated Financial Statements accurately.

e We checked the financial expenses and
classification of loan and repayment schedule on
a test basis as well.

e We checked the recording date of transactions
and found the recording date is in line with the
loan disbursement date.

We were satisfied that; Long Term Loan & Shor-Term
Loan was recorded properly. Based on the work
performed, we concluded that Loan Term Loan &
Short-Term Loan have been recorded appropriately.

Trade Receivable

The total amount of Trade receivable is Tk.
5,303,393,920 as at June 30, 2024. There are
significant large numbers of individual small
customers. Customers in different business segments
and jurisdictions are subject to their independent
business risk.

The increasing challenges over the economy and
operating environment in the manufacturing industry
during the year have increased the risks of default on
receivables from the customers. In particular, in the
event of insolvency of customers, the company is
exposed to potential risk of financial loss when the
customers fail to meet their contractual obligations in
accordance with the requirements of the
agreements.

Accordingly, we identified the recoverability ofReceivables
as a key audit matter Because of the significance of
Receivable to Company’s ConsolidatedFinancial Position
and because of the significant degree of management
judgement involved in evaluating the adequacy of the
allowance for doubtful debts.

Our audit procedures of assess the recoverability of
trade receivables including the following:

e Tested the accuracy of aging of Receivables at
year end on a sample basis;

e Evaluating the Company’s policy for making
allowance for doubtful debts with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

e Assessing the classification of trade receivables in
the debtors ageing report by comparison with sales
invoice and other underlying documentation on a
test basis.

e Assessed the recoverability of the debtors on a
sample basis through our evaluation of
management’s assessment with reference to the
credit profile of the customers, historical
payment pattern of customers and

e Inspecting subsequent bank receipts form
customers and other relevant underlying
documentation relation to trade receivable
balance as at June 30, 2024.

We were satisfied that; Trade and other Receivable
were recorded properly and assessed with their
appropriate recoverability. Based on the work
performed, we concluded that Trade and other
receivable have been appropriately.
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information
in the Annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The
directors are responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidate dfinancial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, the Securities
and Exchange Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
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on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and relevant
notifications issues by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, we also report that:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts, as records and other statutory books as required by law have
been kept by the Company so far as it appeared from our examination of these books;

c) The consolidated statements of financial position and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of accounts and returns;

and

d) The expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Company’s business.

Yo

Place: Dhaka Mohammad Fakhrul Alam Patwary FCA
Dated: October 27, 2024 Enrollment No: 1249

Managing Partner

M.Z. Islam & Co.

Chartered Accountants
DVC: 2410271249AS314741
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Chief Financial Officer

As at June 30, 2024
Particulars Notes — !
As at June 30,2024 | [ As atJune 30,2023 |
Assets
Non-current assets 5,973,285,601 5,857,256,196
Property, plant and equipment 5 2,089,601,982 2,090,008,163
Non current assets held for sale & discontinued operations 6 277,786,431 277,786,431
Intangible Assets 7 866,250 -
Capital work-in-progress 8 858,802,645 799,066,138
Investments in share & associate company 9 482,563,003 454,915,769
Receivables -Non-Current Maturity 10 2,119,229,095 2,130,831,870
Deferred tax assets 29 111,548,879 68,106,361
Right of use assets 32,887,317 36,541,463
Current assets 20,311,001,453 19,049,962,320
Receivables -Current Maturity 10 3,184,164,825 3,177,301,364
Inventories 11 1,253,551,855 1,348,212,066
Current account with Navana Group Companies 12 7,373,957,925 6,557,853,536
Advances, deposits and prepayments 13 8,196,719,316 7,666,690,291
Cash and cash equivalents 14 302,607,533 299,905,064
Total assets 26,284,287,055 24,907,218,516
Equity and Liabilities
Capital & reserves
Share capital 15 1,055,449,950 1,055,449,950
Share premium 16 1,925,858,339 1,925,858,339
Reserves 17 67,338,231 67,338,231
Retained earnings 2,191,034,702 2,413,929,294
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 5,239,681,222 5,462,575,814
Non-controlling interests 407,499 405,347
Total equity 5,240,088,721 5,462,981,161
Non-current liabilities 10,490,926,219 8,980,976,851
Loan and deferred liabilities (unsecured) 33 25,310,440 25,310,440
Long Term loan-Non current Maturity 18 10,426,731,779 8,918,066,412
Lease liability 38,884,000 37,600,000
Current liabilities 10,553,272,123 10,463,260,508
Long Term loan-Current Maturity 18 3,475,577,260 2,972,688,804
Short-term loan 19 5,051,986,504 5,954,581,632
Accrued and other current liabilities 20 1,874,288,920 1,432,956,602
Unclaimed dividend 21 151,419,439 103,033,470
Total liabilities 21,044,198,342 19,444,237,360
Total equity and liabilities 26,284,287,055 24,907,218,516
Net assets value per share (NAVPS) 31 49.64 51.76

The annexed notes 1 to 55 and schedule-A, B, C & D form an integral part of these financial statements.
These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on October 27, 2024 and were signed on it's behalf by.

@}/ Ruh [hmicd skl QW @

Company Secretary

Director

Director Managing Director

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date. yV'

Place: Dhaka
Dated: October 27, 2024
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Managing Partner
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Chartered Accountants
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Aftab Automobiles Limited & its subsidiary

Consolidated statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended June 30, 2024

Particulars Notes — !
Y June 30, 2024 June 30,2023 |

Net revenue 22 476,750,640 1,184,911,272
Less : Cost of goods sold 23 349,540,526 966,055,971
Gross profit 127,210,114 218,855,301
Less: Operating expenses
Administrative expenses 24 69,836,064 45,328,982
Selling and distribution expenses 25 45,590,555 41,670,789
Financial expenses 26 239,929,287 216,613,308
Total Operating Expense 355,355,905 303,613,079
Operating profit/loss (228,145,791) (84,757,778)
Non-operating income 27 16,588,770 19,517,300
Share of profit from associate company 9.01 27,647,234 28,832,831
Profit/loss before contribution to WPPF (183,909,787) (36,407,647)
Less: Contribution to WPPF - -
Net profit/loss before tax (183,909,787) (36,407,647)
Less: Income tax expense
Current tax 28 7,829,707 8,826,225
Deferred tax 29 (43,442,518) (49,350,738)
Total Income Tax Expense (35,612,811) (40,524,513)
Net profit After Tax (148,296,976) 4,116,865
Total comprehensive Income for the year (148,296,976) 4,116,865
Equity holders of the company (148,299,128) 4,117,874
Non-controlling interests 2,153 (1,008)
Profit for the year (148,296,976) 4,116,865
Consolidated earnings per share 30 (1.41) 0.04

The annexed notes 1 to 55 and schedule-A, B, C & D form an integral part of these financial statements.

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on October 27, 2024 and were signed on it's behalf by.

@}/ Ruhi [hmicd  usliocdoic b QW @

Managing Director

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Director

Director

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date.

Place: Dhaka
Dated: October 27, 2024
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Aftab Automobiles Limited and its Subsidiary
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended June 30, 2024

Amount In Taka |
June 30, 2024 | [ June30,2023 |

Particulars

A. Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts from customers 1,288,362,478 1,441,069,898
Receipts from others 16,588,770 19,517,300
Payments for materials, services and expenses (770,889,913) (1,172,655,089)
Cash generated from operations 534,061,335 287,932,109
Income tax paid (4,962,690) (36,166,491)
Net cash generated by operating activities (Note-34) 529,098,645 251,765,618
B. Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant & equipment (54,498,225) (38,226,119)
Advance for capital assets - (65,392,791)
Payments for capital work in progress - (90,277,561)
Net cash used investing activities (54,498,225) (193,896,471)
C. Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from bank loan - 452,595,912
Group company receipts/(payments) 95,595,932 (363,916,295)
Bank interest & debt paid (551,817,155) (166,118,350)
Dividend paid (15,676,728) (23,064,241)
Unclaimed dividend transferred to CMSF - (5,000,000)
Net cash provided by financing activities (471,897,951) (105,502,974)
D. Net changes in cash & cash equivalents for the period/ year (A+B+C) 2,702,469 (47,633,826)
E. Cash & cash equivalents at beginning of the period/year 299,905,064 347,538,890
F. Cash & cash equivalents at end of the period/ year (D+E) 302,607,533 299,905,064
Net operating cash flows per share (NOCFPS) (Note-32) 5.01 2.39

The annexed notes 1 to 55 and schedule-A, B, C & D form an integral part of these financial statements.
These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on October 27, 2024 and were signed on it's behalf by.

@“// Rkt (ehmicd  gpadicdeictom QW @

Chief Financial Officer

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date.

Place: Dhaka
Dated: October 27, 2024
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AFTAB AUTOMOBILES LIMITED AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE, 2024
Forming an Integral Part of The Consolidated Financial Statement

Reporting Entity
Corporate Information—Domicile, Legal Form and Country of Incorporation

Aftab Automobiles Limited (the Company) was incorporated in erstwhile East Pakistan in year 1967 as East
Pakistan Automobiles Limited under the Companies Act, 1913 vide Registration No. C-2860/57 E.P. of
1967-1968. Subsequently, after liberation war, the Company changed the name as Aftab Automobiles
Limited and was certified by the Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms, Bangladesh on the 11th day
of March, 1972. It was incorporated as a Private Limited Company since inception. However, in 1981 it was
transformed into Public Limited Company under Companies Act, 1913. The Company is listed with Dhaka
Stock Exchange Ltd. and the Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd. in the year 1987 and 1996 respectively.

The Company has one subsidiary company namely Navana Batteries Ltd. incorporated in Bangladesh
under the Companies Act, 1994 vide Registration No. C-76441/2009 that produces batteries.

Registered Office
The Registered Office of Aftab Automobiles Limited is located at 125/A, Motijheel Commercial Area, Islam
Chamber, 4th Floor, Dhaka-1000.

Other Corporate Information

i) Trade License: TRAD/DSCC/266195/2019, dated 18.08.2024
i) e-TIN No.: 414021944464, dated 07.10.2013

iii) BIN No.: 000901216, dated 27.12.2017

Nature of Business

The principal activities of the Company throughout the period were assembling of Toyota Land Cruiser
Soft Top / Pick-up, Land Cruiser Prado, Hino Bus, Hino Mini Bus/Truck Chassis with a production capacity
of 2400 units of vehicles in 3 shifts in assembling unit. At present the plant is running single shift.

Subsidiary Company

Navana Batteries Limited

Navana Batteries Limited is a private limited company which was incorporated on the 21st April, 2009,
Vide Registration No. C-76441/2009 under the Companies Act, 1994 as a subsidiary with 99.95% shares
owned by Aftab Automobiles Ltd. The principal activities of the Company are manufacturing of
automotive, industrial and solar batteries in the plant located at Fouzdarhat Industrial Area, Chattagram,
Bangladesh.

Associate Company

Navana Real Estate Limited

Navana Real Estate Limited (hereinafter referred to as "NREL"/"the Company") is a Public Limited
Company incorporated in Bangladesh in 1996 under the Companies Act, 1994 vide Registration No.
C-31450(571)/96.

The Company is engaged in real estate development business of building development projects both
commercial and residential and sale of lands. The entity holds 20% of its associate’s (Navana Real Estate
Limited) equity shares at the year end.

Structure, Content and Presentation of Consolidted Financial Statements

The presentation of these consolidted financial statements is in accordance with the guidelines provided
by IFRS 10: Presentation of consolidted financial statements. The consolidted financial statements
comprise of:
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i) Consolidated statement of Financial Position as at 30th June, 2024;

ii) Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30th
June, 2024;

iii) Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30th June, 2024;

iv) Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30th June, 2024;

v) Consolidated Notes comprising summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

2.00 Basis of Preparation of Consolidted Financial Statements

2.01 Statement of Compliance
The consolidted financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), International Accounting Standard (IAS) adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB), the Companies Act, 1994, Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020 and
other relevant laws as applicable.

Pursuant to recent amendment to the Companies Act, 1994 incorporating amendments, among others,
is to change of the word ‘Limited’ by the word ‘PLC’ in case of Public Limited Companies including listed
ones. Necessary formalities are in progress in implementing these changes.

2.02 Other Regulatory Compliances
The Company is also required to comply with the following major legal provisions in addition to
Companies Act, 1994 and other applicable laws and regulations:

The Income Tax Act/Ordinance, 2023/1984;

The Income Tax Rules, 1984;

The Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Act, 2012;
The Value Added Tax Rules, 2016;

The Customs Act, 1969;

The Stamp Act, 1899;

The Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission Act, 1993;
The Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020;

The Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969;
Bangladesh Labour Act, 2006 (as amended to 2018)
DSE/CSE Rules;

Listing Regulations, 2015;

2.03 Compliance with the Financial Reporting Standards as applicable in Bangladesh
As per para-14(2) of the Securities and Exchange Rule, 2020 the company has followed International

Accounting Standards (IAS's) and International Financial Reporting Standards.

(IFRS's) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) in preparing the
financial statements.
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Sl. No. I1AS No. IAS Title Compliance Status
1 1 Presentation of Financial Statements Complied
2 Inventories Complied
3 7 Statement of Cash Flows Complied
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and .
4 8 Complied
Errors
5 10 Events after the Reporting Period Complied
6 11 Construction Contracts N/A
7 12 Income Taxes Complied
8 16 Property, Plant and Equipment Complied
9 19 Employee Benefits Complied
10 20 Accounting for Govt. Grants and Disclosure of Govt. N/A
11 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates Complied
12 23 Borrowing Costs Complied
13 24 Related Party Disclosures Complied
14 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plan Complied
15 27 Separate Financial Statements Complied
16 28 Investment in Associated and Joint Venture Complied
17 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economics N/A
18 31 Interest in Joint Ventures N/A
19 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation Complied
20 33 Earnings per Share Complied
21 34 Interim Financial Reporting Complied
22 36 Impairment of Assets Complied
23 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets Complied
24 38 Intangible Assets N/A
25 40 Investment Property N/A
26 41 Agriculture N/A
SIl. No. |IFRS No. IFRS Title Compliance Status
1 1 First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Complied
2 2 Share based Payment N/A
3 3 Business Combinations N/A
4 4 Insurance Contracts N/A
5 5 Non-current Assets held for Sale and Discontinued N/A
6 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources N/A
7 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures Complied
8 8 Operating Segments Complied
9 9 Financial Instrument Complied
10 10 Consolidated Financial Statements Complied
11 11 Joint Arrangements N/A
12 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities Complied
13 13 Fair Value Measurement Complied
14 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts N/A
15 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers Complied
16 16 Leases Complied
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2.04

2.05

2.06

2.07

Basis of Measurement

The consolidted financial statements have been prepared based on the accrual basis of accounting and
prepare under the historical cost convention except for the revaluation of certain non-current assets
which are stated either at revaluated amount or fair market value as explained in the accompanying
notes.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other members of the group.

Non-controlling interests are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets at the date of acquisition.

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions.

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary,
and any related NCI and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-group
transactions, are eliminated. Unrealized gains arising from transactions with equity-accounted investees
are eliminated against the investment to the extent of the Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealized
losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence
of impairment.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the consolidated statement of financial position,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of cash flows, consolidated
statement of changes in equity, and consolidated notes and explanatory materials covering accounting
policies.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS 10: consolidated
financial statements.

Accrual Basis of Accounting

The Company prepares its consolidted financial statements, except for cash flow information & FDR,
using the accrual basis of accounting. Since the accrual basis of accounting is used, the company
recognizes items as assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses (the elements of financial statements)
when they satisfy the definitions and recognition criteria for those elements in the IFRS conceptual
Framework.

Functional and Presentation Currency

Functional and presentation currency items included in these consolidted financial statements are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the company operates (‘the
functional currency'). These consolidted financial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka ("BDT")
which is also the functional currency of the company. The amounts in these consolidted financial
statements have been rounded off to the nearest BDT except otherwise indicated.
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Key Accounting Estimates and Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

The preparation of consolidted financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards including IAS's requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses and for contingent assets and liabilities that require disclosure during and at the date of the
consolidted financial statements.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions of accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate
is revised and in any future periods affected as required by IAS 8: "Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors".

In particular, the key areas of estimation, uncertainly and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidted financial
statements include accrued expenses, inventory valuation and other payables.

Materiality, Aggregation and off Setting

Each material item as considered by management significant has been displayed separately in the
consolidted financial statements. No amount has been set off unless the Company has legal right to set
off the amounts and intends to settle on net basis. Income and expenses are presented on a net basis
only when permitted by the relevant accounting standards. The values of assets or liabilities as shown in
the statement of consolidted financial position are not off-set by way of deduction from another liability
or asset unless there exist a legal right, therefore no such incident existed during the year.

Going Concern Assumption

The consolidted financial statements are prepared on the basis of going concern assumption. As per
management assessment there is no material uncertainties related to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Comparative Information

Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of 2022-2023 in accordance with IFRS-10
"Presentation of Consolidted Financial Statements" for all numeric information in the financial
statements and also the narrative and descriptive information where it is relevant for understanding of
the current periods of consolidted financial statements. Prior year figure has been re-arranged wherever
considered necessary to ensure comparability with the current period.

Changes in Accounting Policies
There have been no changes in accounting policies. All policies were consistent with the practices of the
previous years.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency (BDT) at exchange rates
ruling at the dates of transactions in accordance with 1AS-21 “the Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates.

”Exchange rate difference at the statement of consolidted financial position date are charged/credited to
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, to the extent that this treatment does not
contradict with the Schedule XI of Companies Act, 1994. This Schedule requires all exchange gains and
losses arising from foreign currency borrowings, taken to finance acquisition of construction of fixed
assets, to be credited/charged to the cost/value of such assets.

The consolidted financial statements are presented in BDT, which is company’s functional currency.
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the books at the exchange rate prevailing on the date
of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at reporting date
are translated into (BDT) at the exchange rates ruling at the statement of consolidted financial position
date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, stated at historical cost, are
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translated into (BDT) at the exchange rate ruling at the date of transaction. Exchange differences arising
on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at the end of the reporting period
are recognized in profit or loss.

Responsibility for Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the consolidted financial
statements as per requirements of Companies Act, 1994.

Reporting Period
The reporting period of the Company covers one year from 1st day of July, 2023 to 30th June, 2024.

Approval of Consolidted Financial Statements
The consolidted financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on the 27th day of
October, 2024.

Significant Accounting Principles and Policies selected and applied for significant transactions and
events

For significant transactions and events that have material effect, the Company's Directors selected and
applied significant accounting principles and policies within the framework of IFRS 10: Presentation of
Consolidated Financial Statements in preparation and presentation of consolidated financial statements
that have been consistently applied throughout the year and were also consistent with those use in
earlier years.

For proper understanding of the consolidated financial statements, accounting policies set out below in
one place as prescribed by the IFRS 10: Presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements:

Assets and Basis of their Valuation
Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and Measurements

These are capitalized at cost of acquisition and subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
in compliance with the benchmark treatment of IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment'. The cost of
acquisition of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset
to its working condition for its intended use inclusive of inward freight, duties and non-refundable taxes.

In a situation where it can clearly be demonstrated that expenditure has resulted in an increase in
future economic benefit expected to be obtained from the use of the fixed assets, the expenditure is
capitalized as an additional cost of the assets.

Cost also includes initial estimate of the costs of dismantling, removing the item and restoring this site
(generally called asset retirement obligation) are recognized and measured in accordance with 1AS 37:
Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

On retirement or otherwise disposal of fixed assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation are
eliminated and any gain or loss on such disposal is reflected in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income which is determined with reference to the net book value of assets and the net
sales proceeds.

Capital Work-in-Progress represents capital works of a unit still in progress and not in a operation. Once
a unit is completed, it is transferred to "Property, Plant and Equipment".

No revaluation of fixed assets has been made by the company.

Maintenance Activities
Expenditure incurred after the assets have been put into operation, such as repairs & maintenance is
normally charged off as revenue expenditure in the year in which it is incurred.
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3.01.3 Subsequent Cost
The Cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant & equipment is recognized in the carrying amount
of the item if it is possible that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the
company and its cost measured reliably. The cost of the day to day servicing of properly and equipment
are recognized in the consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income as
repairs and maintenance where it is incurred.

3.01.4 Depreciation on Tangible Fixed Assets
As required in Paragraph 43 of IAS-16 Property and Equipment, depreciation in respect of all fixed assets
is provided to amortize the cost of the assets after commissioning, over their expected useful economic
lives in accordance with the provision of IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment".

Depreciation on all other fixed assets except land and land development is computed using diminishing
balance method in amount sufficient to write-off depreciable assets over their estimated useful life.
Depreciation has been charged on additions and when it is used. Expenditure for maintenance and
repairs are expenses; major replacements, renewals and betterment are capitalized.

The cost and accumulated depreciation of depreciable assets retired or otherwise disposed off are
eliminated from the assets and accumulated depreciation and any gain or loss on such disposal is
reflected in the consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss Account for the year ended. The annual
depreciation rates applicable to the principal categories are:

Category of Fixed Assets Rate of Depreciation & Amortization
Land & Land Development --
Building 2.50%
Sheds 20%
Plant & Machinery 10%
Tools & Equipment 20%
Office Equipment 10%
Furniture & Fixtures 10%
Transport & Vehicles 20%
Electric Line Installation 10%
Gas Line Installation 10%
Office Decoration 10%
Software (ERP) 10%

The whole amount of depreciation has been charged off partly to cost of sales and partly as expense in
consistent with practice followed in the earlier years.

3.01.5 Impairment
The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment loss. If any such indication exists, recoverable
amount is estimated to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any, impairment loss is recorded
on judgmental basis, for which provision may differ in the future years based on the actual experience.

3.01.6 Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is removed from the consolidated statement of financial
position when it is dispose off or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
The gain or loss on the disposal of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is included in the
consolidated statement of income of the period in which the de-recognition occurs.
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3.01.7 Capital Work-in-Progress
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Property, Plant and Equipment under construction/acquisition have been accounted for as capital
work-in-progress until construction/acquisition is completed and measured at cost.

Investment in FDR

Investment is stated at its cost of acquisition and interest earned on deposits lying with the different
banks has been duly accounted for on cash basis. The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income reflects the income on account of interest on investment in FDR.

Investment in Associates

An entity in which an investor has significant influence, but which is neither a subsidiary nor an interest
in a joint venture is classified as Investment in Associates. Equity Method accounting has been followed
to recognize and measure the investment in associates in accordance with International Accounting
Standard (IAS) 28 "Investments in Associates". The Aftab Automobiles Limited holds 20% of its associate's
(Navana Real Estate Limited) equity shares as at year end.

Recognition of Investment in Subsidiary in a separate Financial Statement

The investments in subsidiary is being accounted for using equity method in the company's separate
financial statements as directed by para 10 (c) of IAS 27 separate Financial Statements, "under the equity
method, on initial recognition the investment in an associate or a joint venture is recognized at cost, and
the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognize the investor's share of the profit or loss of the
investee after the date of acquisition. The investor's share of the investee's profit or loss is recognized in
the investor's profit or loss. Distributions received from an investee reduce the carrying amount of the
investment. Adjustments to the carrying amount may also be necessary for changes in the investor's
proportionate interest in the investee arising from changes in the investee's other comprehensive
income." The equity holds 99.95% of its subsidiary’s (Navana Batteries Ltd.) equity shares at the year end.

Sundry Debtors (Including Advance, Deposits and Pre-Payments)
These are carried at original invoice amounts, which represent net realizable value.

Other Current Assets

Other current assets have a value on realization in the ordinary course of the company's business which
is at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the consolidated Statement of Financial
Position.

Revenue Recognition

In compliance with the requirements of IFRS 15 "Revenue" is recognized to the extent that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the entity and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue
represents invoiced value of policies. Revenue recognized when the policies are made.

The Company recognizes as revenue the amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for goods or services when (or as) it transfers control to the customer.
To achieve that core principle, this standard establishes a five-step model as follows:

* |dentify the contract with a customer;
* |dentify the performance obligations in the contract;

* Determine the transaction price;
* Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
* Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Considering the five steps model, the company recognizes revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies
a performance obligation by transferring a promised goods to a customer. Goods is considered as
transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of that goods. Revenue from sale of goods is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of returns and allowances,
trade discounts, rebates and Value Added Tax (VAT).
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a) Sale of Goods
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Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

The company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it
typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

b) Profit on Bank Deposits
Profit on bank deposits have been accounted on accrual basis.

c) Other Revenues
Other revenues are recognized when services are rendered and bank interests are earned.

Inventories

In compliance with the requirements with IAS-2 "Inventories" Raw Materials and stores are valued at the
lower of average cost and the net realizable value. Stock of finished vehicles, bus body building unit are
valued at cost which is determined by taking into consideration the value of raw materials and production
overhead. Cost comprises expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing such
inventories to present condition and includes wherever applicable appropriate overheads based on
normal level of activity.

No provision has been made for slow moving & obsolete stocks during the financial year.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transaction in Foreign Currencies are measured in the functional currency of the company and are
recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency at the spot exchange rate ruling at the
transaction date.

At the end of each reporting period in compliance with the provision of IAS 21: The Effect of Changes in
Foreign Exchange Rates-

Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate;

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical costs in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction;

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency is translated using the exchange
rate at the date when the fair value is determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at
rate different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in
previous financial consolidated statements is recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Amount in FCAD ERQ Account and any other foreign currency balance have been translated into taka at
the reporting date at the exchange rate prevailing on that date and gain/(loss) have been accounted for
as other income / (loss) in consolidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income.

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

3.10.1 Financial Assets

The company initially recognizes a financial asset in its consolidated statement of financial position,
when, and only when, the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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The company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights or probabilities of receiving the
cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the
financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred.

An entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) on the basis of both in
pursuance of provision 4.1 classification of financial assets under IFRS 9:

(a) the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets; and
(b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

3.10.1.1 Financial Assets measured at amortized cost
The asset is measured at the amount recognized at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus
or minus the cumulative amortization of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, and any loss allowance. Interest income is calculated using the effective interest method and
is recognized in profit and loss. Changes in fair value are recognized in profit and loss when the asset is
derecognized or reclassified.

3.10.1.2 Financial Assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met:

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

3.10.1.3 Financial Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified as at fair value through profit or loss if it is classified as held for trading or
is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial assets are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss if the Company manages such investment and makes purchase or sale decisions based on
their fair value in accordance with the Company’s documented risk management or investment
strategy. Attributable transactions costs are recognized in profit and loss as incurred. Financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value and changes therein which take into account
and dividend income are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets include accounts receivables, advance, deposits & prepayments, investments and cash
& cash equivalents.

i) Accounts Receivables

Accounts receivables represent the amounts due from customers for delivering goods or rendering
services. Trade and other receivables are initially recognized at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration given in return. After initial recognition these are carried at cost less impairment losses
due to non-collectability of any amount so recognized.

ii) Advance, Deposits & Prepayments

Advances are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, advances are carried at cost less
deductions, adjustments or charges to other account heads. Deposits are measured at payment value.
Prepayments are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, prepayments are carried at cost
less charges to profit & loss account.

iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash in hand, cash at bank and fixed deposits having maturity of
less than three months which are available for use by the company without any restriction.
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3.10.2 Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is recognized when its contractual obligations arising form post events are certain
and the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow from the company of resources
embodying economic benefits. The company initially recognises financial liabilities on the transaction
date at which the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the liability.

The company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expired.

Non-derivative financial liabilities comprise accrued and other current liabilities, interest bearing
borrowings and short term loan.

i) Accrued and Other Current Liabilities
Accrued and Other Current Liabilities are recognized at the amount payable for services rendered to
the company.

ii) Interest bearing borrowings

Principal amounts of the loans and borrowings are stated at their amortized amount. Borrowings
repayable after twelve months from the date of consolidated statement of financial position are
classified as non-current liabilities whereas the portion of borrowings repayable within twelve months
from the date of consolidated statement of financial position, unpaid interest and other charges are
classified as current liabilities.

iii) Short Term Loan
Short Term Loan is recognized at the amount payable to the bank.

3.11 Equity Instruments
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Investment costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary
shares are recognized as expenses. Paid up share capital represents total amount contributed by the
shareholders and bonus shares issued by the Company.

3.12 Impairment
i) Non-derivative Financial Assets
Financial assets not classified as at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment. A financial asset is impaired if objective
evidence indicate that a loss event has occurred after the initial

recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows
of that asset that can be estimated reliably. Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired
includes:

(a) default or delinquency by a debtor;

(b) restructuring of an amount due to the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

(c) indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy;

(d) adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers;

(e) observable data indicating that there is measurable decrease in expected cash flows from a Company of
financial assets.

(f) Financial Assets measured at amortized cost
The Company considers evidence of impairment for these assets at both an individual asset and a
collective level. All individually significant assets are individually assessed for impairment. Those found
not to be impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet
individually identified. Assets that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for
impairment. Collective assessment is carried out by grouping together assets with similar risk

characteristics.
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In assessing collective impairment, the Company uses historical information on the timing of recoveries
and the amount of loss incurred, and makes an adjustment if current economic and credit conditions are
such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or lesser than suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses
are recognized in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the Company considers that
there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If the
amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognized, then the previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss.

(g) Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets (other than biological asset, investment
property, inventories and deferred tax assets) are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount
is estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to
determine the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable
amount of the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. An impairment loss is recognised
if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or CGU.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that
the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

3.13 Derivatives
The company is not a party to any derivative contract at the consolidated statement of financial position
date, such as forward exchange contract, currency swap agreement or interest rate option contract to
hedge currency exposure related to import of raw materials and others or principal and interest
obligations of foreign currency loans.

3.14 Leases
IFRS 16 provides a single leasee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognize assets and liabilities for
all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less or the underlying asset as a low value. A leassee
recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments. There are recognition exemption for short-term
leases and leases of low value items.

The Company applied IFRS 16 Lease for the first time on 1st July, 2019. The nature and effect of the
changes as a result of adoption of this new accounting standard is described below.

Alease is defined as a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying
asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Previously the company used to charge the
consideration paid in its books as revenue expenses. IFRS 16 introduced a single, on balance sheet
accounting model for leases. As a result, the Company, as a leassee, has recognized right of use assets
representing its rights to use underlying assets and lease liabilities representing its obligation to make
lease payments. The Company applied IFRS 16 on 1st January, 2019 for the existing lease contracts.
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The Company has only office rent agreement, which is classified as operating leases, which under IFRS 16
are required to be recognized on the Company’s statement of financial position. The nature and timing of
expenses related to those leases has changed as IFRS 16 replaced the straight line operating lease
expenses (as per IAS-17) with an amortization charge for the right of use assets and interest expense on
lease liabilities.

The Company applied the practical expedient to the definition of a lease on transition. This means that it
applied IFRS 16 to all contracts entered into before 1st January, 2019 and identified as leases in
accordance with IAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

The Company’s all contractual payments to the lessor contains only fixed amounts of lease payment and
no variable lease payments are embedded with the lease payments. The rental agreements do not
include any automatic renewals, nor do they include any guaranteed residual values of the underlying
assets.

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. At the
commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, a change in
the lease term or a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments.

Subsequent Measurement:

The Lease Liability:

Upon initial recognition, the lease liability is being accounted for using amortised cost. Meaning that the
initial liability is added by finance charge at company’s incremental borrowing cost less subsequent rental
payment on monthly basis.

Right to Use Assets:
The leased assets (Right to Use Asset) are depreciated over its useful life on monthly basis using straight
line depreciation method.

Taxation

Income Tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax expense is recognized in profit or
loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized
in equity in accordance with IAS 12: Income Tax.

a) Current Tax:

Current Tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
periods.

The applicable tax rate of the company of Aftab Automobiles Ltd. is 22.50% and Navana Batteries Ltd. is
27.50% as the companies are qualified as a publicly traded company and private limited company
respectively.

b) Deferred Tax:

Deferred income tax is provided using the deferred method on temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences, except:
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Where the deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss;

In respect of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled by the
company and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

In respect of deductible temporary differences and carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, if it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

C) Value Added Tax:
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of Value Added Tax except:

Where the value added tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case the value added tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the
asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

Receivable and payables that are stated with the amount of value added tax included.

The net amount of value added tax recoverable from, or payable to, taxation authority is included as part
of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

Proposed Dividend

The amount of proposed dividend has not been accounted for but disclosed in the notes to the accounts
in accordance with the requirements of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 1: Presentation of
consolidated Financial Statements. Also the proposed dividend is not considered as liability in accordance
with the requirement of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 10: Events after the Reporting Period,
because no obligation exists at the time of approval of accounts and recommendation of dividend by the
Board of Directors.

Cost of Post-Employment Benefits

The company maintains a defined contribution plan for its eligible permanent employees. The eligibility
is determined according to the terms and conditions set forth in the respective deeds. The Company does
not have any defined benefit plans and therefore does not record any provisions or expenses in this
regard.

The company has accounted for and disclosed employee benefits in compliance with the provision of IAS
19: Employee Benefits. The cost of employee benefits is charged off as revenue expenditure in the period
to which the contributions relate. The company’s employee benefits include the following:

(a) Short-Term Employee Benefits:

Short-term employee benefits include salaries, bonuses, overtime, holiday allowance, TA/DA, leave
encashment, meals allowance, transaction, accommodation etc. obligation for such benefits are
measured on an undiscounted basis and are expenses as the related service is provided.

(b) Contribution to Workers’ Profit Participation and Welfare Funds:
This represents 5% of net profit before tax contributed by the company as per provisions of the
Bangladesh Labour (amendment) Act, 2014 and is payable to Workers as defined in the said law.

(c) Insurance Scheme:
Employees of the company are covered under insurance schemes.
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(d) Defined Contribution Plan (Provident Fund):

The company has a registered provident fund scheme (Defined Contribution Plan) for employees of the
company eligible to be members of the fund in accordance with the rules of the provident fund
constituted under and irrevocable trust. All permanent employees contribute 10% of their basic salary to
the provident fund and the company also makes equal contribution.

The company recognizes contribution to defined contribution plan as an expense when an employee has
rendered services in exchange for such contribution. The legal constructive obligation is limited to the
amount it agrees to contribute to the fund.

Capitalization of Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds as per IAS 23: Borrowing Costs.

Accruals, Provisions and Contingencies

a) Accruals

Accruals are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied but have not been
paid, invoiced or formally agreed with the supplier, including amounts due to employees. Accruals are
reported as part of trade and other payables.

b) Provisions

A provision is recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position when the company has a
legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Provision is ordinarily measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting date. Where the company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed,
the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the consolidated income statement net of
any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using
a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a
finance cost. During the reporting year the company has made sufficient provisions where applicable.

c) Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the company; or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the

control of the company. At the reporting date the company does not have any contingent asset.

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position of
the company.
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3.20 Operating Segments
Basis for Segmentation
A business segments is a distinguishable component of an entity that is engaged in providing an
individual product or service or group of related products or services and that is subject to risk and
returns that are different from those of other business segment. The company has three distinguishable
operating segments like assembling unit, motor cycle unit and body unit in case of Aftab Automobiles Ltd.

The following summary describes the operation of each reportable segment:

Reportable Segments Operations

Assembling Unit The principal activities of the company are assembling of
Toyota land cruiser soft top/pick-up, land cruiser prado,
hino bus, hino mini bus/truck chassis.

Body Unit The company has made bus’s body and other vehicles body.

These three reportable segments are the strategic business units of the company and are managed
separately based on the Company’s management and internal structure. For each of the strategic
business units, the management reviews internal management report on at least quarterly basis.
Performance is measured based on segment profit from operation, as included in the internal
management reports.

Segment revenue and operating profit is used to measure performance as management believes that
such information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to their
entities that operate within these industries.

A geographical segment is a distinguishable component of an entity that is engaged in providing products
or services within a particular economic environment and that is subject to risks and returns that
different from those of components operating other economic environments. Since the company has
operating all its activities in the same economic environment geographical segment reporting is not
required.

3.21 Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purposes of the consolidated Statement of Financial Position and Cash Flows, cash in hand and
bank balances represent cash and cash equivalents considering the IFRS 10 "Presentation of Consolidated
Financial Statements" and IAS 7 "Cash Flow Statement" which provide, that cash and cash equivalents are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an in significant risks of changes in value
and are not restricted as to use.

3.22 Statement of Cash Flows
The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared in accordance with the requirements IAS 7:
Statement of Cash Flows. The cash generated from operating activities has been reported using the Direct
Method as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987 and considering the provisions of
Paragraph 19 of IAS 7 which provided that "Enterprises are Encouraged to Report Cash Flow from
Operating Activities Using the Direct Method".

3.23 Earnings per Share (EPS)
Earnings Per Share (EPS) are calculated in accordance with the International Accounting Standard IAS-33
"Earnings Per Share".

Basic Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the entity by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. The Basic
EPS of previous year has been restated to adjust the effect of bonus issue of shares during the year.
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Diluted Earnings Per Share

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per shares, an entity adjusts profit or loss attributable to
each ordinary equity holders of the entity, and weighted average number of shares outstanding, for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Diluted EPS is only calculated where the company has commitment to issue ordinary shares in future at
reporting date. No such commitment is hold by company at reporting date.

Historical Cost Income and Expenditure

As there was no extra ordinary item, there was no difference in profit from ordinary activities before
taxation and the net profit before tax. Furthermore, as there was no revaluation of fixed assets in
previous years and during the year under review, there was no factor like the differences between
historical cost depreciation and depreciation on re-valued amount, realization of revenue surplus on
retirement or disposal of assets etc. Therefore, no separate note of historical cost profit and loss has been
presented.

Risk Exposure

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that company faces due to unfavourable movements in the interest rates.
Changes in the government's monetary policy, alongwith increased demand for loans/investments tend
to increase the interest rates. Such rises in interest rates mostly affect companies having floating rate
loans or companies investing in debt securities.

Management Perception

The management of the company prefers procuring the long-term fund with minimum fixed interest rate
and the short-term fund with reasonable competitive rate. The company maintains low debt/equity ratio;
and accordingly, adverse impact of interest rate fluctuation is insignificant.

Exchange Rate Risk

Exchange rate risk occurs due to changes in exchange rates. As the company imports materials and
equipment from abroad and also earns revenue in foreign currency, unfavourable volatility or currency
fluctuation may affect the profitability of the company. If exchange rate increases against local currency,
opportunity arises for generating more profit.

Management Perception
The products of the company are sold mostly in local currency. Therefore, volatility of exchange rate will
have no impact on profitability of the company.

Industry Risks

Industry risk refers to the risk of increased competition by an entry of new competitors from foreign and
domestic sources leading to lower prices, revenues, profit margin, and market share which could have an
adverse impact on the business, financial condition and results of operation.

Management Perception
Management is optimistic about growth opportunity in assembling of different types of vehicles sector in
Bangladesh.

Market Risk

Market risk refers to the risk of adverse market conditions affecting the sales and profitability of the
company. Mostly, the risk arises from falling demand for the product or service which would harm the
performance of the company. On the other hand, strong marketing and brand management would help
the company increase their customer base.

Management Perception

Management is fully aware of the market risk, and act accordingly. Market for assembling of different
types of vehicles sector in Bangladesh is growing at an exponential rate. Moreover, the company has a
strong marketing and brand management to increase the customer base and customer loyalty.
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Operational Risks

Non-availabilities of materials/equipment/services may affect the smooth operational activities of the
company. On the other hand, the equipment may face operational and mechanical failures due to natural
disasters, terrorist attacks, unforeseen events, lack of supervision and negligence, leading to severe
accidents and losses.

Management Perception
The company perceives that allocation of its resources properly can reduce this risk factor to a great
extent. The company hedges such risks in costs and prices and also takes preventive measures therefore.

Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on
time or at a reasonable price.

Management Perception

The company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company's reputation.

Typically, management ensures that it has sufficient cash and cash equivalent to meet expected
operational expenses, including the servicing of financial obligation through preparation of the cash
forecast, prepared based on time line of payment of the financial obligation and accordingly arrange for
sufficient liquidity/fund to make the expected payment within due date.

Labour Unrest Risk
Smooth production is dependent on good relationship with factory workers and their ability to provide
high quality services. In the event of disagreement with workers the company may face adverse impact.

Management Perception

The management personnel both in head office and production premises maintains a good atmosphere
at the working place and provides with all necessary facilities to the workers like healthy remuneration,
employee contributory provident fund, gratuity scheme, group term scheme and workers profit
participation fund for its employees which reduces the risk of labour unrest.

Events after the Reporting Period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the Company's position at
the date of consolidated statement of financial position or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the reporting period
that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material.

Related Party Disclosure

As per International Accounting Standard, IAS-24: 'Related Party Disclosures', parties are considered to
be related if one of the parties has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. The Company carried out transactions
in the ordinary course of business on an arm's length basis at commercial rates with its related parties.
Related party disclosures have been given in Note 35.

General

All shares have been fully called and paid up;

There is no preference shares issued by the company;

The company has not incurred any expenditure in foreign currency against royalties and technical fees;
Auditors are paid only the statutory audit fees;

No foreign currency was remitted to the shareholders during the year under audit;

No money was spent by the company for compensating any member of the board for rendering special
services;

No brokerage was paid against sales during the year under audit;

No bank guarantee was issued by the company on behalf of its directors.
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. Amount In Taka
Notes Particulars
June 30,2024 | [ June 30,2023
5.00 Consolidated property, plant and equipment, net
Land & Land Development 1,071,289,720 1,019,059,057
Building 601,203,277 585,558,725
Shades 118,027,230 147,534,038
Plant & Machinery 178,796,611 198,662,902
Tools & Equipments 17,386,458 19,087,583
Office Equipment 20,155,067 22,394,519
Furniture & Fixture 14,464,351 16,071,502
Transport Vehicles 41,572,680 51,965,850
Electrical line installation 6,083,644 6,759,605
Office Decoration 11,677,360 12,974,844
Gas line installation 8,945,583 9,939,538
2,089,601,982 2,090,008,163
The break-up PPE is shown in  Annexure- A.
6.00 Consolidated Non-current assets held for sale & discontinued operations
Land & Land Development 139,554,017 139,554,017
Building 20,290,561 20,290,561
Shades 438,851 438,851
Plant & Machinery 54,676,889 54,676,889
Tools & Equipments 3,232,421 3,232,421
Office Equipment 9,477,063 9,477,063
Furniture & Fixture 5,668,495 5,668,495
Transport Vehicles 13,454,349 13,454,349
Electrical line installation 2,137,161 2,137,161
Office Decoration 28,856,624 28,856,624
277,786,431 277,786,431
The break-up PPE is shown in  Annexure- B.
Since the board's decision to reclassify the non-current assets held for sales as regular assets. It will be used
from the next financial year.
7.00 Consolidated Intangible Assets
Software (ERP) 866,250 | -
866,250 -
The break-up PPE is shown in  Annexure- D
8.00 Consolidated capital work in progress
Opening balance 799,066,138 733,964,130
Addition during the year 90,967,130 90,277,561
890,033,268 824,241,691
Less: Transfer to property, plant & equipment 31,230,623 25,175,553
Closing balance 858,802,645 799,066,138
Capital work in progress represents Land and Land Development, civil construction, Plant and Machinery
of Aftab Automobiles Ltd and Navana Batteries Ltd.
9.00 Investments in share & associate Company

Investment in associate ( Note : 9.1)
Investment in share ( Note : 9.2)
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] Amount In Taka |
Notes Particulars
June30,2024 || June 30,2023 |
9.01 Investment in associate
Opening Balance 454,915,769 426,082,938
Share of equity from associate 27,647,234 28,832,831
Closing Balance 482,563,003 454,915,769

NB: Share of profit from associate company (NREL) has been taken for one year for Financial year 2023-

2024
9.02 Investment in share
Navana Construction Ltd.
Opening Balance - 28,395,758
Less: Transfer the year - 28,395,758
Navana Construction Limited has not yet allotted equivalent shares in favor of Aftab Automobiles Limited. So
the board of directors meeting approval will be treated as an intercompany loan.
10.00 Consolidated Receivables
Receivable Non-Current (Maturity over 12 months ) 2,119,229,095 2,130,831,870
Receivable current (Maturity less than 12 months ) 3,184,164,825 3,177,301,364
5,303,393,920 5,308,133,234
Ageing schedule of receivables :
Duration
1- 30 days 323,905,004 329,561,430
31- 60 days 342,971,872 335,877,995
61- 90 days 502,677,327 507,948,410
91- 180 days 978,224,876 982,470,917
181- 365 days 1,036,385,745 1,021,442,612
Over 365 days 2,119,229,095 2,130,831,870
5,303,393,920 5,308,133,234
Net receivables are considered good . The Company holds no security other than debtors' personal security
in the form of work orders etc.
11.00 Consolidated Inventories
Finished products 500,017,194 485,314,740
Raw materials 305,841,140 350,506,533
Work-in-process 447,693,521 461,013,265
Goods in transit - 51,377,528
1,253,551,855 1,348,212,066
12.00 Consolidated Current account with Navana group 7,373,957,925 6,557,853,536
Companies
13.00 Consolidated advances, deposits and prepayments
Advance to suppliers 1,006,239,942 982,183,496
Advance to employees 42,078,747 44,709,034
Advance to others 666,499,404 518,642,633
Current Account with VAT 94,438,071 148,611,168
Security & Deposits 318,184,446 321,245,146
Demand Tax 1,100,320 -
Advance for Capital Assets 4,806,777,589 4,394,860,709
Advance Income tax (note-13.1) 1,261,400,797 1,256,438,107
8,196,719,316 7,666,690,291

Advance paid to suppliers against work order and considered good. Advance to employees against expenses, salary
realisable on production of documents and monthly salary respectively are considered good. Deposits consist of utility
deposits, security money against tender and bank guarantee are considered good.
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Notes Particulars

Amount In Taka

June 30, 2024

June 30, 2023

13.01 Consolidated Advance Income tax
Opening balance
Addition during the year

Adjustment made during the year
Closing Balance

14.00 Consolidated cash & bank balances
FDR
Cash in hand
Cash at bank (note-14.1)

14.01 Cash at bank
IFIC Bank Ltd.
Agrani Bank Ltd.
Pubali Bank Ltd.
IFIC Bank Ltd. (Federation)
Eastern Bank Ltd.
United Commercial Bank Ltd.
Commercial Bank of Ceylon Ltd.
AB Bank Ltd (Motijheel)
Sonali Bank Ltd. (Local)
Janata Bank Ltd.
American Express
Arab Bangladesh
IFIC Bank Ltd.
Janata Bank Ltd.
The Oriental Bank Ltd.
IFIC Bank Ltd.
City Bank Ltd.
The Oriental Bank Ltd.
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd.
Islami Bank BD Ltd. (F.Ex.Br)
Jamuna Bank Ltd.
One Bank Ltd.
Agrani Bank Ltd. (F.EX)
Mercantile Bank Ltd.
BRAC Bank Ltd.1
Standard Bank Ltd. (Pri.Br)
Sahajalal Bank Ltd.
IFIC Bank Ltd.
Al-Arafah Islami Bank Ltd.
United Commercial Bank Ltd.
Standard Bank Ltd.
One Bank Ltd.
IFIC Bank Ltd.
AB Bank Ltd.
Standard Bank Ltd.
IFIC Bank Ltd. (Federation)
NCC Bank Ltd. (Sayamoli)
IFIC Bank Ltd. (Gulshan)
Meghna Bank Ltd. (Gulshan)
Prime Bank Ltd. (Baridhara)
Bank Asia Ltd.
The City Bank Ltd. (Banani)
Midland bank Ltd.
Midland bank Ltd.
SBAC Bank Ltd.
One Bank Ltd. (Jatrabari)
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1,256,438,107

1,220,247,006

4,962,690 36,191,100
1,261,400,797 1,256,438,107
1,261,400,797 1,256,438,107
220,667,066 261,269,811
3,064,768 1,165,815
78,875,699 37,469,438
302,607,533 299,905,064
28,121 379,509
6,517 6,517
44,481 44,481
11,666 46,490
58,214 58,214
16,507 16,507
24,750 24,750
2,619 2,619
15,101 15,101
1,500 1,500
21,540 21,540
7,213 7,213
5,274 768,843
812 812
39,670 39,670
15,323 15,323
1,144 27,769
32,040 32,040
246,695 19,626,455
435,198 4,478,159
25,646 25,646
75,868 75,868
95,900 116,420
123,168 123,168
3,353 3,353
- 869,282
169,806 169,806
97,000 97,000
24,508 24,825
199,305 199,305
6,000,000 2,696
31,020 31,020
94,924 90,660
100,000 100,000
3,262 399,994
95,006 95,006
96,383 56,026
7,881 137,068
23,063 4,407,350
= 4,000
416,174 215,630
: 89,448
85,483 85,483
656
6,655 666
1,820 571,470
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Amount In Taka |

Notes Particulars
June 30,2024 || June 30,2023

BD Commerce Bank Ltd. 100,000 100,000
NRB Bank Ltd. 97,435 97,435
Premier Bank Ltd. 98,390 98,390
Southeast Bank Ltd. 13,954 17,551
Sahajalal Islami Bank Ltd. 102,102 9,820
Rupali Bank Ltd. (Local) 10,000 10,000
AB Bank Ltd. 10,000 10,000
One Bank Ltd. (Gulshan) 3,950
IFIC Bank Ltd. (Fed. Br.) 28,573 110,088
Sonali Bank Ltd. (Ramna) 760,069 1,199,990
Janata Bank Ltd. 48,320 49,253
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd. (Gulshan) 40,197 40,128
United Commercial Bank Ltd. (Tejgaon) - 92,110
Modhumoti Bank Ltd. (Gulshan) 24,593,680 1,301,190
National Bank Ltd., CD-15927, NBL, Dhaka 196,163 83,052
Uttara Bank Ltd.(Bhola) 15,373 381,581
Eastern Bank Ltd. 359,421
First Security Islami Bank Ltd. (Corporate) 363,105 264,150
Eastern Bank Ltd. 43,243,703
Agrani Bank Ltd. (FDR-ID # 10583162) 14,009,430 13,275,259
Agrani Bank Ltd. (FDR-ID # 10583151) 14,206,741 13,438,261
Agrani Bank Ltd. (FDR-ID # 10583159) 21,466,182 20,285,015
Agrani Bank Ltd. (FDR-ID # 10583160) 14,061,859 13,301,215
Bank Asia Ltd. (FDR # 00855012111) - 54,277,360
One Bank Ltd. (FDR # 4120005867) 964,603 913,212
One Bank Ltd. (FDR # 4120006495) 617,089 583,565
One Bank Ltd. (FDR # 4120006600) 150,795 142,762
One Bank Ltd. (FDR # 4120008537) 564,027 533,090
One Bank Ltd. (FDR # 4120008592) 555,402 525,220
One Bank Ltd. (FDR # 4120008606) 273,552 258,977
Phoenix Finance Ltd. (FDR) 17890/17 10,803,255 10,096,500
Phoenix Finance Ltd. (FDR) 23034/17 60,045,546 56,117,333
Phoenix Finance Ltd. (FDR) 17819/16 60,477,410 56,520,944
Phoenix Finance Ltd. (FDR) 17936/17 22,471,175 21,001,098

299,542,765 298,739,249

The above cash at bank balances represents the balance as per cash book which are in agreement with that
of bank statement as on 30th June, 2024 except the following non-operating dorment accounts which are

non-operative for a long time.

Name of Bank Account No. Amount (Tk.) Amount (Tk.)
Agrani Bank Ltd. 7465-9 6,517 6,517
Pubali Bank Ltd. 128 44,481 44,481
Eastern Bank Ltd. 3371 58,214 58,214
United Commercial Bank Ltd. 326 16,507 16,507
Commercial Bank of Ceylon Ltd. 0 24,750 24,750
AB Bank Ltd (Motijheel) 071420 2,619 2,619
Sonali Bank Ltd. (Local) 12116 15,101 15,101
Janata Bank Ltd. 9321 1,500 1,500
American Express 293 21,540 21,540
Arab Bangladesh 1361 7,213 7,213
Janata Bank Ltd. 78 812 812
The Oriental Bank Ltd. 2758 39,670 39,670
IFIC Bank Ltd. 81734 15,323 15,323
The Oriental Bank Ltd. 04290 32,040 32,040
Islami Bank BD Ltd. (F.Ex.Br) 5016 99,565 99,565
One Bank Ltd. 7008 75,868 75,868
Mercantile Bank Ltd. 20178 123,168 123,168
BRAC Bank Ltd.1 23001 3,353 3,353
Standard Bank Ltd. (Principal Branch) 7992 - 869,282
Sahajalal Bank Ltd. 8504 169,806 169,806
IFIC Bank Ltd. 87525 97,000 97,000
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Name of Bank Account No. Amount (Tk.) Amount (Tk.)
United Commercial Bank Ltd. 3144 199,305 199,305
One Bank Ltd. 6006 31,020 31,020
AB Bank Ltd. 43-000 100,000 100,000
Standard Bank Ltd. 1815 - 394,782
IFIC Bank Ltd. (Federation) Share A/C 95,006 95,006
The City Bank Ltd. (Banani) 90001 - 89,448
Midland bank Ltd. 11050000030 85,483 -
BD Commerce Bank Ltd. 832 100,000 100,000
NRB Bank Ltd. 0 97,435 97,435
Premier Bank Ltd. 268 98,390 98,390
Sahajalal Islami Bank Ltd. 12906 9,310 9,310
Rupali Bank Ltd. (Local) 216 10,000 10,000
AB Bank Ltd. 36000 10,000 10,000
1,690,994 2,959,023

Share capital

Authorized capital:

120,000,000 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each
180,000,000 Cum. redeemable preference shares of Tk. 10 each

Ordinary Share capital:
Issued, subscribed and paid up

105,544,995 Ordinary Shares @ Tk. 10/- each.

Sponsors
Financial Institution
General Public

1,200,000,000

1,200,000,000

1,800,000,000 1,800,000,000
3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000
309,495,310 309,495,310
386,326,330 386,326,330
359,628,310 359,628,310
1,055,449,950 1,055,449,950

The Position of Ordinary shareholders as on June 30,2024 was as follows :

. Num. of Share Holding Share Holding
Particulars Num. of Shares
Investors '2024 '2023
Sponsors and Directors 6 30,949,531 29.32% 29.32%
Financial Institution 321 35,209,425 33.36% 36.60%
General Public 18,929 39,386,039 37.32% 34.07%
Total 19256 105,544,995 100% 100%

The classification of shareholders by holding as

on June 30, 2024 was as follows :

. Num. of No. of share. Share Holding Share Holding
No. of share holdings
Investors holders '2024 '2023
1to 500 11428 1,752,058 1.66% 1.64%
501 to 5000 6184 10,603,190 10.05% 9.19%
5001 to 10000 833 6,125,594 5.80% 4.78%
10001 to 20000 457 6,600,903 6.25% 5.01%
20001 to 30000 135 3,374,654 3.20% 2.68%
30001 to 40000 58 2,027,125 1.92% 1.48%
40001 to 50000 38 1,739,818 1.65% 1.06%
50001 to 100000 64 4,552,635 4.31% 3.94%
100001 to 1000000 46 12,704,818 12.04% 12.35%
Above 1000000 13 56,064,200 53.12% 57.85%
Total 19256 105,544,995 100% 100%
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Amount In Taka |
June 30,2024 || June 30,2023 |

Notes Particulars

16.00

Net Premium Up to 2006 250,191,730 250,191,730
Net Premium in 2010 1,675,666,609 1,675,666,609
1,925,858,339 1,925,858,339
17.00 Reserves
Tax holiday reserve 12,338,231 12,338,231
Dividend equalization fund 4,000,000 4,000,000
General reserve 51,000,000 51,000,000
67,338,231 67,338,231
The Company has obtained tax holiday facilities for body building unit for the period of five years with effect from may 05, 1997.
18.00 Consolidated Long Term loan-Net of current portion
Agrani Bank Ltd. 2,004,025,269 1,985,773,092
SBAC bank Ltd. 96,416,344 99,693,627
Mutual trust bank ltd. 82,200,393 128,698,779
Midland Bank Ltd. 53,833,155 59,263,977
One Bank Ltd. 481,467,194 455,629,409
NCC Bank Ltd. 221,564,452 214,252,946
Bank Asia Ltd. 1,216,151,868 1,131,051,015
Dhaka Bank Ltd. 515,955,643 478,409,961
Mercantile Bank Ltd. 305,621,375 286,797,161
Standard Bank Ltd. 111,004,162 111,609,929
Southeast Bank Ltd. 307,023,107 299,905,898
The City Bank Ltd. 68,744,768 81,758,389
Peoples Leasing 230,400,000 171,058,533
Bay Leasing 155,560,636 141,977,570
GSP Finance 493,400,000 420,300,000
Midas financing 57,065,347 57,065,347
Union Capital 155,202,728 155,202,728
BD Finance Ltd. 64,411,916 64,411,916
First Security Islami Bank Ltd. 150,000,000 150,000,000
IFIC Bank Ltd. 3,239,042,393 1,752,099,465
Phoenix Finance 1,009,158,659 926,091,800
Trust Bank Ltd. 469,952,087 457,464,506
Dutch-Bangla Bank Ltd. 1,725,468,790 1,621,419,173
Social Islami Bank Ltd. 79,280,432 77,362,107
Modhumoti bank Ltd. 609,358,320 563,457,888
13,902,309,039 11,890,755,215
less: Long Term loan-Current maturity 3,475,577,260 2,972,688,804
Long Term loan-Net of Non-current maturity 10,426,731,779 8,918,066,412
19.00 Consolidated Short-term loan
Agrani Bank Ltd. 1,818,334,314 1,777,006,526
NRB Commercial Ltd. 625,828,478 561,147,888
Mercantile Bank Ltd. 340,500,000 320,830,157
Prime bank Ltd. 45,539,216 41,918,972
SBAC bank Ltd. 33,071,671 31,430,390
Southeast Bank Ltd. 1,007,756,499 933,745,642
Janata Bank Ltd. 592,610,481 579,379,595
Al-Arafah Islami Bank Ltd. 50,321,111 27,187,076
IFIC Bank Ltd. 49,655 1,172,411,499
Shahjalal Islami bank Itd. 241,963,491 229,600,199
Modhumoti bank Ltd. 172,032,824 164,664,795
Islamic Finance & Investment Ltd. 31,200,754 30,000,679
Phoenix Finance & Investments Ltd. 92,778,010 85,258,213
5,051,986,504 5,954,581,632

Share premium.
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Amount In Taka
Notes Particulars
June 30,2024 | | June 30,2023
20.00 Consolidated Accrued and Other Current Liabilities
Payable to suppliers 61,976,450 373,772,140
Advance against sales 755,000,000 -
Liability for expenses 140,924,572 141,108,539
Provision for Income tax 873,451,840 865,622,132
Payable for Workers profit Participation Fund 8,300,631 10,201,099
Provision for other finance 34,635,427 42,252,691
1,874,288,920 1,432,956,602
21.00 Consolidated Unclaimed dividend 151,419,439 103,033,470
Opening Balance 103,033,470 95,916,541
Add: Cash Dividend During the year 64,062,698 29,548,863
167,096,168 125,465,404
Less: Dividend Paid During the year 15,676,729 22,431,934
Closing Balance 151,419,439 103,033,470
The ageing of Unclaimed Dividend are as follows
Unclaimed for less than 3 Year's 69,227,559 35,565,771
Unclaimed for more than 3 Year's 82,191,880 67,467,699
151,419,439 103,033,470
22.00 Consolidated revenues
Aftab automobiles Ltd. (Gross Sales) 132,538,961 990,240,000
Navana Batteries Limited (Gross Sales) 397,689,347 229,363,048
530,228,308 1,219,603,048
Less: VAT 53,477,668 34,691,776
476,750,640 1,184,911,272
23.00 Consolidated cost of goods sold
Opening stock of direct raw materials 350,506,533 407,648,411
Purchases of direct raw material (Note-23.1) 173,395,019 698,326,547
Direct raw materials available for consumption 523,901,552 1,105,974,958
Closing stock of direct raw materials (Note- 11) 305,841,140 350,506,533
Raw materials consumed 218,060,412 755,468,425
Add : Opening WIP 461,013,265 380,495,799
679,073,677 1,135,964,224
Less : Closing WIP ( Note- 11) 447,693,521 461,013,265
231,380,156 674,950,959
Indirect materials 1,063,583 2,226,320
Total consumption 232,443,739 677,177,279
Factory overhead (Note-23.2) 131,799,241 163,177,200
Cost of production 364,242,980 840,354,479
Opening Finished products 485,314,740 611,016,232
849,557,720 1,451,370,711
Closing Finished products ( Note- 11) 500,017,194 485,314,740
349,540,526 966,055,971
23.01 Consolidated Purchases of direct raw material
Import Purchase 169,286,471 646,706,855
Local Purchase 4,108,547 51,619,691
173,395,019 698,326,547
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Amount In Taka

Notes Particulars
June30,2024 ||  June30,2023 |

23.02 Consolidated Factory overhead
Salary and allowances 38,348,593 51,487,155
Gratuity - 1,283,443
Liveries and Uniform 132,149 210,777
Telephone,Fax, Mobile 296,298 211,250
Fuel and Lubricants 865,652 1,175,641
Conveyance 84,747 282,260
Entertainment 225,446 814,315
Office Expenses - 9,940
Maintenance expenses 67,305 28,645
Electricity Bill 36,135,037 21,737,548
Fees & Registration 117,037 19,325
Duty and Allowance 379,650 236,550
Canteen Subsidies 2,484,097 1,513,065
Insurance Premium 629,440 103,071
Factory Rent - 3,144,200
Fire Insurance 465,667 1,219,941
Gas 4,795,642 1,536,916
WASA 48,103 16,753
Mobile Bill 72,949 30,130
Internet Bill 86,600 198,340
Welfare expenses 25,184 423,980
Carrying & handling 411,608 199,060
News Paper Bill 6,359 5,612
Photocopy Charges 620 5,333
Postage 27,866 6,295
Repairs and maintenance ( vehicle) 100,659 52,930
Security Exps 3,973,200 1,904,980
Chemicals 20,200 58,165
Printing & Stationary 122,007 11,136
Labour Charges 120,601 47,526
Laboratory Exps 69,660 55,474
Pick up Maintenance - 4,770
Generator Servicing - 59,160
Forklift Servicing 123,532 14,880
Office Maintenance 40,049 28,478
Factory Maintenance 135,318 242,303
Renewal Fee 356,766 388,937
Fire Extinguisher 24,350 30,350
Nursary & Sapline 32,515 -
Depreciation 40,974,335 74,378,566

131,799,241 163,177,200

24.00 Consolidated administrative expenses
Salary and allowances 17,007,660 20,887,427
Gratuity - 1,085,609
Entertainment 184,652 306,888
AGM expenses. 50,000 50,000
Conveyance 192,815 728,726
Travelling Exp 255,314 25,892
Stationery 229,743 146,744
Fees and Registration 64,868 9,954
Telephone 195,587 186,185
Internet Charge 571,893 502,830
Mobile Phone Charge 75,790 179,296
Electricity Bill 14,623,519 399,660
Office Rent 918,000 -
Rent, rates and taxes 1,047,986 -
Insurance premium 57,785 44,906
Bank charges 3,114,492 2,747,410
Bank Guarantee & Charge documents - 9,458
Audit fees 732,940 586,500
News Paper Bill 15,832 17,369
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Amount In Taka

Notes Particulars
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Printing 239,690 518,040
Postage and telegram 28,977 14,122
Advertisement and Publicity 122,520 154,026
Directors fee 331,000 484,000
Repair and maintenance (Vehicle) 27,060 491,800
Software maintenance (ITES Service) 117,000 6,626
Office maintenance 153,594 163,194
Maintenance expenses - 4,500
Director Remuneration 4,200,000 4,200,000
WASA Bill 43,958 43,946
Carrying & Handling - 7,840
Photocopy Expenses - 430
Gas - 8,969
CDBL Fee 106,000 124,470
Credit Rating Fee 107,500 107,500
BAPLC Fee 50,000 50,000
Membership Fee 98,350 73,350
Consultancy Fee/ Professional - 212,750
Renewal Fee - 196,075
Trade License & IRC Renewal Fee 57,610 72,010
RJSC 11,196 64,300
Office Cleaning 270,600 285,480
Canteen Subsidy 216,684 338,566
Security Exps 197,536 343,805
Drinking Water 13,092 14,357
Fuel & Lubricants 44,145 88,512
Annual Listing Fee 1,022,180 1,287,320
Unrealized Loss - 1,689,295
Computer Consumable 19,348 -
Depreciation 23,019,148 6,368,845

69,836,064 45,328,982

25.00 Consolidated selling and distribution expenses

Salary & Allowance 12,532,045 8,640,152
Fuel & Lubricant 235,680 88,509
Promotional Exps 1,436,000 32,166
Delivery Exps 953,680 319,705
Office Rent (Showroom) 2,261,084 1,085,600
Conveyance 26,565 31,843
Entertainment 154,599 49,889
Stationery 24,975 7,889
Telephone 99,482 53,782
Fees & Registration 203,303 30,712
Maintenance 40,527 25,390
Repair & Maintenance (Vehicle) 180,652 129,283
Electricity Bill 455,687 110,112
Postage & Telegram 7,763 12,610
News Paper Bill 6,582 6,714
Bank Charges 361,432 20,045
Security Expenses 1,374,602 475,200
Office Maintenance 59,798 34,906
Acid purchases 56,898 33,450
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Amount In Taka |

Notes Particulars
June 30,2024 | [ June 30,2023 |
Gift & Donation 3,650 2,994
Utility Bill ( WASA ) 186,110 -
Expected Credit Loss - 22,199,379
Chemical & Packing exps - 12,062
Depreciation 24,929,441 8,268,397
45,590,555 41,670,789
26.00 Consolidated financial charges
Aftab Automobiles Ltd. 181,352,972 166,118,350
Navana Batteries Ltd. 58,576,315 50,494,958
239,929,287 216,613,308
27.00 Consolidated non-operating income
Interest on FDR & SND 16,588,770 | | 19,517,300
16,588,770 19,517,300
28.00 Consolidated Income tax expense
Current tax
Aftab Automobiles Ltd. (Note: 28.1) 5,418,251 7,203,574
Navana Batteries Ltd. (Note: 28.2) 2,411,456 1,622,651
7,829,707 8,826,225
28.01  Current Tax- Aftab Automobiles Ltd.
Operating profit (218,620,634) (65,882,895)
Other Income 16,588,770 19,517,300
Contribution to WPPF - -
Expected Credit Loss (Bad debts) - 22,199,379
Add: Accounting depreciation 55,693,459 57,356,624
Less: Tax depreciation (65,723,527) (66,547,689)
Last year adjustment - -
Taxable Profit (212,061,932) (33,357,281)
Corporate tax rate 22.50% 22.50%
Normal Tax liability (47,713,935) (7,505,388)
Minimum Tax liabilities @ 0.6% on Gross Receipt 5,418,251 7,203,574
Current Tax Liabilities (whichever is higher) 5,418,251 7,203,574
28.02  Current Tax- Navana Batteries Ltd.
Operating profit (9,525,158) (18,877,354)
Other Income - -
Contribution to WPPF - -
Bad debts - -
Add: Accounting depreciation 29,496,568 27,599,022
Less: Tax depreciation (44,310,217) (29,677,288)
Last year adjustment - -
Taxable Profit (24,338,807) (20,955,620)
Corporate tax rate 27.50% 30.00%
Normal Tax liability (6,693,172) (6,286,686)
Minimum Tax liabilities @ 0.6% on Gross Receipt 2,411,456 1,622,651
Current Tax Liabilities (Whichever is higher) 2,411,456 1,622,651
29.00 Consolidated of Deferred tax
Total Deferred Tax Expenses (PL AC) (43,442,518) (49,350,738)
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (FS AC) (111,548,879) (68,106,361)
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] Amount In Taka |
Notes Particulars
June 30,2024 | [ June 30,2023 |

Calculation of Deferred tax

A. Aftab Automobiles Ltd.
WDV on PPE as per Accounting Calculation 1,410,223,098 1,442,677,495
WDV on PPE as per Taxable Calculation 1,222,540,379 1,265,024,843
Unabsorbed Dep. 225,929,246 160,205,718
Unused tax loess 332,156,440 265,392,974
Temporary Defference (370,402,966) (247,946,043)
Deferred tax liabilities difference 83,340,667 55,787,860
Opening Deferred Tax (01.07.23) (55,787,859) (34,579,543)
Deferred Tax expenses During The Year (B1) 27,552,808 21,208,317

B. Bad debts as per accounting base 156,308,860 156,308,860
Bad debts as per tax base - -
Temporary Difference (156,308,860) (156,308,860)
Deferred tax liabilities difference 39,077,215 39,077,215
Opening Deferred Tax (01.07.23) 39,077,215 30,174,633
Deferred Tax expenses During The Year (C1) - 8,902,582

C. Gratuity as per accounting base 2,369,052 2,369,052
Gratuity as per tax base - -
Temporary Difference (2,369,052) (2,369,052)
Deferred tax liabilities difference 592,263 592,263
Opening Deferred Tax (01.07.23) 592,263 -
Deferred Tax expenses During The Year (D1) - 592,263
Navana Batteries Ltd

A. WDV on PPE as per Accounting Calculation 957,165,318 925,117,099
WDV on PPE as per Taxable Calculation 783,200,740 765,966,171
Unabsorbed Dep. 99,492,522 55,182,304
Less: Unused tax loass 28,693,073 8,697,058
Temporary Defference 4,578,977 95,271,565
Deferred tax liabilities difference 12,589,219 28,581,469
Opening Deferred Tax (01.07.23) (28,581,470) (45,998,555)
Deferred Tax expenses During The Year (B1) (15,992,251) (17,417,086)

B. Bad debts as per accounting base 4,101,643 4,101,643
Bad debts as per tax base - -
Temporary Difference (4,101,643) (4,101,643)
Deferred tax liabilities difference (1,127,952) (1,230,493)
Opening Deferred Tax (01.07.23) (1,230,493) -
Deferred Tax expenses During The Year (C1) 102,541 (1,230,493)

30.00 Consolidated earnings per share (EPS )

Profit attributable to the equity holders (148,299,128) 4,117,874
Ordinary share(Paid Up capital ) 105,544,995 105,544,995
Consolidated Earnings Per Share (EPS ) (1.41) 0.04

Note: The drop in consolidated EPS from 0.04 in 2023 to (1.41) in 2024 was primarily due to one-time
expenses associated with phasing out the AK1J chassis and introducing the AK8) model. Additionally, the
company made substantial capital investments in upgrading technology, training the workforce, and
adapting operational workflows to accommodate the new model. While these investments had a short-
term impact on profitability, they are essential for fortifying our operational base and positioning the
company for sustainable growth. We anticipate that these investments will generate long-term benefits,
leading to a stabilization of consolidated EPS in the future as we begin to see returns on these strategic

initiatives.
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] Amount In Taka |
Notes Particulars
June 30,2024 | [ June 30,2023 |
31.00 Consolidated Net assets value per share (NAVPS)
Equity attributable to equity holders 5,239,681,222 5,462,575,814
Ordinary share(Paid Up capital ) 105,544,995 105,544,995
Consolidated Net assets value per share (NAVPS) 49.64 51.76
Note: The Consolidated Net Asset Value per Share (NAVPS) dropped from 51.76 in 2023 to 49.64 in 2024,
mainly due to a tough market environment resulting in reduced sales and an overall loss for the year. It's
crucial to understand that this consolidated NAVPS decrease is temporary and is a result of external
pressures and strategic investments aimed at enhancing our long-term operational capabilities and
competitiveness. Despite the current financial challenges, we are dedicated to our growth strategy and
have decided to uphold dividend payments to demonstrate confidence in our business's underlying
strength and commitment to delivering value to shareholders. This decision reflects our belief that,
through effective management and a focus on recovery, we will stabilize and ultimately enhance our
consolidated NAVPS in the upcoming periods.
32.00 Consolidated Net operating cash flows per share (NOCFPS)
Net cash generated by operating activities 529,098,645 251,765,618
Ordinary share(Paid Up capital ) 105,544,995 105,544,995
Net operating cash flows per share (NOCFPS) 5.01 2.39
Note: The company's consolidated NOCFPS saw a significant increase from 2.39 in 2023 to 5.01 in 2024,
highlighting its improved operational efficiency and strong cash-generation capabilities. This growth can be
attributed to effective management of working capital, better collection of receivables, and disciplined
control over expenses. Despite facing external challenges such as political disruptions and the transition of
the chassis model, our core business operations continued to generate healthy cash flows. This positive
trend in operating cash flow demonstrates our strong financial position and operational resilience,
positioning the company to effectively manage future investments and navigate potential market volatility.
33.00 Consolidated Loan and deferred liabilities (Unsecured ) : 25,310,440 25,310,440
Long- term interest free loan from sponsors is carried forward since 1982
34.00 Reconciliation of consolidated cash flows from operating

activities under indirect method:

Net profit/Loss before interest, income tax & WPPF during

. 28,372,266 151,370,359
the period
Depreciation 88,922,923 89,015,809
Interest on lease liability - 10,555,714
Payment of WPPF (2,443,500) (6,495,333)
Income tax paid (4,962,690) (36,166,491)
Changes in current assets and liabilities:
Decrease/ (increase) in inventories 94,660,210 231,825,078
Decrease/ (increase) in advance and prepayments (113,149,458) (475,125,950)
(Decrease)/ increase in payables & accruals 432,959,579 30,627,805
Decrease/ (increase) in trade receivable 4,739,314 256,158,626
Net cash flow from operating activities 529,098,645 251,765,618
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35.00 Related Party Transactions
In accorance with paragraph 19 of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures, the following matters

has been disclosed in the following sequential order:
(i) Parent and Ultimate Controlling Party

There is no such parent company as well as ultimate holding company / controlling party of the company.

(ii) Entities with joint control of, or significant influence over
There is no joint control of, or significant influence over the company.

(iii) Subsidiareis

Navana Batteries Ltd. is a subsideray company which 99.95% Shares owned by the entity (company)

(iv) Associates

Navana Real Estate Limited is an Associate Company of the entity (company).
(v) Joint Venture in which the Entity is a Joint Venturer

The Company has not entered into Joint Venture Agreement in which the Company is a Joint Venturer.

(vi) Transactions with Key Management Personnel and their Compensation

(a) Loans to Director

During the year, no loan was given to the directors of Company
(b) Key Management Personnel and their Compensation
There is no compensation for Chairman, Director and Managing Director except Board Meeting fee but there are
following categories of compensation in accordance with the paragraph 17 of IAS 24: Related Party Disclosures:

) Amount Amount
Particulars
30.06.2024 30.06.2023
Salary (including PF) 67,888,298 81,014,734
Directors Remuneration 4,200,000 4,200,000
Provision for Gratuity - 2,369,052
Board Meeting Attendance Fee 331,000 484,000
Total 72,419,298 88,067,786

Company's key management personnel includes the Company's directors. Compensation includes salary, non-cash
benefits and contributions to a post employment defined benefits plan.

(vii) Other Related Party Transactions
During the period, the company carried out a number of transactions with related parties in the normal course of
business. The name of the related parties, nature of transaction and transaction value have been set out in accordance

with the provisions of IAS 24: Related Party Disclosure are as follows:

Inter Company Receivables

Transaction for the year

Outstanding / Receivable

Nature of
Name of Related Party | Relationship Transactio
saction 2024 2023 2024 2023
- Alliance
Navana Limited . Interest on loan 552,181,795 | 661,054,222 6,057,972,669 5,505,790,874
Companies
. . Alliance
Navana Engineering Ltd. . Interest on loan 51,791,204 | (37,967,629) 78,804,251 27,013,047
Companies
Alliance
Navana Real Estate Ltd. . Interest on loan 78,669,699 | 175,875,179 1,072,690,232 994,020,533
Companies
. Alliance
Navana Construction Ltd. . Interest on loan 125,708,126 | 60,668,626 186,376,752 60,668,626
Companies
. Alliance
Navana Interlinks Ltd. . Interest on loan 7,242,051 2,000,418 9,242,469 2,000,418
Companies
. Alliance
Biponon Ltd. X Interest on loan 9,264,800 8,800,000 18,064,800 8,800,000
Companies
Alliance
Navana Pertoleum Ltd. . Interest on loan 2,127,548 17,583,038 19,710,586 17,583,038
Companies
N Building P Alli
avana Building Product AN | |nterest on loan 9,239,367 827,000 10,066,367 827,000
Ltd. Companies
. Alliance
Navana Furniture Ltd. . Interest on loan 1,106,800 300,000 1,406,800 300,000
Companies
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Inter Company Payables

. . Nature of Transaction for the year Outstanding / Receivable
Name of Party Relationship| .
Transaction 2024 2023 2024 2023
Navana Welding Alliance
Interest on loan - 11,300 19,200,000 19,200,000
Electrode Ltd. Companies
Alliance
Navana Foods Ltd. Interest on loan 2,500,000 1,000,000 3,500,000 1,000,000
Companies
Alliance
Navana LPG Ltd. ) Interest on loan (13,300,000)| 38,950,000 25,650,000 38,950,000
Companies
Alliance
Navana CNG Ltd. . Interest on loan 24,500,000 - 24,500,000 -
Companies
e Alliance
Navana Logistics Ltd. . Interest on loan 2,300,000 - 2,300,000 -
Companies
. Alliance
Navana Electronics Ltd. Interest on loan 5,227,000 - 5,227,000 -
Companies

Amount due by Directors

There is no advance in the name of the directors or associates undertaking of the company.

Number of Employees
During the year total number of employees/workers for the company was 150

Significant Disclosure
Consolidated Revenue:

Aftab Automobiles saw a significant increase in overall revenue, largely attributed to the outstanding performance of its
subsidiary, Navana Batteries Limited. The subsidiary achieved remarkable sales growth compared to the previous year,
making a substantial contribution to the company's total revenue. This growth was fueled by enhanced production
capabilities, effective marketing strategies, and increased market demand for battery products. This positive
performance not only confirms the effectiveness of our growth strategy but also instills optimism about the potential for
future revenue growth, highlighting the synergies within our diverse business segments.

Consolidated Gross Profit:

The increase in gross profit margin from 18.47% in 2023 to 26.68% in 2024 was driven by several factors. The successful
integration of the AK8J chassis led to operational efficiencies and cost savings. Additionally, Navana Batteries Limited's
strong performance, with increased sales volumes, allowed for better absorption of fixed costs, contributing to
improved profitability. This substantial rise in gross profit margin underscores our commitment to streamlining
production processes, optimizing cost structures, and enhancing overall operational efficiency. These efforts, along with
strategic investments in technology and workforce development, have strengthened our ability to deliver improved
financial results and maintain a competitive edge in the market.

Capital Expenditure Commitment
There was no commitment for capital expenditure and also not incurred or provided for the year ended 30th June,
2024.

Contingent Assets
There was no contingent assets as on 30th June, 2024.

Remittance of Dividend
As there were no non-resident shareholders, no dividend was remitted to or received from abroad.

Credit Facility not Availed
There was no credit facility available to the Company under any contract and also not availed as on 30th June, 2024
other than trade credit available in the ordinary course of business.
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Regarding the Board of Directors Meetings, the details are given below:

AAL NBL
Name of the Directors Position
Meeting Held | Attended Meeting Held Attended

Shafiul Islam Chairman 7 4 4 4
Khaleda Islam Director 7 5 4 4
Saiful Islam Managing Director 7 7 4 4
Sajedul Islam Director 7 6 4 4
Farhana Islam Director 7 4 4 4
Md. Mustafizur Rahman Independent Director 7 4 4 -
Abul Layes Afsary Independent Director 7 4 4 -

Auditors fees for service rendered

As per schedule XI, part I, para 6 of the Companies Act, 1994, auditors are only paid audit fees (including VAT) of
Tk. 732,940. No other service has been taken from the auditor hence other then this no other fees given to aditor.

Disclosures as per Requirement of Schedule X, Part Il of the Companies Act, 1994 (Employee Position as on 30th June, 2024)

(A) Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part I, Notes 5 of Para 3

Monthly Salary Range Head Office Factory No. of Employee

Above 5000 29,539,705 38,348,593 150

Below 5000 Nil Nil Nil
(B) Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule X, Part I, Para 4
Payment/Perquisites to Directors and Officers

. . . Festival )
Name of the Directors Position Remuneration 8 AIT Deduction Net Amount

onus

Shafiul Islam Chairman
Khaleda Islam Director
Saiful Islam Managing Director 42,00,000 4,20,000 37,80,000
Sajedul Islam Director
Farhana Islam Director

Md. Mustafizur Rahman

Independent Director

Abul Layes Afsary

Independent Director

The period of payment to Directors is from 1st July 2023 to 30th June 2024.

The above Directors of the Company did not take any benefit from the Company other than the remuneration and

festival bonus.

1. Expenses reimbused to the managing agent: Nil.

2. Commission or other remuneration payable seperately to a managing agent or his associate: Nil.

3. Commission received or receivable by the managing agent or his associate as selling or buying agent of other concerns

in respect of contracts entered into such concerns with the company: Nil.

4. The money value of the contracts for the sale or purchase of goods and materials or supply of services, entered into

by the company with the managing agent or his associate during the financial year: Nil.

Pernsions: Nil.
Gratuities: Nil.

LN !

Payments from Provident Fund: Nil.

10. Compensatin for Loss of Office: Nil.

Any other perquisites or benefit in cash or in kind stating: Nil.

Other allowances and commission including guarantee commission: Nil.

11.Consideration in connection with retirement from office: Nil.
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Requirements under Condition No.

Compliance
status of
Disclosure of
Schedule XI, Part

Il, Para 3
3(i)(a) The Turnover 476,750,640
3(i)(b) Commission Paid to Selling Agents (Incentive) N/A
3(i)(c) Brokerage and discount of Sales, Other than the usual trade discount Nill
3(i)(d)(i) The value of the raw materials consumed, giving item-wise as possible 218,060,412

3(i)(d)(ii) The opening and closing stocks of goods produced

OB 485,314,740,
CB 500,017,194

3(i) (e) In the case of companies, the purchase made and the opening and closing stocks

N/A

3(i)(f) In the case of companies rendering or supplying services, the gross income derived from
services rendered or supplied

127,210,114

3(i)(g) Opening and closing stocks, purchases, sales and consumption of raw materials with value and

quantity break up for the Company, which falls under one or more categories i.e. manufacturing Complied
and/or trading
3(i)(h) In the case of other companies, the gross income derived under different heads 44,236,004

3(i)(i) Work-in-progress, which have been completed at the commencement and at the end of the

accounting period

0B 461,013,265,
CB 447,693,521

3(i)(i) Provision for depreciation, renewals or diminution in value of fixed assets N/A
3(i)(k) Interest on the debenture paid or payable to the Managing Director, Managing Agent and the N/A
Manager

3(i)(1) Charge for income tax and other taxation on profits 35,612,810
3(i)(m) Reserved for repayment of share capital and repayment of loans Nill
3(i)(n)(i) Amount set aside or proposed to be set aside, to reserves, but not including provisions

made to meet any specific liability, contingency or commitment, known to exist at the date as at Nill
which the balance sheet is made up

3(i)(n)(ii) Amount withdrawn from above mentioned reserve Nill
3(i)(o)(i) Amount set aside to provisions made for meeting specific liabilities, contingencies of Nill
commitments.

3(i)(o)(i) Amount withdrawn from above mentioned provisions, as no longer required. Nill
3(i)(p) Expenditure incurred on each of the following items, seperately for each item:

(i) Power and Fuel 52,359,720
(ii) Rent 3,179,084
(iii) Repairs of Buildings 135,318
(iv) Repairs of Machinery 123,532
(v) Other include:

(1) Salaries, wages and bonus 67,888,298
(2) Workmen and staff welfare expenses 157,333
(3) Reserve 67,338,231
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i. Disclosure in line with 4(a) of Part | of Schedule XI

The details of trade receivable are given below:

SI. No. Particulars UL AR
30.06.2024 30.06.2023
1 Within 3 Months 1,169,554,203 1,173,387,834
2 Within 6 Months 978,224,876 982,470,917
3 Within 12 Months 1,036,385,745 1,021,442,612
4 More than 12 Months 2,119,229,095 2,130,831,870

ii. Disclosure in line with 4(b) of part | of Schedule XI
There are no debts outstanding in this respect.

Disclosure in line with Instruction of Part of Schedule XI
In regard to sundry debtors the following particulars shall be given separately:

(1) Debt considered good in respect of which the company is fully secured
Within six months trade debtors occurred in the ordinary course of business are considered good but no security given
by the debtors.

(11) Debt considered good for which the company holds no security other than the debtors' personal security
Within six months trade debtors have arisen in the ordinary course of business in good faith as well as market

reputation of the company for the above mentioned reasons no personal security taken from debtors.

(1) Debt considered doubtful or bad
The company considered more than one-year debts to be doubtful and a provision was created for Tk. Nill.

(IV) Debt due by directos or other officers of the Company
There is no debt due by directors or other officers of the company.

(V) Debt due by common management
There is no debt under common management.

(V1) The maximum amount due by directors or other officers of the Company
There is no such debt in this respect.

Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il, Para 7
Details of Production Capacity Utilization:

Particulars Assembling Body NBL Total

Production Capacity

. 2400 400 210,000 212,800
(Vehicle/Battery)
Produciton duting the year 22 5 32,309 32,336
Capacity Utilization (%) 0.92% 1.25% 15.39% 15.20%
Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule X, Part Il, Para 8(b) during the year under audit.
Details of import on CIF basis
i. Raw Materials

Purchase in Taka L
Items Consumption in Taka Percentage
Import Local Total

Raw Materials (Hino) 49,105,477 4,108,547 53,214,025 77,824,212 146%
Raw Materials (Battery) 0 120,180,994 | 120,180,994 154,619,527 129%
Total 49,105,477 | 124,289,541| 173,395,019 232,443,739
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The value of imported material is calculated on CIF Basis.

ii. The Company has not incurred any expenditure in foreign currency for the period from
2024 on account of royalty, know-how, professional fee, consultancy fees and interest.

MZ Islam & Co.
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1st July, 2023 to 30th June,

iii. The Company has not earned any foreign exchanges for royalty, know-how, professional fees and consultancy fees.

iv. The value of export from the period from 1st July, 2023 to 30th June, 2024.
Schedule XI, Part 11, Para 8(b) & Para 8(d) Foreign Currencies remitted during the year

During the year under review the company did not remit any amount as dividend, technical know-how, royalty,

professional consultation fees, interest and other matters either its shareholder or others.

Disclosure for purchase in foreign currency during the year

Disclosure as per Para 8 of Schedule XI (kh) of the Companies Act, 1994 regarding purchase made in foreign currency

during the year are as follows:

Type of Expenditure Amount in Foreign Currency Amount in BDT.
Import of Raw Material (Hino Bus Chassis CKD) ¥ 60,150,000 49,105,477
Import of Raw Material (Battery) Nil -
Total 49,105,477
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53.00 Financial Instrument-Fair Values and Risk Management

53.01 Accounting Classifications and Fair Values
The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities. It does not include fair value information for financial assets
and financial liabilities not measured at fair value as the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Carrying Amount Tk. '000
Reconciliation of Carrying Amount Fair V?Iue Mandatory FVOCI-debt] FVOCI-equity Financial assets Other
Notes | Hedging | at FVTPL- e | e at amortized Financial Total Amount
Instrument]  gthers cost Liabilities
30.06.2024
Financial Assets measured at Fair
Value:
Equity Securities
Financial Assets not measured at
Fair Value:
Receivables 10 - - - - 5,303,394 - 5,303,394
Advance, Deposit & Prepayments 13 R R _ _ 8,196,719 _ 8,196,719
Investments in securities and 482,563
associate company 3 - - R - 482,563
Deferred Tax Assets 29 111,549 111,549
Cash and Cash Equivalents 14 - - R R 302,609 R 302,609
Total - - - - 14,396,833 - 14,396,833
Financial Liabilities measured at fair -
value:
Financial Liabilities not measured at -
fair value:
Loan and deferred liabilities 25,310
33

(Unsecured) - - - R 25,310
Long Term Loan 18 _ _ R R 13,902,309 13,902,309
Lease Liability . _ - B 38,884 38,884
Short Term Loan 19 _ _ R _ 5,051,987 5,051,987
Accrued and Other Current Liabilities 20 1,874,289

- - - - 1,874,289
Unclaimed Dividend Account 21 R R R - 151,419 151,419
Total - - - - - 21,044,198 21,044,198
30.06.2023 R
Financial Assets measured at Fair -
Value:
Equity Securities -
Financial Assets not measured at -
Fair Value:
Receivables 10 - - - - 5,308,133 - 5,308,133
Advance, Deposit & Prepayments 13 - - - - 7,666,690 - 7,666,690
Investments in securities and 9 454,916
associate company 454,916
Deferred Tax Assets 29 68,106 68,106
Cash and Cash Equivalents 14 - - - - 299,905 - 299,905
Total - - - - 13,797,750 - 13,797,750
Financial Liabilities measured at fair -
value:
Financial Liabilities not measured at -
fair value:
Loan and deferred liabilities 33 25,310
(Unsecured) 25,310
Long Term Loan 18 - - - - - 11,890,755 11,890,755
Lease Liability - - - - - 37,600 37,600
Short Term Loan 19 - - - - - 5,954,582 5,954,582
Accrued and Other Current Liabilities 20 1,432,957

- - - - - 1,432,957
Unclaimed Dividend Account 21 - - - - - 103,033 103,033
Total o = - - - 19,444,237 19,444,237

Advances, deposits and prepayments are not included in the financial assets.

The company has not disclosed the fair values for financial instruments such as trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, investment in
subsidiaries, investment, trade/security deposit, employment benefits, short term interest bearing loans, accrued & other current liabilities and
unclaimed dividend account because of thair carrving amount are a reasonable approximation of fair value.
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Financial Risk Management Framework

The Company's management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the company's risk
management framework. The Company's Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks
faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflact changes in market conditions and the
Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to
maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations. The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

53.02.1 Credit Risk, 53.02.2 Liquidity Risk 53.02.3 Market Risk.

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails
to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the company's receivable.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of customer, including
the default risk of the industry and financial strength of the customer, as these factors may have an influence on
credit risk. Geographically there is no concentration of credit risk.

The debtors management review committee has established a credit policy under which each new customer is
analysed individually for creditworthiness before the company’s payment and delivery terms and conditions are
offered. Credit limits are established for each customer, which represents the maximum outstanding amount of
credit sale without requiring approval from the committee; these limits are reviewed as per guideline of Aftab
Automobiles Limited in each quarter. Customers that fail to meet the company’s benchmark creditworthiness may
transact with the company only on a cash / deposit scheme basis.

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitor on an ongoing basis. As at 30th
June, 2024, substantial part of the receivables are as follows and subject to insignificant credit risk. Risk exposure
from other financial assets, i.e. Cash at bank and other external receivables are also nominal.

(i) Exposure to Credit Risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit
risk at the reporting data was:

Non-Derivative Financial Assets: Amount in Taka
30.06.2024 30.06.2023
Receivables 5,303,393,920 5,308,133,234
Inter Company Transactions 7,373,957,925 6,557,853,536
Advance to Suppliers 1,006,239,942 982,183,496
Advance to Employees 42,078,747 44,709,034
Advance to Others 666,499,404 518,642,633
Security & Deposits 318,184,446 321,245,146
Cash at Bank 299,542,765 298,739,249
Cash in Hand 3,064,768 1,165,815
Total 15,012,961,917 14,032,672,142

At 30th June, 2024 the maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other

regions was as follows:

receivables by geographic

Amount in Taka

30.06.2024

30.06.2023

Domestic

5,303,393,920

5,308,133,234

Foreign Receivable

5,303,393,920

5,308,133,234
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Ageing Schedule of Receivables: 5,303,393,920 5,308,133,234
Duration

1-30 days 323,905,004 329,561,430
31-60 days 342,971,872 335,877,995
61-90 days 502,677,327 507,948,410
91-180 days 978,224,876 982,470,917
181-365 days 1,036,385,745 1,021,442,612
Over 365 days 2,119,229,095 2,130,831,870
Total 5,303,393,920 5,308,133,234

To mitigate the credit risk against trade receivables and others, the company has a system of specific credit line period to the
customers. This outstanding period and amount are regularly monitored. The company endeavors to cover the credit risks on all
other receivables, where possible, by restricting credit facility and stringent monitoring.

53.02.2 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The company's
approach to managing liquidity (cash and cash equivalents) is to ensure, as far possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity
to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the company's reputation. Typically, the company ensures that it has sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet
expected operational expenses, including financial obligations through preparation of the cash flow forecast, prepaid based on
time line of payment of the financial obligation and accordingly arrange for sufficient liquidity / fund to make the expected

payment within due date.

Exposure to Liquitty Risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and
include estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements. The carring amount of financial liability represent the
maximum exposure to liquidity risk. The maximum exposure to liquidity risk as at 30th June, 2024.

30th June, 2024
Contractual Cash Flows
In Taka Notes | Carrying Amount Total 2 months or less|  2-12 months 1-5 years

Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Long and Deferred Liabilities (Unsecured) 33 25,310,440 25,310,440 2,531,044 7,593,132 15,186,264
Long Term Loan-Non-Current Maturity 18 10,426,731,779 10,426,731,779 1,042,673,178 3,128,019,534 6,256,039,067
Lease Liability 38,884,000 38,884,000 - 15,553,600 23,330,400
Long Term Loan-Current Maturity 18 3,475,577,260 3,475,577,260 347,557,726 1,042,673,178 2,085,346,356
Short Term Loan 19 5,051,986,504 5,051,986,504 - 2,020,794,602 3,031,191,902
Accrued and Other Current Liabilities 20 1,874,288,920 1,874,288,920 187,428,892 562,286,676 1,124,573,352
Unclaimed Dividend Account 21 151,419,439 151,419,439 15,141,944 45,425,832 90,851,663

21,044,198,342 21,044,198,342 1,595,332,784 6,822,346,553 12,626,519,005
Derivative financial liabilities - - -

21,044,198,342 21,044,198,342 1,595,332,784 6,822,346,553 12,626,519,005
30th June, 2023

Contractual Cash Flows
In Taka Note [ Carrying Amount Total 2 months or less|  2-12 months 1-5 years
Non-derivative financial liabilities:
Long and Deferred Liabilities (Unsecured) 33 25,310,440 25,310,440 2,531,044 7,593,132 15,186,264
Long Term Loan-Non-Current Maturity 18 8,918,066,412 8,918,066,412 891,806,642 2,675,419,923 5,350,839,847
Long Term Loan-Current Maturity 18 2,972,688,804 2,972,688,804 297,268,881 891,806,641 1,783,613,282
Short Term Loan 19 5,954,581,632 5,954,581,632 - 2,381,832,653 3,572,748,979
Accrued and Other Current Liabilities 20 1,432,956,602 1,432,956,602 143,295,660 429,886,981 859,773,961
Unclaimed Dividend Account 21 103,033,470 103,033,470 10,303,347 30,910,041 61,820,082
19,406,637,360 19,406,637,360 1,345,205,574 6,417,449,371 11,643,982,415
Derivative financial liabilities - -
19,406,637,360 19,406,637,360 1,345,205,574 6,417,449,371 11,643,982,415
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53.02.3 Market Risk

54.00

55.00

Market risk is the risk that any change in market price, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the
company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters.

(i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rate. Exposure to fair value movement relates to fixed rate instrument subject to fair value accounting
and exposure to cash flow fluctuation relates to variable rate instruments. The compan is primarily exposed to cash flow
fluctuation arising from variable rate borrowings. The objective of interest rate management for the Aftab Automobiles
Limited is to reduce financial cost and ensure predictability.

(i) Currency Risk

The company is exposed to currency risk on certain revenues and purchases such as revenue from foreign customers and
import of raw material, machineries and equipment. Majority of the company's foreign currency transactions are
denominated in USD and relate to procurement of raw materials, machineries and equipment from abroad.

Capital Management

Capital management refers to implementing policies and measures to maintain sufficient capital, assessing company’s
internal capital adequacy to ensure company’s operation as a going concern. Capital consists of share capital, general
reserve and revaluation reserve. All major investment and operational decisions with exposure to certain amount are
evaluated and approved by the board. The board of directors monitors the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

Event after the Reporting Period

The directors in the meeting held on 27th day of October 2024 recommended 10% cash dividend for the general
shareholders only excluding sponsors & directors whose name will be appeared in the shareholders' registers at the date
of record date which is subject to shareholders' approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 24th
day of December 2024.

"Except the fact stated above, no circumstances have been arisen since the balance sheet date which would require
adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements or notes thereto."

89 aftab automobiles limited



€LT'vV8'88 9ITvS9‘E £20°06T'S8 leloL

Tr7'676'7C TEET6T 60T'LE9VT (8ul13S) 3un022Yy $507 78 1Y0Id

86€'0v67C €80°€L STE'L98°CT (ulpy) 3UN022Y $507 7 1404d

SEEVLE'0Y T€L'88T'E €09'689°L€E (H/0 Ao1oeq ) pjos spoos Jo 150D

|exoy $19sSYy asea eyel : 0} pasdieyd uonerasdag
16S'V6L L9ET 00€‘TTT'TIOT _ L¥9'SS6'V8 €59'552°926 _ _ 768'S00°6LE'E _ TL9'Tev0se 022'v8S‘8TT'E €20 ‘0€ 3unr je se duejeg
786'T09°680°C 88Y'STY'L66 - £T0°061°S8 19v'SCTTT6 0LY'L10£80°€E - 678€8L'V8 TT9'EETT00E 202 ‘0€ dunr 1e se duejeg
€85'SY6'8 L8L'VL8TT - 756666 €€8°088'TT %0T | 0LE'0T8'TT - - 0L€'028TT uouejjeisul aul| sen
09€'LL9TT 8/8'TL8VT - v8Y'L6T'T ¥6E'SLSET %0T | 8€T'0S5°9C - - 8€7'055°9C uoye.033Q AYO
¥9'€80°9 LEY'BTTE - 096'SL9 9/9'€vY’8 %0T | T8T'€0T'ST - - 182'€0T'ST uone|jeisul aul| [ed14193(3
089'7LSTY €9/'709'66 0LT'e6€°0T €65'807'68 %0C SYY'vLTTIT - - SYYVLTTIT S3IIY3A Hodsued|
TSEVIV'YT €69'7TY'ST - 0ST209°T EVSLT8'ET %0T ¥¥0'688°6€ - - ¥¥0'688°6€ 94NIXI4 1@ aInyuINg
£90'SST°0C £98'850°ey - ISP'6ET'T TTV'618°0F %0T | 0€6'€TTE9 - - 0€6'€TT'E9 juawdinb3 320
8S¥'98€°LT 9G4'7TSTIT - £89'896°€ 690'7SS°L0T %0C | ¥17'606'8CT - 795°29T'T 759'T¥9'9CT syuawdinb3 g sjooy
TT9'96L'8LT 879'LYT'SLY - 062'998°6T 8€E'T8TSSY %0T | 6£TVV6'€S9 - - 6€C' VY659 Asauiyoe g Jue|d
0€C'LT0'8TT TT1'685'66 - 808'905'6C €0€'780°0L %0C | TYE'919°LTT - - TVE9TI'LTT sapeys
LLT'€0T'T09 TLE'€0T'90T - TLO'TV9'VT 00€795°16 %0S°C | 6¥9°90%'L0L - ¥29'687°0€ 920'TTT'LL9 sulp|ing
07L68T'TL0'T - - - - - 02.'68T°TLOT - €99°0€T'CS £S0°650°6T0‘T Juawdojanaq pueT 1 pueT

¥202Z ‘0€ ¥20Z ‘og dunf | Jeaj ayl Jeahk ayy €202 ‘10 " ¥20z ‘o€ jesodsig Jeahk ayy €202 ‘10
aunr e se anjep uo se dduejeg *a’lpv | 8uung pasieyy | Anrae se aouejeg o wawz aunr uo se auejeg : Sulng uonippy | Ajnrie se aduejeg siejnoneq
umoq usaniM
uoneaidag parejnwnady 150)

v -ainxauuy

SJUBJUNOOOY poaidliey)d

0D B wejs| ZIN

A

¥20¢ ‘0€ dunf 1e sy

19N ‘Quawdinb3 puy jue|d ‘Ayiadoud
AJeipisqns s31 pue pajiwi sajiqowoiny qeyy

90

aftab automobiles limited



TEV'98L°LLT 018'58686 - - 0t8'586'86 TLT'TLL9LE - - TLT'TLL9LE ¥202 ‘0€ aunf uo se aduejegq
%79'9588¢ 87L'1ST'8T - - 8TL'LST'8T SEVIT LY - - TSEVTTLY uoneJodad Yo
T9TLET'T 165°050°T - - 165°0S0'T T5L18T'E - - TSLL8T'E uoye|jelsul aul [ea11193]3
6VEVSY'ET YSE'STY'9C - - YSE'STY 9T €0£'698'6€ - - €0.'698'6€ S32IYaA Modsues |
S6%'899'S €TV'6LT'Y - - €TY'6LT'Y 8T6'LY6'6 - - 8T6°LY6'6 a4nixi4 g aunjuing
€90°LLY'6 799'659°'L - - 799'659°'L STL9ETLT - - GTL9ETLT awdinb3 50
TTY'CET'E 76L'9Y6'€ - - 76L'9v6'E €TT'6LTL - - ETC'6LT'L sjuawdinb3 xg sjoo
688'9L9'%S 159'695°€€ - - 169'695°€€ 0vS‘Ty'ss - - 0vS'Tre'es Aszuiyoey 13 jueld
1588y 6€8'9VE'T - - 6€8°9VE'T 069'S8L'T - - 069'S8L'T pays
195°062°0C 008'€9t'C - - 008°€9t'C T9€VSL 7T - - T9€'VSL'TT 8ulp|ing
LTO'VSS'6ET - - - - LTO'PSS'6ET - - LTO'VSS'6ET JuawdojaAaq pue g pueT
Jeal ayy 1eal ayy
¥20z ‘0€ ¥20z ‘o€ aunt T Jeak ayy €202 ‘T0AINr | -dag vzoz ‘o€ 3uung Jeak ayy €20C ‘10
aunr je se anjep je se aduejeg mEum:.—_u< M:_._st ww.._mr_u je se aduejeg J0 aunf je se ajuejeg _mmonm_o m:_‘_sn_ uonippy >_:_. je se aduejeg siejnonJed
Uumop usnuMm aley
:o_um_uw._awo paiejnwnddy 1s0)

g -ainxauuy

S}UBJUNODOY poidliey)

0D ® wejs| ZIN

i

¥20T ‘0€ dunr e sy

(suonesadQ panunuodsiqg g 3jes 104 PI9H)
Aueipisqns s31 pue pajiwi sajiqowoiny qeyy

aftab automobiles limited

91



052998 0SL'8L - 0SL8L - 000'S76 - 000°sv6 - ¥20€ ‘0€ aunf uo se aduejeg
052'998 0SL8L - 0SL'8L - %0T | 000'Sv6 - 000'S¥6 - (dy3) ssemyos Jandwo)
, Jeah Jeah —_— . Jeah —_—
‘ aun n . aun n
vzoz ‘ogouny | vZOZOEAUNT| o L suunp | ECOCTOAINM| -daq | veoziogaunr| opupng | EC0% TOAINT
je se anjep je se aduejeg je se duejeg jo je se duejeg je se duejeg siejnoied
waunsnipy | padieyy uonippy :
umop uaniMm oiey
uopeziiowy pajejnwnly 150D

@g-ainxauuy (eseg 8ununoddy) s3assy ajqiSueju|
20T ‘0€ dunfrie sy
judwdinb3 1 jue|d ‘Aadoud jo ajnpayas
>_._m__o_wn_:m S} pue pajiwig sojiqowolny qgeyy
€9V‘TYS‘9E 16191V _ - _ €9T°090 87E‘T0T0C _ _ ¥56°20L'09 _ _ - ¥56°20L'09 €20¢ ‘0€ dunr je se duejeg
LTE'188°TE LE9'ST8'LT - 9PT‘vS9‘E T6V'T9T Ve ¥56'20L09 - - ¥56°20L09 #202 ‘0€ dunr e se duejeg
LTE'/88CE LE9'ST8'LT 9IPT'VS9‘e T6V'T9T'vT %01 ¥56°202°09 - ¥56°202°09 S19sse asn Jo 131y
Jeah A Jedh A
‘ ‘o€ aun ied ‘ n . ‘o€ aun ‘ n
20z ‘o€ 20t ‘o€ r A ays Supng €202 TOAINM | -daqg | V20T ‘0€ r esodsia | ays Sunng €20C "TOAINf
aunrjese anjep| Uoseaduejeg |ayi-q ‘Ipy e se ajuejeg J0 uo se dduejeg 1e se dduejeg siejnagJeq
pasieyd uonIppy :
umoq UspMm aley

uoneasdag parejnwindoy

150)

J -ainxauuy

SJUBJUNODOY palidliey)d

0D ® wejls| ZIN

1LY

20T ‘0€ dunrie sy
$19SSY JO @S Y31y JO 3npayds
Auielpisqns si1 pue pajiwi sajiqowoiny qeyy

92

aftab automobiles limited



93 aftab automobiles limited



/‘g!g is\l}.,zc,ﬁlws,m ‘f&@éag(. 0 0 An International Affiliated Member Firm of

Wo MGM Accountants Pty Ltd. Australia
Chartered Accountants M

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
AFTAB AUTOMOBILES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Aftab Automobiles Limited (the Company), which comprise the
Statement of Financial Position as at June 30, 2024; Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income; Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the
financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
disclosed in notes 1 to 58 and Annexure- A, B, C, D & E.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view the financial position of the
Company as at June 30, 2024, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Accounting Standard (IASs) and International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) and other applicable laws and regulations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

As per BSEC notification no. BSEC/CMRRCD/2021-391/20/Admin/121, Dated: 01 June 2021, any cash or stock
dividend or right share are laying unclaimed or undistributed or un-allotted for a period of 3 (three) years or
more, shall be transferred to the Capital market Stabilization Fund (CMSF). But the entity didn’t transfer
unclaimed Dividend amounting Tk. 82,191,880 to Capital Market Stabilization Fund (CMSF) which is carry
forwarded more than 3 years.

Our key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of
the financial statements for the year ended on June 30, 2024. These matters were addressed in the context of
the audit of the financial statements as a whole and in forming the auditors’ opinion thereon and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In addition to the matter described in the basis for opinion section each matter mentioned below our description
of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in the context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.

Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the

risks of material misstatements of our financial statements, the results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below;
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Key Audit Matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

Revenue

At year ended the reported total Turnover Tk.
130,933,817. There is also a risk that revenue may be
overstated/ Understated due to the timing
differences.

We identified revenue recognition as key audit
matter as it is one of the key performance Indicators
of the Company, which give rise to an inherent risk of
the existence and the accuracy of the revenue.

We have tested the design and operating effectiveness
of key controls focusing on the following:

e Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design and operating effectiveness of controls
designed to ensure that revenue is recognized in
the appropriate accounting standards.

e Segregation of duties in invoice creation and
modification and timing of revenue recognition.

e Assessing the appropriateness of the company’s
accounting policies for revenue recognition and
compliance of those policies with applicable
accounting standards.

e Obtain supporting documentation for sale
transaction recorded either side of year-end to
determine whether revenue was recognized in
the current period.

e Comparing a sample of revenue transactions
recognized during the year with the sale invoices
and other relevant underlying documentation.

e (Critically assessing manual journals posted to
revenue to identify unusual or irregular items,
and finally assessed the appropriateness and
presentation of disclosures against relevant
accounting standards.

We were satisfied that the revenue recognition
policies have been applied appropriately. Based on
the work performed, we concluded that revenue has
been recorded appropriately.

Inventories

As at June 30, 2024, the reported amount of
inventories is Tk. 411,716,480 held in plants
warehouses.

On the reporting date, inventories are carried at the
lower of cost and net realizable value. As such, the
companies apply judgment in determining the
appropriate values of inventory in accordance with
International Accounting Standard (IAS).

Considering the risk as stated above the valuation of
Inventory is a key audit matter to the Financial
Statements.

We verified the appropriateness of, management’s
assumptions applied in calculating the value of the
inventory as per International Accounting Standard
(1AS) by:

e Evaluating the design and implementation of key
inventory controls operating across the factory,
warehouse.

e We have collected inventory count data sheet
and relevant certification of inventories which
indicates inventory items were maintained in
good condition and maintaining all compliances.
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e Reviewing the historical accuracy of inventory
provisioning and the level of inventory write-offs
during the year.

Obtaining a detailed review with the subsequent
sales to compare with the net realizable value.

We were satisfied that the inventory recognition and
measurement policies have been applied appropriately.
Based on the work performed, we concluded that
inventories have been recorded appropriately.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The carrying value of the tangible fixed assets is Tk.
1,132,436,667 as at June 30, 2024. The valuation of
tangible fixed assets was identified as a key audit
matter due to significance of this balance to the
Financial Statements.

The costs (Capital in nature) are classified as an
asset, if it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the
entity and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably.

The useful lives of tangible fixed assets items are
based on management’s estimates regarding the
period over which an asset is expected to be
available for use. The estimates of the useful life on
the experience of the entity with similar assets and
also take into a consideration the physical condition
of the assets.

Our audit included the following procedures:

e We assessed whether the accounting policies in
relation to the capitalization of expenditures are
in compliance with IFRS and found them to be
consistent.

e We obtained a listing of capital expenditures
incurred during the year and, on a sample basis
checked whether the items were procured during
the year.

e We verified the invoices and L/C documents on
sample basis to segregate the capital and
operation expenditure and found that the
transactions are appropriately classified.

e We evaluated whether the wuseful lives
determined and applied by management were in
line with the nature of assets, the physical
condition of the assets and its uses.

e We checked whether the depreciation of tangible
fixed assets items was commenced from the date
of ready to use and found the depreciation had
been started accordingly.

We were satisfied that the property, Plant and
equipment recognition and measurement policies
have been applied appropriately. Based on the work
performed, we concluded that property, plant and
equipment have been recorded appropriately.
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Long Term Loan and Short Term Loan

As at June 30, 2024, the reported amount of total
Long-Term Loan is Tk.11,112,439,938 and Short-Term
Loan is Tk. 2,522,823,334 respectively. The company
borrowed fund from various bank for the purpose of
acquisition of non-current assets and working capital
as well.

We have tested the design and operating effectiveness
of key controls focusing on the following:

e QObtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design and operating effectiveness of controls
designed to ensure the proper use of loan.

e We verified sanction letter, loan schedule bank
statements to confirm the loan outstanding and
found that the balance had been reported in the
Financial Statements accurately.

e We checked the financial expenses and
classification of loan and repayment schedule on
a test basis as well.

e We checked the recording date of transactions
and found the recording date is in line with the
loan disbursement date.

We were satisfied that; Long Term Loan & Shor-Term
Loan was recorded properly. Based on the work

narformed loan—&

Trade Receivable

we_concluded -that Loan—Term
We—€ tO0ah

ISASARASARER A=) oHCcA G eCt—thdt e —tEOd &

The total amount of Trade receivable is Tk.
4,728,459,439 as at June 30, 2024. There are
significant large numbers of individual small
customers. Customers in different business segments
and jurisdictions are subject to their independent
business risk.

The increasing challenges over the economy and
operating environment in the manufacturing industry
during the year have increased the risks of default on
receivables from the customers. In particular, in the
event of insolvency of customers, the company is
exposed to potential risk of financial loss when the
customers fail to meet their contractual obligations in
accordance with the requirements of the
agreements.

Accordingly, we identified the recoverability of
Receivables as a key audit matter Because of the
significance of Receivable to Company’s Financial
Position and because of the significant degree of
management judgement involved in evaluating the
adequacy of the allowance for doubtful debts.

Our audit procedures of assess the recoverability of
trade receivables including the following:

e Tested the accuracy of aging of Receivables at
year end on a sample basis;

e Evaluating the Company’s policy for making
allowance for doubtful debts with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

e Assessing the classification of trade receivables in
the debtors ageing report by comparison with
sales invoice and other underlying
documentation on a test basis.

e Assessed the recoverability of the debtors on a
sample basis through our evaluation of
management’s assessment with reference to the
credit profile of the customers, historical
payment pattern of customers and

e Inspecting subsequent bank receipts form
customers and other relevant underlying
documentation relation to trade receivable
balance as at June 30, 2024.

We were satisfied that; Trade and other Receivable
were recorded properly and assessed with their
appropriate recoverability. Based on the work
performed, we concluded that Trade and other
receivable have been appropriately.
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all of the information in
the Annual report other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are
responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange
Rules 1987 and other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related
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disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a

manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act 1994 and the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and relevant
notifications issues by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, we also report that:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts, as records and other statutory books as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appeared from our examination of these books;

c) The statements of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income dealt
with by the report are in agreement with the books of accounts and returns; and

d) The expenditure incurred was for the purposes of the Company’s business.

Yo

Mohammad Fakhrul Alam Patwary FCA
ICAB Enrollment No: 1249

Managing Partner

M.Z. Islam & Co.

Chartered Accountants

DVC: 2410271249AS314741
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Aftab Automobiles Limited

Statement of Financial Position

As at June 30, 2024
[ Amount In Taka |
Particulars Notes
| uneso, 2024 ||  une3o, 2023 |
Assets :
Non-Current Assets 5,663,138,636 5,590,748,988

Property, Plant and Equipment 1,132,436,667 1,164,891,064

5

Non Current Assets Held for Sale & Discontinued Operations 6 277,786,431 277,786,431
Intangible Assets 7 866,250 -
Capital Work-in-Progress 8 774,975,533 718,545,949
Investments in Subsidiary and Associates 9 1,230,732,871 1,199,134,693
Receivables -Non Current Maturity 10 2,123,330,738 2,134,933,513
Deferred Tax Assets 11 123,010,145 95,457,338
Current Assets : 15,033,580,703 13,992,808,515
Receivables -Current maturity 10 2,605,128,701 2,594,045,240
Inventories 12 411,716,480 481,439,655
Current account with Navana Batteries Ltd. 13 1,088,164,004 985,680,004
Current account with Navana Group Companies 14 4,378,896,687 3,921,011,195
Advances, deposits and prepayments 15 6,253,974,463 5,735,942,541
Cash & Cash Equivalents 16 295,700,368 274,689,880
Total Assets 20,696,719,339 19,583,557,505
Equity and Liabilities :

Equity Attributable to Equity Holders 5,239,681,221 5,462,575,814
Share Capital 17 1,055,449,950 1,055,449,950
Share Premium 18 1,925,858,339 1,925,858,339
Reserves 19 67,338,231 67,338,231
Retained Earnings 20 2,191,034,701 2,413,929,294
Non-Current Liabilities : 8,359,640,393 6,925,927,618
Loan and Deferred Liabilities (Unsecured) 21 25,310,440 25,310,440
Long Term Loan-Non Current Maturity 22 8,334,329,953 6,900,617,178
Current Liabilities : 7,097,397,725 7,195,054,073
Long Term Loan-Current Maturity 22 2,778,109,984 2,300,205,726
Short Term Loan 23 2,522,823,334 3,583,915,275
Accrued and Other Current Liabilities 24 1,645,044,967 1,207,899,602
Unclaimed Dividend Account 25 151,419,440 103,033,470
Total Equity and Liabilities 20,696,719,339 19,583,557,505
Net Assets Value Per Share (NAVPS) 34 49.64 51.76

The Annexed Notes 1 to 58 and schedule-A, B, C, D & E form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
These Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors on October 27, 2024 and were signed on it's behalf by.

@/I W (lehmid Whadoolo 16 form QW @

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Director Director Managing Director

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date.

Mohammad Fakhrul Alam Patwary FCA
ICAB Enrollment No: 1249
Managing Partner
M.Z. Islam & Co.
Place: Dhaka Chartered Accountants
Dated: October 27, 2024 DVC: 2410271249AS314741
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Aftab Automobiles Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income

For the year ended June 30, 2024

Amount In Taka

Particulars Notes July 01, 2023 July 01, 2022

to June to June

30, 2024 30, 2023
Net Revenue 26 130,933,817 985,465,143
Less: Cost of goods sold 27 101,277,866 822,622,232
Gross profit 29,655,951 162,842,911
Less: Operating Expense:
Administrative Expenses 28 41,531,738 34,672,415
Selling and Distribution Expenses 29 22,277,384 27,935,041
Financial Expenses 30 184,467,464 166,118,350
Total Operating Expenses 248,276,585 228,725,806
Operating Profit/Loss (218,620,634) (65,882,895)
Non-Operating Income :
Other Income 31 16,588,770 19,517,300
Add : Share of Profit from Associate Company 9.03 27,647,234 28,832,831
Profit/Loss Before Contribution to WPPF (174,384,630) (17,532,764)
Less: Contribution to WPPF - -
Profit/Loss After Contribution to WPPF (174,384,630) (17,532,764)
Add : Share of Profit from Subsidiaries 9.01 3,950,944 (1,849,957)
Net Profit/Loss Before Tax (170,433,685) (19,382,721)
Less: Income Tax Expenses :
Current Tax 32 5,418,251 7,203,574
Deferred Tax 11 (27,552,808) (30,703,161)
Total Income Tax Expense (22,134,556) (23,499,587)
Profit for the year (148,299,129) 4,116,866
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (148,299,129) 4,116,866
Attributable to:
Equity Holders of the Company (148,299,129) 4,116,866
Non-Controlling Interests - -
Profit for the year (148,299,129) 4,116,866
Earnings Per Share 33 (1.41) 0.04

The Annexed Notes 1 to 58 and schedule-A, B, C, D & E form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

These Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors on October 27, 2024 and were signed on it's behalf by.

Chief Financial Officer

Director

Director

W (Ghmied Khaloolo. igLorm, QW @

Company Secretary

Managing Director

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date. y%

Place: Dhaka
Dated: October 27, 2024
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Managing Partner
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Chartered Accountants
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Aftab Automobiles Limited
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended June 30, 2024

Amount In Taka
Particulars Notes July 01, 2023 July 01, 2022
to June to June
30, 2024 30, 2023
A. Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers 886,453,130 1,170,627,994
Receipts as Other Income 16,588,770 19,517,300
Payments for Materials, Services and Expenses (498,333,104) (956,948,752)
Cash Generated from Operations 404,708,797 233,196,542
Income Tax Paid (4,585,240) (34,858,993)
Net Cash Generated by Operating Activities 36.00 400,123,557 198,337,549
B. Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Acquisition of Property, Plant & Equipment (2,267,562) (38,226,119)
Payments for Capital Work in Progress - (78,386,831)
Net Cash Used Investing Activities (2,267,562) (116,612,950)
C. Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Bank Loan - 165,002,891
Group Company Receipts/(Payments) 72,073,547 (85,920,810)
Subsidiary Company Receipts/(Payments) (102,484,000) (37,697,536)
Bank Interest & Debt Paid (330,758,326) (166,118,350)
Dividend Paid (15,676,729) (23,064,241)
Unclaimed Dividend Transferred to CMSF - (5,000,000)
Net Cash Used by Financing Activities (376,845,508) (152,798,046)
D. Net Changes in Cash & Cash Equivalents for the year (A+B+C) 21,010,488 (71,073,446)
E. Cash & Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the year 274,689,880 345,763,326
F. Cash & Cash Equivalents at end of the year (D+E) 295,700,368 274,689,880
Net Operating Cash Flows Per Share (NOCFPS) 35.00 3.79 1.88

The Annexed Notes 1 to 58 and schedule-A, B, C, D & E form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
These Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors on October 27, 2024 and were signed on it's behalf by.

@}/I W (lehmid Rhodoolo i forn QW

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Director Director Managing Director

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date.

Place: Dhaka
Dated: October 27, 2024
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AFTAB AUTOMOBILES LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH JUNE, 2024
FORMING AN INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reporting Entity
Corporate Information—Domicile, Legal Form and Country of Incorporation

Aftab Automobiles Limited (the Company) was incorporated in erstwhile East Pakistan in year 1967 as
East Pakistan Automobiles Limited under the Companies Act, 1913 vide Registration No. C-2860/57 E.P.
of 1967-1968. Subsequently, after liberation war, the Company changed the name as Aftab Automobiles
Limited and was certified by the Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms, Bangladesh on the 11th day
of March, 1972. It was incorporated as a Private Limited Company since inception. However, in 1981 it
was transformed into Public Limited Company under Companies Act, 1913. The Company is listed with
Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. and the Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd. in the year 1987 and 1996
respectively.

The Company has one subsidiary company namely Navana Batteries Ltd. incorporated in Bangladesh
under the Companies Act, 1994 vide Registration No. C-76441/2009 that produces batteries.

Registered Office
The Registered Office of Aftab Automobiles Limited is located at 125/A, Motijheel Commercial Area, Islam
Chamber, 4th Floor, Dhaka-1000.

Other Corporate Information

i) Trade License: TRAD/DSCC/266195/2019, dated 18.08.2024
ii) e-TIN No.: 414021944464, dated 07.10.2013

i) BIN No.: 000901216, dated 27.12.2017

Nature of Business

The principal activities of the Company throughout the period were assembling of Toyota Land Cruiser
Soft Top / Pick-up, Land Cruiser Prado, Hino Bus, Hino Mini Bus/Truck Chassis with a production capacity
of 2400 units of vehicles in 3 shifts in assembling unit. At present the plant is running single shift.

Subsidiary Company

Navana Batteries Limited

Navana Batteries Limited is a private limited company which was incorporated on the 21st April, 2009,
Vide Registration No. C-76441/2009 under the Companies Act, 1994 as a subsidiary with 99.95% shares
owned by Aftab Automobiles Ltd. The principal activities of the Company are manufacturing of
automotive, industrial and solar batteries in the plant located at Fouzdarhat Industrial Area, Chattagram,
Bangladesh.

Associate Company

Navana Real Estate Limited

Navana Real Estate Limited (hereinafter referred to as "NREL" / "the Company") is a Public Limited
Company incorporated in Bangladesh in 1996 under the Companies Act, 1994 vide Registration No.
C-31450(571)/96.

The Company is engaged in real estate development business of building development projects both
commercial and residential and sale of lands. The entity holds 20% of its associate’s (Navana Real Estate
Limited) equity shares at the year end.

Structure, Content and Presentation of Financial Statements
The presentation of these financial statements is in accordance with the guidelines provided by IAS 1:
Presentation of financial statements. The financial statements comprise of:
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i) Statement of Financial Position as at 30" June, 2024;

i) Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30t June, 2024;
iii) Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30" June, 2024;

iv) Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30" June, 2024;

V) Notes comprising summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
2.00 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

2.01 Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), International Accounting Standard (IAS) adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB), the Companies Act, 1994, Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020 and
other relevant laws as applicable.

Pursuant to recent amendment to the Companies Act, 1994 incorporating amendments, among others,
is to change of the word ‘Limited’ by the word ‘PLC’ in case of Public Limited Companies including listed
ones. Necessary formalities are in progress in implementing these changes.

2.02 Other Regulatory Compliances
The Company is also required to comply with the following major legal provisions in addition to
Companies Act, 1994 and other applicable laws and regulations:

The Income Tax Act/Ordinance, 2023/1984;

The Income Tax Rules, 1984;

The Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Act, 2012;
The Value Added Tax Rules, 2016;

The Customs Act, 1969;

The Stamp Act, 1899;

The Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission Act, 1993;
The Securities and Exchange Rules, 2020;

The Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969;
Bangladesh Labour Act, 2006 (as amended to 2018)
DSE/CSE Rules;

Listing Regulations, 2015;
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2.03 Compliance with the Financial Reporting Standards as applicable in Bangladesh
As per para-14(2) of the Securities and Exchange Rule, 2020 the company has followed International
Accounting Standards (IAS's) and International Financial Reporting Standards.
(IFRS's) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) in preparing the
financial statements.

SI. No. | IAS No. IAS Title Compliance Status
1 1 Presentation of Financial Statements Complied
2 Inventories Complied
3 7 Statement of Cash Flows Complied
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and .
4 8 Complied
Errors
5 10 Events after the Reporting Period Complied
6 11 Construction Contracts N/A
7 12 Income Taxes Complied
8 16 Property, Plant and Equipment Complied
9 19 Employee Benefits Complied
10 20 Accounting for Govt. Grants and Disclosure of Govt. N/A
11 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates Complied
12 23 Borrowing Costs Complied
13 24 Related Party Disclosures Complied
14 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plan Complied
15 27 Separate Financial Statements Complied
16 28 Investment in Associated and Joint Venture Complied
17 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economics N/A
18 31 Interest in Joint Ventures N/A
19 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation Complied
20 33 Earnings per Share Complied
21 34 Interim Financial Reporting Complied
22 36 Impairment of Assets Complied
23 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets Complied
24 38 Intangible Assets N/A
25 40 Investment Property N/A
26 41 Agriculture N/A
SI. No. [IFRS No. IFRS Title Compliance Status
1 1 First-time adoption of International Financial Reporting Complied
2 2 Share based Payment N/A
3 3 Business Combinations N/A
4 4 Insurance Contracts N/A
5 5 Non-current Assets held for Sale and Discontinued N/A
6 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources N/A
7 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures Complied
8 8 Operating Segments Complied
9 9 Financial Instrument Complied
10 10 Consolidated Financial Statements Complied
11 11 Joint Arrangements N/A
12 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities Complied
13 13 Fair Value Measurement Complied
14 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts N/A
15 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers Complied
16 16 Leases Complied
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Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared based on the accrual basis of accounting and prepare
under the historical cost convention except for the revaluation of certain non-current assets which are
stated either at revaluated amount or fair market value as explained in the accompanying notes.

Accrual Basis of Accounting

The Company prepares its financial statements, except for cash flow information & FDR, using the
accrual basis of accounting. Since the accrual basis of accounting is used, the company recognizes items
as assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses (the elements of financial statements) when they
satisfy the definitions and recognition criteria for those elements in the IFRS conceptual Framework.

Functional and Presentation Currency

Functional and presentation currency items included in these financial statements are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the company operates ('the functional
currency'). These financial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka ("BDT") which is also the
functional currency of the company. The amounts in these financial statements have been rounded off to
the nearest BDT except otherwise indicated.

Key Accounting Estimates and Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards
including IAS's requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses
and for contingent assets and liabilities that require disclosure during and at the date of the financial
statements.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions of accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is
revised and in any future periods affected as required by IAS 8: "Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors".

In particular, the key areas of estimation, uncertainly and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements
include accrued expenses, inventory valuation and other payables.

Materiality, Aggregation and off Setting

Each material item as considered by management significant has been displayed separately in the
financial statements. No amount has been set off unless the Company has legal right to set off the
amounts and intends to settle on net basis. Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only when
permitted by the relevant accounting standards. The values of assets or liabilities as shown in the
statement of financial position are not off-set by way of deduction from another liability or asset unless
there exist a legal right, therefore no such incident existed during the year.

Going Concern Assumption

The financial statements are prepared on the basis of going concern assumption. As per management
assessment there is no material uncertainties related to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Comparative Information

Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of 2022-2023 in accordance with IAS-1
"Presentation of Financial Statements" for all numeric information in the financial statements and also
the narrative and descriptive information where it is relevant for understanding of the current periods of
financial statements. Prior year figure has been re-arranged wherever considered necessary to ensure
comparability with the current period.

Changes in Accounting Policies

There have been no changes in accounting policies. All policies were consistent with the practices of the
previous years.
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Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency (BDT) at exchange rates
ruling at the dates of transactions in accordance with IAS-21 “the Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates.

”Exchange rate difference at the statement of financial position date are charged/credited to statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, to the extent that this treatment does not contradict
with the Schedule XI of Companies Act, 1994. This Schedule requires all exchange gains and losses arising
from foreign currency borrowings, taken to finance acquisition of construction of fixed assets, to be
credited/charged to the cost/value of such assets.

The financial statements are presented in BDT, which is company’s functional currency. Transactions in
foreign currencies are recorded in the books at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at reporting date are
translated into (BDT) at the exchange rates ruling at the statement of financial position date.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, stated at historical cost, are
translated into (BDT) at the exchange rate ruling at the date of transaction. Exchange differences arising
on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at the end of the reporting period
are recognized in profit or loss.

Responsibility for Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements as
per requirements of Companies Act, 1994.

Reporting Period
The reporting period of the Company covers one year from 1st day of July, 2023 to 30th June, 2024.

Approval of Financial Statements
The financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on the 27th day of October, 2024.

Significant Accounting Principles and Policies selected and applied for significant transactions and
events

For significant transactions and events that have material effect, the Company's Directors selected and
applied significant accounting principles and policies within the framework of IAS 1: Presentation of
Financial Statements in preparation and presentation of financial statements that have been consistently
applied throughout the year and were also consistent with those use in earlier years.

For proper understanding of the financial statements, accounting policies set out below in one place as
prescribed by the IAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements:

Assets and Basis of their Valuation
Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and Measurements

These are capitalized at cost of acquisition and subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation in compliance with the benchmark treatment of IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment".
The cost of acquisition of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use inclusive of inward freight, duties and
non-refundable taxes.

In a situation where it can clearly be demonstrated that expenditure has resulted in an increase in future
economic benefit expected to be obtained from the use of the fixed assets, the expenditure is capitalized
as an additional cost of the assets.

Cost also includes initial estimate of the costs of dismantling, removing the item and restoring this site

(generally called asset retirement obligation) are recognized and measured in accordance with IAS 37:
Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.
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On retirement or otherwise disposal of fixed assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation are
eliminated and any gain or loss on such disposal is reflected in the statement of comprehensive income
which is determined with reference to the net book value of assets and the net sales proceeds.

Capital Work-in-Progress represents capital works of a unit still in progress and not in a operation. Once
a unit is completed, it is transferred to "Property, Plant and Equipment".

No revaluation of fixed assets has been made by the company.
3.01.2 Maintenance Activities

Expenditure incurred after the assets have been put into operation, such as repairs & maintenance is
normally charged off as revenue expenditure in the year in which it is incurred.

3.01.3 Subsequent Cost

The Cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant & equipment is recognized in the carrying amount
of the item if it is possible that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the
company and its cost measured reliably. The cost of the day to day servicing of properly and equipment
are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income as repairs and
maintenance where it is incurred.

3.01.4 Depreciation on Tangible Fixed Assets

As required in Paragraph 43 of IAS-16 Property and Equipment, depreciation in respect of all fixed assets
is provided to amortize the cost of the assets after commissioning, over their expected useful economic
lives in accordance with the provision of IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment".

Depreciation on all other fixed assets except land and land development is computed using diminishing
balance method in amount sufficient to write-off depreciable assets over their estimated useful life.
Depreciation has been charged on additions and when it is used. Expenditure for maintenance and
repairs are expenses; major replacements, renewals and betterment are capitalized.

The cost and accumulated depreciation of depreciable assets retired or otherwise disposed off are
eliminated from the assets and accumulated depreciation and any gain or loss on such disposal is

Category of Fixed Assets Rate of Depreciation & Amortization

Land & Land Development -
Building 2.50%
Sheds 20%
Plant & Machinery 10%
Tools & Equipment 20%
Office Equipment 10%
Furniture & Fixtures 10%
Transport & Vehicles 20%
Electric Line Installation 10%
Gas Line Installation 10%
Office Decoration 10%
Software (ERP) 10%

The whole amount of depreciation has been charged off partly to cost of sales and partly as expense in
consistent with practice followed in the earlier years.
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3.01.5 Impairment
The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment loss. If any such indication exists, recoverable
amount is estimated to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any, impairment loss is recorded
on judgmental basis, for which provision may differ in the future years based on the actual experience.

3.01.6 Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is removed from the statement of financial position when it is
dispose off or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss
on the disposal of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is included in the statement of income of the
period in which the de-recognition occurs.

3.01.7 Capital Work-in-Progress
Property, Plant and Equipment under construction/acquisition have been accounted for as capital
work-in-progress until construction/acquisition is completed and measured at cost.

3.02 Investmentin FDR
Investment is stated at its cost of acquisition and interest earned on deposits lying with the different
banks has been duly accounted for on cash basis. The statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income reflects the income on account of interest on investment in FDR.

3.03 Investment in Associates
An entity in which an investor has significant influence, but which is neither a subsidiary nor an interest
in a joint venture is classified as Investment in Associates. Equity Method accounting has been followed
to recognize and measure the investment in associates in accordance with International Accounting
Standard (IAS) 28 "Investments in Associates". The Aftab Automobiles Limited holds 20% of its associate's
(Navana Real Estate Limited) equity shares as at year end.

3.04 Recognition of Investment in Subsidiary in a separate Financial Statement
The investments in subsidiary is being accounted for using equity method in the company's separate
financial statements as directed by para 10 (c) of IAS 27 separate Financial Statements, "under the equity
method, on initial recognition the investment in an associate or a joint venture is recognized at cost, and
the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognize the investor's share of the profit or loss of the
investee after the date of acquisition. The investor's share of the investee's profit or loss is recognized in
the investor's profit or loss. Distributions received from an investee reduce the carrying amount of the
investment. Adjustments to the carrying amount may also be necessary for changes in the investor's
proportionate interest in the investee arising from changes in the investee's other comprehensive
income." The equity holds 99.95% of its subsidiary’s (Navana Batteries Ltd.) equity shares at the year end.

3.05 Sundry Debtors (Including Advance, Deposits and Pre-Payments)
These are carried at original invoice amounts, which represent net realizable value.

3.06 Other Current Assets
Other current assets have a value on realization in the ordinary course of the company's business which
is at least equal to the amount at which they are stated in the Statement of Financial Position.

3.07 Revenue Recognition
In compliance with the requirements of IFRS 15 "Revenue" is recognized to the extent that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the entity and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue
represents invoiced value of policies. Revenue recognized when the policies are made.

The Company recognizes as revenue the amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company

expects to be entitled in exchange for goods or services when (or as) it transfers control to the customer.
To achieve that core principle, this standard establishes a five-step model as follows:
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* |dentify the contract with a customer;

* |dentify the performance obligations in the contract;

* Determine the transaction price;

* Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
* Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Considering the five steps model, the company recognizes revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised goods to a customer. Goods is considered as
transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of that goods. Revenue from sale of goods is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of returns and allowances,
trade discounts, rebates and Value Added Tax (VAT).

a) Sale of Goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

The company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it
typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

b) Profit on Bank Deposits
Profit on bank deposits have been accounted on accrual basis.

c) Other Revenues
Other revenues are recognized when services are rendered and bank interests are earned.

Inventories

In compliance with the requirements with IAS-2 "Inventories" Raw Materials and stores are valued at the
lower of average cost and the net realizable value. Stock of finished vehicles, bus body building unit are
valued at cost which is determined by taking into consideration the value of raw materials and production
overhead. Cost comprises expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing such
inventories to present condition and includes wherever applicable appropriate overheads based on
normal level of activity.

No provision has been made for slow moving & obsolete stocks during the financial year.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transaction in Foreign Currencies are measured in the functional currency of the company and are
recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency at the spot exchange rate ruling at the

transaction date.

At the end of each reporting period in compliance with the provision of IAS 21: The Effect of Changes in
Foreign Exchange Rates-

Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate;

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical costs in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction;

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency is translated using the exchange
rate at the date when the fair value is determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at

rate different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in
previous financial statements is recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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Amount in FCAD ERQ Account and any other foreign currency balance have been translated into taka
at the reporting date at the exchange rate prevailing on that date and gain/(loss) have been accounted
for as other income / (loss) in statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income.

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets
The company initially recognises a financial asset in its statement of financial position, when, and only
when, the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights or probabilities of receiving the
cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the
financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred.

An entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) on the basis of both
in pursuance of provision 4.1 classification of financial assets under IFRS 9:

(a) the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets; and
(b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Financial Assets measured at amortized cost

The asset is measured at the amount recognized at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus
or minus the cumulative amortization of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, and any loss allowance. Interest income is calculated using the effective interest method and
is recognized in profit and loss. Changes in fair value are recognized in profit and loss when the asset is
derecognized or reclassified.

Financial Assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset shall be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met:

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial Assets measured at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified as at fair value through profit or loss if it is classified as held for trading or
is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial assets are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss if the Company manages such investment and makes purchase or sale decisions based on
their fair value in accordance with the Company’s documented risk management or investment
strategy. Attributable transactions costs are recognized in profit and loss as incurred. Financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value and changes therein which take into account
and dividend income are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets include accounts receivables, advance, deposits & prepayments, investments and cash
& cash equivalents.

i) Accounts Receivables

Accounts receivables represent the amounts due from customers for delivering goods or rendering
services. Trade and other receivables are initially recognized at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration given in return. After initial recognition these are carried at cost less impairment losses
due to non-collectability of any amount so recognized.
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ii) Advance, Deposits & Prepayments

Advances are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, advances are carried at cost less
deductions, adjustments or charges to other account heads. Deposits are measured at payment value.
Prepayments are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, prepayments are carried at cost
less charges to profit & loss account.

iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash in hand, cash at bank and fixed deposits having maturity of
less than three months which are available for use by the company without any restriction.

Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is recognized when its contractual obligations arising form post events are certain
and the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow from the company of resources
embodying economic benefits. The company initially recognises financial liabilities on the transaction
date at which the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the liability.

The company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expired.

Non-derivative financial liabilities comprise accrued and other current liabilities, interest bearing
borrowings and short term loan.

i) Accrued and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued and Other Current Liabilities are recognized at the amount payable for services rendered to
the company.

i) Interest bearing borrowings

Principal amounts of the loans and borrowings are stated at their amortized amount. Borrowings
repayable after twelve months from the date of statement of financial position are classified as
non-current liabilities whereas the portion of borrowings repayable within twelve months from the
date of statement of financial position, unpaid interest and other charges are classified as current
liabilities.

iii) Short Term Loan
Short Term Loan is recognized at the amount payable to the bank.

Equity Instruments

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Investment costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary
shares are recognized as expenses. Paid up share capital represents total amount contributed by the
shareholders and bonus shares issued by the Company.

Impairment
i) Non-derivative Financial Assets

Financial assets not classified as at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed at each reporting date

to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment. A financial asset is impaired if

objective evidence indicate that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and

that the loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be

estimated reliably. Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:

(a) default or delinquency by a debtor;

(b) restructuring of an amount due to the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

(c) indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy;

(d) adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers;

(e) observable data indicating that there is measurable decrease in expected cash flows from a

Company of financial assets.
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(f) Financial Assets measured at amortized cost

The Company considers evidence of impairment for these assets at both an individual asset and a
collective level. All individually significant assets are individually assessed for impairment. Those found
not to be impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet
individually identified. Assets that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for
impairment. Collective assessment is carried out by grouping together assets with similar risk
characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the Company uses historical information on the timing of recoveries
and the amount of loss incurred, and makes an adjustment if current economic and credit conditions
are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or lesser than suggested by historical trends.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses
are recognized in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the Company considers
that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are written off. If the
amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognized, then the previously recognized impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss.

(g) Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets (other than biological asset, investment
property, inventories and deferred tax assets) are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss (if any). Where it is not
possible to determine the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the
recoverable amount of the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. An impairment loss
is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs
to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset or CGU.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent
that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Derivatives

The company is not a party to any derivative contract at the statement of financial position date, such
as forward exchange contract, currency swap agreement or interest rate option contract to hedge
currency exposure related to import of raw materials and others or principal and interest obligations of
foreign currency loans.

Leases

IFRS 16 provides a single leasee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognize assets and liabilities
for all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less or the underlying asset as a low value. A leassee
recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments. There are recognition exemption for short-term
leases and leases of low value items.

The Company applied IFRS 16 Lease for the first time on 1st July, 2019. The nature and effect of the
changes as a result of adoption of this new accounting standard is described below.

A lease is defined as a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the
underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Previously the company used to
charge the consideration paid in its books as revenue expenses. IFRS 16 introduced a single, on balance
sheet accounting model for leases. As a result, the Company, as a leassee, has recognized right of use
assets representing its rights to use underlying assets and lease liabilities representing its obligation to
make lease payments. The Company applied IFRS 16 on 1st January, 2019 for the existing lease
contracts.
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The Company has only office rent agreement, which is classified as operating leases, which under IFRS
16 are required to be recognized on the Company’s statement of financial position. The nature and
timing of expenses related to those leases has changed as IFRS 16 replaced the straight line operating
lease expenses (as per IAS-17) with an amortization charge for the right of use assets and interest
expense on lease liabilities.

The Company applied the practical expedient to the definition of a lease on transition. This means that
it applied IFRS 16 to all contracts entered into before 1st January, 2019 and identified as leases in
accordance with IAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

The Company’s all contractual payments to the lessor contains only fixed amounts of lease payment
and no variable lease payments are embedded with the lease payments. The rental agreements do not
include any automatic renewals, nor do they include any guaranteed residual values of the underlying
assets.

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. At the
commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. After the commencement date, the amount
of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term or a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments.

Subsequent Measurement:

The Lease Liability:

Upon initial recognition, the lease liability is being accounted for using amortised cost. Meaning that
the initial liability is added by finance charge at company’s incremental borrowing cost less subsequent
rental payment on monthly basis.

Right to Use Assets:
The leased assets (Right to Use Asset) are depreciated over its useful life on monthly basis using straight
line depreciation method.

Taxation

Income Tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax expense is recognized in profit
or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is
recognized in equity in accordance with IAS 12: Income Tax.

a) Current Tax:

Current Tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
periods.

The applicable tax rate of the company of Aftab Automobiles Ltd. is 22.50% and Navana Batteries Ltd.
is 27.50% as the companies are qualified as a publicly traded company and private limited company
respectively.

b) Deferred Tax:
Deferred income tax is provided using the deferred method on temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences, except:

Where the deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or loss;
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In respect of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled by the company and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future; and

In respect of deductible temporary differences and carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, if it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

C) Value Added Tax:
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of Value Added Tax except:

Where the value added tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case the value added tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of
the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

Receivable and payables that are stated with the amount of value added tax included.

The net amount of value added tax recoverable from, or payable to, taxation authority is included as
part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

Proposed Dividend

The amount of proposed dividend has not been accounted for but disclosed in the notes to the
accounts in accordance with the requirements of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 1:
Presentation of Financial Statements. Also the proposed dividend is not considered as liability in
accordance with the requirement of International Accounting Standard (IAS) 10: Events after the
Reporting Period, because no obligation exists at the time of approval of accounts and
recommendation of dividend by the Board of Directors.

Cost of Post-Employment Benefits

The company maintains a defined contribution plan for its eligible permanent employees. The eligibility
is determined according to the terms and conditions set forth in the respective deeds. The Company
does not have any defined benefit plans and therefore does not record any provisions or expenses in
this regard.

The company has accounted for and disclosed employee benefits in compliance with the provision of
IAS 19: Employee Benefits. The cost of employee benefits is charged off as revenue expenditure in the
period to which the contributions relate. The company’s employee benefits include the following:

(a) Short-Term Employee Benefits:

Short-term employee benefits include salaries, bonuses, overtime, holiday allowance, TA/DA, leave
encashment, meals allowance, transaction, accommodation etc. obligation for such benefits are
measured on an undiscounted basis and are expenses as the related service is provided.

(b) Contribution to Workers’ Profit Participation and Welfare Funds:
This represents 5% of net profit before tax contributed by the company as per provisions of the
Bangladesh Labour (amendment) Act, 2014 and is payable to Workers as defined in the said law.

(c) Insurance Scheme:
Employees of the company are covered under insurance schemes.

(d) Defined Contribution Plan (Provident Fund):

The company has a registered provident fund scheme (Defined Contribution Plan) for employees of the
company eligible to be members of the fund in accordance with the rules of the provident fund
constituted under and irrevocable trust. All permanent employees contribute 10% of their basic salary
to the provident fund and the company also makes equal contribution.
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The company recognizes contribution to defined contribution plan as an expense when an employee
has rendered services in exchange for such contribution. The legal constructive obligation is limited to
the amount it agrees to contribute to the fund.

Capitalization of Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds as per IAS 23: Borrowing Costs.

Accruals, Provisions and Contingencies

a) Accruals

Accruals are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied but have not
been paid, invoiced or formally agreed with the supplier, including amounts due to employees. Accruals
are reported as part of trade and other payables.

b) Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the company has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Provision is ordinarily measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting date. Where the company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the income statement net of any
reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a
finance cost. During the reporting year the company has made sufficient provisions where applicable.

c) Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the company; or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the company. At the reporting date the company does not have any contingent
asset.

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognized in the statement of financial position of the
company.

Operating Segments

Basis for Segmentation

A business segments is a distinguishable component of an entity that is engaged in providing an
individual product or service or group of related products or services and that is subject to risk and
returns that are different from those of other business segment. The company has three
distinguishable operating segments like assembling unit, motor cycle unit and body unit in case of Aftab
Automobiles Ltd. which are disclosed in note no. 37.
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The following summary describes the operation of each reportable segment:
Reportable Segments Operations

Assembling Unit The principal activities of the company are assembling of Toyota
land cruiser soft top/pick-up, land cruiser prado, hino bus, hino
mini bus/truck chassis.

Body Unit The company has made bus’s body and other vehicles body.

These three reportable segments are the strategic business units of the company and are managed
separately based on the Company’s management and internal structure. For each of the strategic
business units, the management reviews internal management report on at least quarterly basis.
Performance is measured based on segment profit from operation, as included in the internal
management reports.

Segment revenue and operating profit is used to measure performance as management believes that
such information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to their
entities that operate within these industries.

A geographical segment is a distinguishable component of an entity that is engaged in providing
products or services within a particular economic environment and that is subject to risks and returns
that different from those of components operating other economic environments. Since the company
has operating all its activities in the same economic environment geographical segment reporting is not
required.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the Statement of Financial Position and Cash Flows, cash in hand and bank balances
represents cash and cash equivalents considering the IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements" and
IAS 7 "Cash Flow Statement" which provide, that cash and cash equivalents are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and are subject to an in significant risks of changes in value and are not
restricted as to use.

Statement of Cash Flows

The Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared in accordance with the requirements IAS 7: Statement
of Cash Flows. The cash generated from operating activities has been reported using the Direct Method
as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987 and considering the provisions of Paragraph
19 of IAS 7 which provided that "Enterprises are Encouraged to Report Cash Flow from Operating
Activities Using the Direct Method".

Earnings per Share (EPS)
Earnings Per Share (EPS) are calculated in accordance with the International Accounting Standard
IAS-33 "Earnings Per Share".

Basic Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the entity by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
The Basic EPS of previous year has been restated to adjust the effect of bonus issue of shares during the
year.

Diluted Earnings Per Share

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per shares, an entity adjusts profit or loss attributable
to each ordinary equity holders of the entity, and weighted average number of shares outstanding, for
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Diluted EPS is only calculated where the company has commitment to issue ordinary shares in future
at reporting date. No such commitment is hold by company at reporting date.
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Historical Cost Income and Expenditure

As there was no extra ordinary item, there was no difference in profit from ordinary activities before
taxation and the net profit before tax. Furthermore, as there was no revaluation of fixed assets in
previous years and during the year under review, there was no factor like the differences between
historical cost depreciation and depreciation on re-valued amount, realization of revenue surplus on
retirement or disposal of assets etc. Therefore, no separate note of historical cost profit and loss has
been presented.

Risk Exposure

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that company faces due to unfavourable movements in the interest rates.
Changes in the government's monetary policy, alongwith increased demand for loans/investments
tend to increase the interest rates. Such rises in interest rates mostly affect companies having floating
rate loans or companies investing in debt securities.

Management Perception

The management of the company prefers procuring the long-term fund with minimum fixed interest
rate and the short-term fund with reasonable competitive rate. The company maintains low
debt/equity ratio; and accordingly, adverse impact of interest rate fluctuation is insignificant.

Exchange Rate Risk

Exchange rate risk occurs due to changes in exchange rates. As the company imports materials and
equipment from abroad and also earns revenue in foreign currency, unfavourable volatility or currency
fluctuation may affect the profitability of the company. If exchange rate increases against local currency,
opportunity arises for generating more profit.

Management Perception
The products of the company are sold mostly in local currency. Therefore, volatility of exchange rate
will have no impact on profitability of the company.

Industry Risks

Industry risk refers to the risk of increased competition by an entry of new competitors from foreign
and domestic sources leading to lower prices, revenues, profit margin, and market share which could
have an adverse impact on the business, financial condition and results of operation.

Management Perception
Management is optimistic about growth opportunity in assembling of different types of vehicles sector
in Bangladesh.

Market Risk

Market risk refers to the risk of adverse market conditions affecting the sales and profitability of the
company. Mostly, the risk arises from falling demand for the product or service which would harm the
performance of the company. On the other hand, strong marketing and brand management would help
the company increase their customer base.

Management Perception

Management is fully aware of the market risk, and act accordingly. Market for assembling of different
types of vehicles sector in Bangladesh is growing at an exponential rate. Moreover, the company has a
strong marketing and brand management to increase the customer base and customer loyalty.

Operational Risks

Non-availabilities of materials/equipment/services may affect the smooth operational activities of the
company. On the other hand, the equipment may face operational and mechanical failures due to
natural disasters, terrorist attacks, unforeseen events, lack of supervision and negligence, leading to
severe accidents and losses.

Management Perception

The company perceives that allocation of its resources properly can reduce this risk factor to a great
extent. The company hedges such risks in costs and prices and also takes preventive measures

therefore.
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Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on
time or at a reasonable price.

Management Perception

The company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company's reputation.

Typically, management ensures that it has sufficient cash and cash equivalent to meet expected
operational expenses, including the servicing of financial obligation through preparation of the cash
forecast, prepared based on time line of payment of the financial obligation and accordingly arrange for
sufficient liquidity/fund to make the expected payment within due date.

Labour Unrest Risk
Smooth production is dependent on good relationship with factory workers and their ability to provide
high quality services. In the event of disagreement with workers the company may face adverse impact.

Management Perception

The management personnel both in head office and production premises maintains a good
atmosphere at the working place and provides with all necessary facilities to the workers like healthy
remuneration, employee contributory provident fund, gratuity scheme, group term scheme and
workers profit participation fund for its employees which reduces the risk of labour unrest.

Events after the Reporting Period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the Company's position at
the date of statement of financial position or those that indicate the going concern assumption is not
appropriate are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material.

Related Party Disclosure

As per International Accounting Standard, 1AS-24: 'Related Party Disclosures', parties are considered to
be related if one of the parties has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. The Company carried out transactions
in the ordinary course of business on an arm's length basis at commercial rates with its related parties.
Related party disclosures have been given in Note 38.

General

a) All shares have been fully called and paid up;

b) There is no preference shares issued by the company;

c) The company has not incurred any expenditure in foreign currency against royalties and technical fees;

d) Auditors are paid only the statutory audit fees;

e) No foreign currency was remitted to the shareholders during the year under audit;

f) No money was spent by the company for compensating any member of the board for rendering
special services;

g) No brokerage was paid against sales during the year under audit;

h) No bank guarantee was issued by the company on behalf of its directors.
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Amount In Taka |

Notes Particulars
June 30,2024 | [ June 30,2023 |

5.00 Property, Plant and Equipment, Net
Land & Land Development 605,780,282 605,780,282
Building 282,026,230 267,749,935
Shades 118,027,230 147,534,038
Plant & Machinery 72,926,070 81,028,966
Tools & Equipments 6,079,035 4,953,305
Office Equipment 5,888,986 6,543,318
Furniture & Fixture 6,010,719 6,678,577
Transport Vehicles 35,698,115 44,622,643
Total Written Down Value 1,132,436,667 1,164,891,064
The break-up of PPE is shown in Annexure- A.

6.00 Non current assets held for sale & discontinued operations
Land & Land Development 139,554,017 139,554,017
Building 20,290,561 20,290,561
Shades 438,851 438,851
Plant & Machinery 54,676,889 54,676,889
Tools & Equipments 3,232,421 3,232,421
Office Equipment 9,477,063 9,477,063
Furniture & Fixture 5,668,495 5,668,495
Transport Vehicles 13,454,349 13,454,349
Electrical line installation 2,137,161 2,137,161
Office Decoration 28,856,624 28,856,624
Total 277,786,431 277,786,431
The break-up of PPE is shown in Annexure- B.
Since the board's decision to reclassify the non-current assets held for sales as regular assets. It will be used
from the next financial year.

7.00 Intangible Assets, Net
Software (ERP) 866,250 | | s
Total Written Down Value 866,250 -
The break-up of PPE is shown in Annexure- D.

8.00 Capital work-in-progress
Opening Balance 718,545,949 653,223,590
Add: Addition During the year 78,346,084 78,386,831

796,892,033 731,610,421

Less: Transfer to Property, Plant & Equipment 21,916,500 13,064,472
Closing balance 774,975,533 718,545,949

9.00 Investments in subsidiary and associate
Investment in subsidiaries 9.01 748,169,869 744,218,924
Investment in share 9.02 - -
Investment in associate 9.03 482,563,003 454,915,769
Total 1,230,732,871 1,199,134,693

9.01 Investment in subsidiary
Navana Batteries Limited
Opening Balance 744,218,924 746,068,881
Add: Profit during the year 3,950,944 (1,849,957)
Closing Balance 748,169,869 744,218,924

Navana Batteries Ltd. is a 99.95% owned subsidiary company. During the year, the audit incurred/enjoyed a

Profit of Tk. 3,950,944 /-
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Notes Particulars Amount In Taka
June 30,2024 | [ June 30,2023

9.02 Investment in share
Opening Balance - 28,395,758
Add: During the year - -
Less: Transfer the year - 28,395,758
Closing Balance - -

9.03 Investment in associate
Opening Balance 454,915,769 426,082,938
Share of equity from associate 27,647,234 28,832,831
Closing Balance 482,563,003 454,915,769
NB: Share of profit from associate company (NREL) has been taken for one year for Financial year 2023-2024.

10.00 Receivables
Receivable Non-Current (Maturity over 12 months ) 2,123,330,738 2,134,933,513
Receivable current (Maturity less than 12 months ) 2,605,128,701 2,594,045,240
Total 4,728,459,439 4,728,978,753
Ageing schedule of receivables :
Duration
1- 30 days 265,003,311 269,063,951
31- 60 days 280,602,895 274,220,986
61- 90 days 411,266,126 414,704,494
91- 180 days 800,335,988 802,119,067
181- 365 days 847,920,380 833,936,741
Over 365 days 2,123,330,738 2,134,933,513
Total 4,728,459,439 4,728,978,753
Net receivables are considered good. The Company holds no security other than debtors' personal security in the
form of work orders etc.

11.00 Deferred Tax expenses
Total Deferred Tax Expenses (PL AC) (30,703,161)
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (FS AC) (27,552,808) (95,457,338)
Calculation of Deferred tax (123,010,145)

A WDV on PPE as per Accounting Calculation 1,410,223,098 1,442,677,495
WDV on PPE as per Taxable Calculation 1,222,540,379 1,265,024,844
Unabsorbed Dep. 225,929,246 160,205,719
Unused tax loess 332,156,440 265,392,975
Temporary Difference (370,402,966) (247,946,043)
Deferred tax liabilities difference (A1) 83,340,667 55,787,860
Opening Deferred Tax (01.07.23) (55,787,860) (34,579,544)
Deferred Tax expenses During The Year (A2) 27,552,808 21,208,316
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] Amount In Taka |
Notes Particulars
June 30,2024 | [ June 30,2023 |
B Bad debts as per accounting base 156,308,860 156,308,860
Bad debts as per tax base - -
Temporary Difference (156,308,860) (156,308,860)
Deferred tax liabilities difference (B1) 39,077,215 39,077,215
Opening Deferred Tax (01.07.23) 39,077,215 30,174,633
Deferred Tax expenses During The Year (B2) - 8,902,582
C Gratuity as per accounting base 2,369,052 2,369,052

Gratuity as per tax base - -
Temporary Difference (2,369,052) (2,369,052)
Deferred tax liabilities difference (C1) 592,263 592,263
Opening Deferred Tax (01.07.23) 592,263 -
Deferred Tax expenses During The Year (C2) - 592,263

12.00 Inventories
Finished products 341,324,601 335,060,061
Raw materials 70,391,879 95,002,066
Goods in transit - 51,377,528
Total 411,716,480 481,439,655
Value of Stock of Finished product & Raw materials inclusive of -41- units Hino bus chassis and 182 units of Motorcycle.

13.00 Current account with Navana Batteries Ltd. 1,088,164,004 985,680,004

14.00 Current account with Navana group Companies 4,378,896,687 3,921,011,195

15.00 Advances, Deposits and Prepayments
Advance to Suppliers 917,274,738 872,497,960
Advance to Employees 12,320,097 13,941,124
Advance to Others 572,296,258 427,299,486
Current Account with VAT 17,031,045 72,755,279
Security Deposits 276,056,260 279,116,960
Advance for Capital Assets 3,560,373,530 3,176,294,439
Advance Income Tax 15.01 898,622,533 894,037,293
Total 6,253,974,463 5,735,942,541
Advance paid to suppliers against work order and considered good. Advance to employees against expenses,
salary realizable on production of documents and monthly salary respectively are considered good. Deposits
consist of utility deposits, security money against tender and bank guarantee are considered good. Along with
Aftab Automobiles Ltd. & its subsidiary made advances for floor purchase in Gulshsn area total investment in this
regard estimated Tk. 400 crore.

15.01 Advance Income tax

Opening Balance 894,037,293 859,178,299
Add: Addition during the year 4,585,240 34,858,993
Less: Adjustment made during the year - -

Closing Balance 898,622,533 894,037,293

The above amount was deducted at the import point as well as from the bills in different times at delivery point.
The company made appeal to honorable High Court against the tax assessment U/S-160 for the year 2010-2011
to 2014-2015.
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Amount In Taka
Notes Particulars
June 30,2024 || June 30,2023

16.00 Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash in Hand 238,007 507,244
Cash at Bank 16.01 295,462,361 274,182,635
Total 295,700,368 274,689,880

16.01 Cash at Bank (A+B+C) 295,462,361 274,182,635
A) Current Account
IFIC Bank Ltd. (A/C-1207178031001) 3,121 379,509
IFIC Bank Ltd. (A/C-1001112469001) 25,000 -
IFIC Bank Ltd. (Federation) (A/C-1008105682001) 11,666 46,490
IFIC Bank Ltd. (A/C-2030154524001) 5,274 768,843
City Bank Ltd. (A/C-1102005651001) 1,144 27,769
Mutual Trust Bank Ltd. (A/C-20210004330) 12,138 5,765
Agrani Bank Ltd. (F.EX) (A/C-0200000879075) 95,900 116,420
Al-Arafah Islami Bank Ltd. (A/C-0021020047156) 22,428 23,923
Standard Bank Ltd. (A/C-01333100003) 6,000,000 2,696
IFIC Bank Ltd. (A/C-2030199088041) 94,924 90,660
NCC Bank Ltd. (Sayamoli), (A/C-00550210006399) 425 -
IFIC Bank Ltd. (Gulshan), (A/C-1002121278001) 7,881 137,068
Meghna Bank Ltd. (Gulshan), (A/C-110111100000115) 23,063 4,407,350
Prime Bank Ltd. (Baridhara), (A/C-2219113002375) - 4,000
Bank Asia Ltd. (A/C-00836000667) 416,174 215,630
Midland bank Ltd. (A/C-00081050000328) 656 -
SBAC Bank Ltd. (A/C-0002111002903) 6,655 666
One Bank Ltd. (Jatrabari), (A/C-0301020001691) 1,820 571,470
Southeast Bank Ltd. (A/C-008211100000257) 728 4,101
Southeast Bank Ltd. (A/C-008211100031752) 811 -
One Bank Ltd. (Gulshan), (A/C-0021020008244) 3,950 =
IFIC Bank Ltd. (Fed. Br.), (A/C-0190327068001) 28,573 110,088
Sonali Bank Ltd. (Ramna), (A/C-4426302003651) 760,069 1,199,990
Janata Bank Ltd. (A/C-0100242715769) 48,320 49,253
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd. (A/C-20502760100120510) 40,197 40,128
Jamuna Bank Ltd. (A/C-110210010135) 25,646 25,646
United Commercial Bank Ltd. (Tejgaon) - 92,110
Modhumoti Bank Ltd. (Gulshan), (A/C-110311100000339) 21,501,509 1,284,594
Eastern Bank Ltd. (A/C-0011060000427) 359,421 -
First Security Islami Bank Ltd. (A/C-018111800000020) 363,105 264,150
Eastern Bank Ltd. (A/C-1331060000038) 43,243,703 -
Total 73,104,301 9,868,318
B) FDR
Agrani Bank Ltd. (FDR-ID # 10583162) 14,009,430 13,275,259
Agrani Bank Ltd. (FDR-ID # 10583151) 14,206,741 13,438,261
Agrani Bank Ltd. (FDR-ID # 10583159) 21,466,182 20,285,015
Agrani Bank Ltd. (FDR-ID # 10583160) 14,061,859 13,301,215
Bank Asia Ltd. (FDR # 00855012111) - 54,277,360
One Bank Ltd. (FDR # 4120005867) 964,603 913,212
One Bank Ltd. (FDR # 4120006495) 617,089 583,565
One Bank Ltd. (FDR # 4120006600) 150,795 142,762
One Bank Ltd. (FDR # 4120008537) 564,027 533,090
One Bank Ltd. (FDR # 4120008592) 555,402 525,220
One Bank Ltd. (FDR # 4120008606) 273,552 258,977
Phoenix Finance Ltd. (FDR) 17890/17 10,803,255 10,096,500
Phoenix Finance Ltd. (FDR) 23034/17 60,045,546 56,117,333
Phoenix Finance Ltd. (FDR) 17819/16 60,477,410 56,520,944
Phoenix Finance Ltd. (FDR) 17936/17 22,471,175 21,001,098

Total
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Notes

Particulars

Amount In Taka |

June 30,2024 | |

June 30, 2023 |

C) Dorment Accounts

The above cash at bank balances represents the balance as per cash book which are in agreement with that

of bank statement as on 30th June, 2024 except the following non-operating dorment accounts which are

non-operative for a long time.

Name of Bank Account No. Amount Amount
Agrani Bank Ltd. 7465-9 6,517 6,517
Pubali Bank Ltd. 128 44,481 44,481
Eastern Bank Ltd. 3371 58,214 58,214
United Commercial Bank Ltd. 326 16,507 16,507
Commercial Bank of Ceylon Ltd. 24,750 24,750
AB Bank Ltd. (Motijheel) 071420 2,619 2,619
Sonali Bank Ltd. (Local) 12116 15,101 15,101
Janata Bank Ltd. 9321 1,500 1,500
American Express Bank Ltd. 293 21,540 21,540
Arab Bangladesh Bank Ltd. 1361 7,213 7,213
Janata Bank Ltd. 78 812 812
The Oriental Bank Ltd. 2758 39,670 39,670
IFIC Bank Ltd. 81734 15,323 15,323
The Oriental Bank Ltd. 04290 32,040 32,040
Islami Bank BD Ltd. (Foreign Exchange) 5016 99,565 99,565
One Bank Ltd. 7008 75,868 75,868
Mercantile Bank Ltd. 20178 123,168 123,168
BRAC Bank Ltd. 23001 3,353 3,353
Standard Bank Ltd. (Principal Branch) 7992 - 869,282
Shahjalal Islami Bank Ltd. 8504 169,806 169,806
IFIC Bank Ltd. 87525 97,000 97,000
United Commrecial Bank Ltd. 3144 199,305 199,305
One Bank Ltd. 6006 31,020 31,020
AB Bank Ltd. 43-000 100,000 100,000
Standard Bank Ltd. 1815 - 394,782
IFIC Bank Ltd. (Federation Branch) Share A/C 95,006 95,006
The City Bank Ltd. (Banani) 90001 - 89,448
Midland bank Ltd. 11050000030 85,483 85,483
BD Commerce Bank Ltd. 832 100,000 100,000
NRB Bank Ltd. 97,435 97,435
Premier Bank Ltd. 0268 98,390 98,390
Shahjalal Islami Bank Ltd. 12906 9,310 9,310
Rupali Bank Ltd. (Local) 0216 10,000 10,000
AB Bank Ltd. 36000 10,000 10,000
Total 1,690,994 3,044,506
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] Amount In Taka |
Particulars
June 30,2024 | [ June 30,2023 |

Notes

17.00 Share capital

Authorized capital:

120,000,000 Ordinary shares of Tk. 10 each

1,200,000,000

1,200,000,000

18,000,000 Cum. redeemable preference shares of Tk. 100 each 1,800,000,000 1,800,000,000
Total 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000
Ordinary Share capital:

Issued, subscribed and paid up

105,544,995 Ordinary Shares @ Tk. 10/- each.

Sponsors 309,495,310 309,495,310
Financial Institution 386,326,330 386,326,330
General Public 359,628,310 359,628,310
Total 1,055,449,950 1,055,449,950

The Position of Ordinary shareholders as on June 30, 2024 was as follows :

. Num. of Share Holdin Share Holdin
Particulars Investors Num. of Shares 12024 g 12023 g
Sponsors and Directors 6 30,949,531 29.32% 29.32%
Financial Institution 321 35,209,425 33.36% 36.60%
General Public 18,929 39,386,039 37.32% 34.07%
Total 19,256 105,544,995 100.00% 100.00%

The classification of shareholders by holding as on June 30, 2024 was as follows :

No. of share holdings

No. of share. holders

Share Holding

Share Holding

'2024 '2023
1to 500 11,428 1,752,058 1.66% 1.64%
501 to 5000 6,184 10,603,190 10.05% 9.19%
5001 to 10000 833 6,125,594 5.80% 4.78%
10001 to 20000 457 6,600,903 6.25% 5.01%
20001 to 30000 135 3,374,654 3.20% 2.68%
30001 to 40000 58 2,027,125 1.92% 1.48%
40001 to 50000 38 1,739,818 1.65% 1.06%
50001 to 100000 64 4,552,635 4.31% 3.94%
100001 to 1000000 46 12,704,818 12.04% 12.35%
Above 1000000 13 56,064,200 53.12% 57.85%
Total 19,256 105,544,995 100.00% 100.00%
18.00 Share premium.
Net Premium Up to 2006 250,191,730 250,191,730
Net Premium in 2010 1,675,666,609 1,675,666,609
Total 1,925,858,339 1,925,858,339
19.00 Reserves
Tax holiday reserve 12,338,231 12,338,231
Dividend equalization fund 4,000,000 4,000,000
General reserve 51,000,000 51,000,000
Total 67,338,231 67,338,231
The Company has obtained tax holiday facilities for body building unit for the period of five years with effect
from may 05, 1997.
20.00 Retained Earnings
Opening Balance 2,413,929,294 2,518,356,396
Adjustment for the Application of IFRS-16 (Lease) - (23,103,278)
Stock Dividend . (50,259,520)
Cash Dividend (74,595,464) (35,181,170)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (148,299,129) 4,116,866
Clossing Balance 2,191,034,701 2,413,929,294
21.00 Loan and deferred liabilities (Unsecured ) : 25,310,440 25,310,440

Long- term interest free loan from sponsors is carried forward since 1982
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] Amount In Taka |
Notes Particulars
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 |
22.00 Long Term loan-Net of current portion
Agrani Bank Ltd. 949,483,613 931,331,436
SBAC bank Ltd. 96,416,344 99,693,627
Mutual trust bank Itd. 82,200,393 128,698,779
Midland Bank Ltd. 53,833,155 59,263,977
One Bank Ltd. 481,467,194 455,629,409
NCC Bank Ltd. 106,016,677 110,338,604
Bank Asia Ltd. 1,216,151,868 1,131,051,015
Dhaka Bank Ltd. 515,955,643 478,409,961
Mercantile Bank Ltd. 305,621,375 286,797,161
Standard Bank Ltd. 111,004,162 111,609,929
Southeast Bank Ltd. 307,023,107 299,905,898
The City Bank Ltd. 68,744,768 81,758,389
Peoples Leasing 230,400,000 171,058,533
Bay Leasing 155,560,636 141,977,570
GSP Finance 493,400,000 420,300,000
Midas financing 57,065,347 57,065,347
Union Capital 155,202,728 155,202,728
BD Finance Ltd. 64,411,916 64,411,916
First Security Islami Bank Ltd. 150,000,000 150,000,000
IFIC Bank Ltd. 3,239,042,393 1,752,099,465
Phoenix Finance 1,009,158,659 926,091,800
Dutch-Bangla Bank Ltd. 654,921,639 624,669,473
Modhumoti bank Ltd. 609,358,320 563,457,888
Total 11,112,439,938 9,200,822,904
less: Long Term loan-Current maturity 2,778,109,984 2,300,205,726
Long Term loan-Net of Non-current maturity 8,334,329,953 6,900,617,178
23.00 Short-term loan
Agrani Bank Ltd. 1,818,334,314 1,777,006,526
NRB Commercial Ltd. 625,828,478 561,147,888
Prime bank Ltd. 45,539,216 41,918,972
SBAC bank Ltd. 33,071,671 31,430,390
IFIC Bank Ltd. 49,655 1,172,411,499
Total 2,522,823,334 3,583,915,275
24.00 Accrued and other current liabilities
Payable to suppliers 48,120,000 368,927,409
Advance against sales 755,000,000 -
Liability for expenses 134,543,859 127,491,605
Provision for Income tax 668,899,163 663,480,912
Payable for Workers profit Participation Fund 8,300,631 10,201,099
Provision for other finance 30,181,313 37,798,578
Total 1,645,044,967 1,207,899,602

The company made appeal to honorable High Court against the tax assessment U/S-160 for the year 2010-2011

to 2014-2015.
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Amount In Taka
Notes Particulars
June 30,2024 || June 30,2023
25.00 Unclaimed Dividend
Opening Balance 103,033,470 95,916,541
Add: Cash Dividend During the year 64,062,698 29,548,863
167,096,168 125,465,404
Less: Dividend Paid During the year 15,676,729 22,431,934
Closing Balance 151,419,440 103,033,470
The ageing of Unclaimed Dividend are as follows
Unclaimed Dividend for less than 3 Year's 69,227,560 35,565,771
Unclaimed Dividend for more than 3 Year's 82,191,880 67,467,699
151,419,440 103,033,470
26.00 Revenues (Net Sales)
Assembling unit 125,890,901 915,920,000
Body building unit 6,648,060 74,320,000
132,538,961 990,240,000
Less: VAT 1,605,144 4,774,857
Total 130,933,817 985,465,143
The number of sales during the year is Hino Bus chassis -21- units, DGDP Modification Toyota Jeep -209- units,
and Body Fabrication -05-units.
27.00 Cost of goods sold
Opening stock of direct raw materials 95,002,066 67,984,198
Purchases of direct raw material 27.01 53,214,025 628,463,508
Direct raw materials available for consumption 148,216,091 696,447,706
Closing stock of direct raw materials 12.00 70,391,879 95,002,066
Raw materials consumed 77,824,212 601,445,640
Add : Opening WIP - 19,335,041
77,824,212 620,780,681
Less : Closing WIP - -
77,824,212 620,780,681
Indirect materials - -
Total consumption 77,824,212 620,780,681
Factory overhead 27.02 29,718,194 93,810,430
Cost of production 107,542,406 714,591,111
Opening Finished products 335,060,061 443,091,182
442,602,467 1,157,682,293
Closing Finished products 12.00 341,324,601 335,060,061
Total 101,277,866 822,622,232
27.01 Purchases of direct raw material
Import Purchase 49,105,477 616,666,338
Local Purchase 4,108,547 11,796,670
Total 53,214,025 628,463,508
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Notes Particulars Amount In Taka
June 30,2024 || June 30,2023
27.02 Factory overhead

Salary and allowances (Including PF) 11,563,076 32,904,620
Gratuity - 1,283,443
Liveries and Uniform 132,149 210,777
Fuel and Lubricants 240,574 947,573
Conveyance 13,901 177,769
Entertainment 223,966 788,844
Maintenance expenses 7,700 -

Electricity Bill 2,803,920 3,986,470
Fees & Registration - 19,325
Canteen Subsidies 744,607 582,577
Insurance Premium - 40,125
Factory Rent - 3,144,200
Fire Insurance 465,667 1,219,941
Gas 189,470 168,675
WASA 48,103 16,753
Mobile Bill 72,949 30,130
Internet Bill 86,600 198,340
Welfare expenses 25,184 423,980
Carrying & handling 23,300 133,330
News Paper bill 6,359 5,612
Photocopy Charges 620 5,333
Postage 27,866 6,295
Repairs and maintenance ( vehicle) 15,940 -

Security Exp. 1,095,600 900,680
Stationary 103,771 -

Pick up Maintenance - 4,770
Generator Servicing - 43,620
Forklift Servicing 123,532 14,880
Office Maintenance 40,049 28,478
Factory Maintenance 135,318 242,303
Renewal Fee 356,766 388,937
Fire Extinguisher - 7,350
Nursary & Sapline 32,515 -

Depreciation (Annexure-A) 11,138,692 45,885,300
Total 29,718,194 93,810,430

The number of employees received annual salary and wages above Tk. 36,000 during the year.
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Amount In Taka
Notes Particulars
June 30,2024 || June 30,2023
28.00 Administrative expenses

Salary and allowances (Including PF) 8,503,967 11,447,275
Gratuity - 1,085,609
Director Remunaration 4,200,000 4,200,000
Entertainment 138,420 229,788
AGM expenses. 50,000 50,000
Conveyance 94,110 651,509
Travelling Exp. 255,314 25,892
Stationery 170,423 142,511
Telephone 18,557 16,650
Internet Charge 571,893 502,830
Mobile Phone Charge 75,790 179,296
Electricity bill 338,755 399,660
Rent, rates and taxes 1,047,986 -

Insurance premium 57,785 44,906
Audit fees 586,500 471,500
News Paper bill 15,832 17,369
Printing 239,690 518,040
Postage and telegram 6,815 9,412
Advertisement and Publicity 122,520 154,026
Directors fee 231,000 396,000
Repairs and maintenance ( vehicle) - 485,870
Software Maintenance (ITES Service) 117,000 6,626
Office maintenance 75,048 143,129
WASA Bill 43,958 43,946
Carrying & Handling - 7,840
Photocopy Expenses - 430
Gas - 8,969
CDBL Fee 106,000 124,470
Credit Rating Fee 107,500 107,500
BAPLC Fee 50,000 50,000
Membership Fee 98,350 73,350
Consultancy Fee/ Professional - 212,750
Renewal Fee - 196,075
Trade License & IRC Renewal Fee 57,610 72,010
RJSC 11,196 64,300
Office Cleaning 270,600 285,480
Canteen Subsidy 216,684 338,566
Security Exp. 197,536 343,805
Drinking Water 13,092 14,357
Fuel & Lubricants 44,145 90,982
Annual Listing Fee 1,022,180 1,287,320
Unrealized Loss - 1,689,295
Computer Consumable 19,348 -

Depreciation & Amortization (Annexure-A & D) 22,356,134 5,735,662
Total 41,531,738 31,925,005

The number of employees received annual salary and wages above Tk. 36,000 during the year.
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. Amount In Taka |
Notes Particulars
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
29.00 Selling and distribution expenses
Expected Credit Loss - 22,199,379
Depreciation (Annexure-A) 22,277,384 5,735,662
Total 22,277,384 27,935,041
30.00 Financial Expenses
Assembling Unit 181,352,972 166,118,350
Bank Charges 3,114,492 2,747,410
Total 184,467,464 168,865,760
31.00 Non-Operating Income
Interest on FDR & SND 16,588,770 | | 19,517,300
Total 16,588,770 19,517,300
32.00 Current Tax expenses
Operating Profit (218,620,634) (65,882,895)
Other Income 16,588,770 19,517,300
Bad Debts - 22,199,379
Add: Accounting Depreciation 55,693,459 57,356,624
Less: Tax depreciation (65,723,527) (66,547,689)
Taxable Profit (212,061,931) (33,357,281)
Corporate Tax Rate 22.50% 22.50%
Less: Tax Rebate 0.00% 0.00%
Net Tax Rate 22.50% 22.50%
Normal Tax @ 22.5% (47,713,935) (7,505,388)
Minimum Tax on gross receipt @ 0.6% 5,418,251 7,203,574
Current Tax Liabilities (whichever is higher) 5,418,251 7,203,574
33.00 Earnings per share (EPS)
Total comprehensive income (148,299,129) 4,116,866
Ordinary share (Paid Up capital) 105,544,995 105,544,995
Earnings per share (EPS) (1.41) 0.04
Note:
The drop in EPS from 0.04 in 2023 to (1.41) in 2024 was primarily due to one-time expenses associated
with phasing out the AK1J chassis and introducing the AK8)J model. Additionally, the company made substantial
capital investments in upgrading technology, training the workforce, and adapting operational workflows to
accommodate the new model. While these investments had a short-term impact on profitability, they are
essential for fortifying our operational base and positioning the company for sustainable growth. We anticipate
that these investments will generate long-term benefits, leading to a stabilization of EPS in the future as we begin
to see returns on these strategic initiatives.
34.00 Net assets value per share (NAVPS)

Equity attributable to equity holders
Ordinary share(Paid Up capital )
Net assets value per share (NAVPS)

5,239,681,221

5,462,575,814

105,544,995

105,544,995

49.64

51.76

Note: The Net Asset Value per Share (NAVPS) dropped from 51.76 in 2023 to 49.64 in 2024, mainly due to a
tough market environment resulting in reduced sales and an overall loss for the year. It's crucial to understand
that this NAVPS decrease is temporary and is a result of external pressures and strategic investments aimed at
enhancing our long-term operational capabilities and competitiveness. Despite the current financial challenges,
we are dedicated to our growth strategy and have decided to uphold dividend payments to demonstrate
confidence in our business's underlying strength and commitment to delivering value to shareholders. This
decision reflects our belief that, through effective management and a focus on recovery, we will stabilize and
ultimately enhance our NAVPS in the upcoming periods.
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. Amount In Taka |
Notes Particulars
June30,2024 | [ June 30,2023 |
35.00 Net operating cash flows per share (NOCFPS)
Net cash generated by operating activities 400,123,557 198,337,549
Ordinary share(Paid Up capital ) 105,544,995 105,544,995
Net operating cash flows per share (NOCFPS) 3.79 1.88
Note:
The company's NOCFPS saw a significant increase from 1.88 in 2023 to 3.79 in 2024, highlighting its

36.00

aftab automobiles limited

improved operational efficiency and strong cash-generation capabilities. This growth can be attributed to
effective management of working capital, better collection of receivables, and disciplined control over expenses.
Despite facing external challenges such as political disruptions and the transition of the chassis model, our core
business operations continued to generate healthy cash flows. This positive trend in operating cash flow
demonstrates our strong financial position and operational resilience, positioning the company to effectively
manage future investments and navigate potential market volatility.

Reconciliation of Cash Flows from Operating
Activities Under Indirect Method:

Net profit/Loss before interest, income tax & WPPF during the period (20,678,891) 119,752,755
Depreciation 55,772,209 57,356,624
Payment of WPPF (2,443,500) (6,495,333)
Income Tax Paid (4,585,240) (34,858,993)
Changes in Current Assets and Liabilities:

Decrease/(increase) in Inventories 69,723,175 136,597,773
Decrease/(increase) in Advance and Prepayments (129,367,591) (292,348,550)
(Decrease)/increase in Payables & Accruals 431,184,081 33,170,422
Decrease/(increase) in Trade Receivable 519,313 185,162,851
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 400,123,557 198,337,549
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Particulars Assembling Unit Body Unit Motg;i(t:ycle Total
Assets
Non-Current Assets:
Property, Plant & Equipment 738,255,299 394,181,368 - 1,132,436,667
Property, Plant & Equipment Discontinued Operation - - 277,786,431 277,786,431
Intangible Assets 866,250 - - 866,250
Capital Work-in-Progress 680,083,751 94,891,782 - 774,975,533
Investment in Subsidiary and Associates 1,230,732,871 - - 1,230,732,871
Receivable-Non-Current Maturity 1,961,095,463 39,582,344 122,652,931 2,123,330,738
Deferred tax assets 112,371,939 (3,590,218) 14,228,425 123,010,146
Total of Non-Current Assets 4,723,405,573 525,065,276 414,667,787 5,663,138,636
Current Assets:
Receivable-Current Maturity 2,264,088,786 76,302,267 264,737,648 2,605,128,703
Stock and Stores 202,337,419 70,391,879 138,987,182 411,716,480
Current Account with Navana Batteries Ltd. 1,088,164,004 - - 1,088,164,004
Current Account with Navana Group Companies 4,370,396,687 8,500,000 - 4,378,896,687
Current Account with Motor Cycle Unit 855,498,031 - -
Current Account with Body Building Unit 205,784,519 - -
Advances, Deposits and Pre-Payments 6,171,683,000 82,291,460 - 6,253,974,462
Cash & Cash Equivalents 295,671,521 28,847 - 295,700,368
Total Current Assets 15,453,623,966 237,514,453 403,724,830 15,033,580,703
Total Assets 20,177,029,542 762,579,727 818,392,620 20,696,719,339
Equity and Liabilities:
Shareholders' Equity:
Share Capital 1,055,449,950 - - 1,055,449,950
Share Premium 1,925,858,339 - - 1,925,858,339
Reserves 44,332,689 23,005,542 - 67,338,231
Retained Earnings 2,026,437,863 201,837,650 (37,240,813) 2,191,034,701
Total Shareholders' Equity 5,052,078,841 224,843,192 (37,240,813) 5,239,681,221
Non-Current Liabilities:
Loan and Deferred Liabilities (Unsecured) 25,310,440 - - 25,310,440
Long Term Loan - Non-Current Maturity 8,334,329,953 - - 8,334,329,953
Deferred Tax Liability - - - -
Lease Liability - - - -
Total Non-Current Liabilities 8,359,640,393 - - 8,359,640,393
Current Liabilities:
Long Term Loan-Current Maturity 2,778,109,984 - - 2,778,109,984
Short Term Loan 2,522,823,334 - - 2,522,823,334
Accrued and Other Current Liabilities 1,312,957,550 331,952,015 135,402 1,645,044,967
Current Account with Assembling Unit - 205,784,519 855,498,031 -
Unclaimed Dividend Account 151,419,440 - - 151,419,440
Total Current Liabilities 6,765,310,308 537,736,534 855,633,433 7,097,397,725
Total Liabilities 15,124,950,701 537,736,534 855,633,433 15,457,038,119
Total Equity and Liabilities 20,177,029,542 762,579,727 818,392,620 20,696,719,339
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37.02 Segment profit from operation is used to measure performance because management belives that this information is the most

relevant in evaluating the results of the respective segments relative to other entities that operate in the same industries.

Segment wise Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30th June, 2024

Particulars Assembling Unit Body Unit MOtE;::tycle Total
Sales Revenue (Net) 124,614,455 6,319,362 - 130,933,817
Less: Cost of Goods Sold 91,762,749 9,515,117 - 101,277,866
Gross Profit (a) 32,851,706 (3,195,755) - 29,655,951
Less: Operating Expenses:
Administrative Expenses 41,013,065 3,633,164 - 44,646,230
Selling & Distribution Expenses 18,647,710 3,629,674 - 22,277,385
Financial Charges 181,352,972 - - 181,352,972
Total Operating Expenses (b) 241,013,748 7,262,838 - 248,276,586
Operating Profit/Loss (c) = (a-b) (208,162,042) | (10,458,593) - (218,620,635)
Non-Operating Income:
Non-operating income 16,588,770 - - 16,588,770
Add: Share of Profit from Associate Company 27,647,234 - - 27,647,234
Total Non-Operating Income (d) 44,236,004 - - 44,236,004
Profit/Loss before Contribution to WPPF (e)=(c+d) (163,926,038) | (10,458,593) - (174,384,631)
Less: Contribution to WPPF - - - -
Profit/Loss after Contribution to WPPF (163,926,038) | (10,458,593) - (174,384,631)
Add: Share of Profit from Subsidiaries 3,950,944 - - 3,950,944
Net Profit/Loss before Tax (f) (159,975,093) | (10,458,593) - (170,433,686)
Less: Income Tax Expenses
Current Tax 3,914,349 1,501,697 2,205 5,418,251
Deferred Tax (31,449,819) (2,353,183) 6,250,195 (27,552,808)
Total Income Tax Expenses (g) (27,535,470) (851,487) 6,252,400 (22,134,556)
Profit/Loss after Tax (h) = (f-g) (132,439,623) (9,607,106) (6,252,400) (148,299,129)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year:
Investment Valuation Surplus in Share
Revaluation Gain/(Loss) on Investment in Share - - - -
Deferred Tax - - - -
Total Investment Valuation Surplus in Share (i) - - - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (j)=(h+i) (132,439,623) (9,607,106) (6,252,400) (148,299,129)
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In accorance with paragraph 19 of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures, the following matters has been disclosed in the following

sequential order:

Parent and Ultimate Controlling Party

There is no such parent company as well as ultimate holding company / controlling party of the company.

Entities with joint control of, or significant influence over

There is no joint control of, or significant influence over the company.

Subsidiareis

Navana Batteries Limited is a subsidiary company of which 99.95% shares owned by the entity (company).

Associates

Navana Real Estate Limited is an Associate Company of the entity (company).
Joint Venture in which the Entity is a Joint Venturer

The Company has not entered into Joint Venture Agreement in which the Company is a Joint Venturer.
Transactions with Key Management Personnel and their Compensation

(a) Loans to Director

During the year, no loan was given to the directors of Company

(b) Key Management Personnel and their Compensation

There is no compensation for Chairman, Director and Managing Director except Board Meeting fee but there are following categories of
compensation in accordance with the paragraph 17 of IAS 24: Related Party Disclosures:

. Amount Amount
Particulars
30.06.2024 30.06.2023
Salary (including PF) 20,067,043 44,351,895
Directors Remuneration 4,200,000 4,200,000
Provision for Gratuity - 2,369,052
Board Meeting Attendance Fee 231,000 396,000
Total 24,498,043 51,316,947

Company's key management personnel includes the Company's directors. Compensation includes salary, non-cash benefits and

contributions to a post employment defined benefits plan.

Other Related Party Transactions

During the period, the company carried out a number of transactions with related parties in the normal course of business. The name of
the related parties, nature of transaction and transaction value have been set out in accordance with the provisions of IAS 24: Related

Party Disclosure are as follows:
Inter Company Receivables

Nature of Transaction for the year Outstanding/Receivable
Name of Related Party Relationship .

Transaction 2024 2023 2024 2023
Navana Limited Alliance Companie§ Interest on loan 301,428,567 419,799,033 3,961,429,803 3,660,001,236
Navana Real Estate Ltd. Alliance Companie§ Interest on loan (28,795,970 72,480,097 174,171,860 202,967,830
Navana Construction Ltd. Alliance Companie} Interest on loan 125,708,126 60,668,626 186,376,752 60,668,626
Navana Interlinks Ltd. Alliance Companie§ Interest on loan 7,242,051 2,000,418 9,242,469 2,000,418
Biponon Ltd. Alliance Companie$ Interest on loan 9,264,800 8,800,000 18,064,800 8,800,000
Navana Pertoleum Ltd. Alliance Companie} Interest on loan 2,127,548 17,583,038 19,710,586 17,583,038
Navana Building Product Ltd.| Alliance Companiep Interest on loan 9,239,367 827,000 10,066,367 827,000
Navana Furniture Ltd. Alliance Companiet Interest on loan 1,106,800 300,000 1,406,800 300,000
Navana Engineering Ltd. Alliance Companief Interest on loan 51,791,204 21,363,047 78,804,251 27,013,047
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Inter Company Payables

Nature of Transaction for the year Outstanding / Receivable
Name of Party Relationship .
Transaction 2024 2023 2024 2023
[‘tzvla”a Welding Electrode | i ce Companie} Interest on loan - 11,300 19,200,000 19,200,000
Navana Foods Ltd. Alliance Companieq Interest on loan 2,500,000 1,000,000 3,500,000 1,000,000
Navana LPG Ltd. Alliance Companieq Interest on loan (13,300,000) 38,950,000 25,650,000 38,950,000
Navana CNG Ltd. Alliance Companieq Interest on loan 24,500,000 - 24,500,000 -
Navana Logistics Ltd. Alliance Companieq Interest on loan 2,300,000 - 2,300,000 -
Navana Electronics Ltd. Alliance Companieq Interest on loan 5,227,000 - 5,227,000 -

Amount due by Directors

There is no advance in the name of the directors or associates undertaking of the company.

Number of Employees
During the year total number of employees/workers for the company was 43

Significant Disclosure

Revenue:

a). Model changed from AK1J to AK8J:

Our strategic transition from the AK1J to the AK8J model, prompted by the phase-out of the AK1J chassis in Japan in July 2023, was a
crucial move. It not only maintained our competitive advantage in the market but also showcased our agility in adapting to market
changes and our dedication to innovation. By swiftly incorporating the AK8J chassis into production, we ensured operational continuity
and minimized disruptions to our sales channels. This transition guarantees that we continue to deliver advanced, high-quality vehicles
that meet the evolving expectations of consumers and the industry.

b). Incorporation of the New Model & Technical Training:

Our technical team has completed extensive training on the AK8J model to ensure a smooth transition. This comprehensive program has
equipped our team with the skills and expertise necessary to manage the new technology effectively, upholding our high standards of
product quality and operational efficiency. This proactive approach has not only enabled us to meet current market demands but has also
positioned us to capitalize on future technological advancements, thereby enhancing our long-term operational capabilities.

c). Impact of Chassis Discontinuation (July 2023):

The AK1) chassis was discontinued in July 2023, posing potential challenges. However, our smooth transition to the AK8J ensured that
production schedules were not disrupted. As a result, there were no significant delays in our delivery timelines or sales operations,
allowing us to maintain a steady revenue flow. This seamless transition showcases our effective planning and operational resilience in
managing industry shifts.

d). Impact of the Political Situation:

In the last quarter of 2023-2024, student protests in Bangladesh against the government's job quota system caused significant market
disruptions, leading to a temporary decrease in sales. The political unrest, including roadblocks and transportation issues, had a negative
impact on our supply chain, resulting in delays in product deliveries and affecting sales operations. This challenging period coincided with
our transition from the AK1J to the AK8)J chassis, adding complexity to our operations. Despite these external challenges, we effectively
handled the situation, successfully completing the model transition and positioning the company for recovery and growth once the
political situation stabilizes. Our ability to overcome these obstacles demonstrates our resilience and strategic planning.

Gross Profit:

The increase in gross profit margin from 16.52% in 2023 to 22.65% in 2024 was driven by several factors. The successful integration of the
AK8J chassis led to operational efficiencies and cost savings. Additionally, Navana Batteries Limited's strong performance, with increased
sales volumes, allowed for better absorption of fixed costs, contributing to improved profitability. This substantial rise in gross profit
margin underscores our commitment to streamlining production processes, optimizing cost structures, and enhancing overall operational
efficiency. These efforts, along with strategic investments in technology and workforce development, have strengthened our ability to
deliver improved financial results and maintain a competitive edge in the market.

136



42.00 Capital Expenditure Commitment
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There was no commitment for capital expenditure and also not incurred or provided for the year ended 30th June, 2024.

Contingent Assets

There was no contingent assets as on 30th June, 2024.

Remittance of Dividend

As there were no non-resident shareholders, no dividend was remitted to or received from abroad.

Credit Facility not Availed

There was no credit facility available to the Company under any contract and also not availed as on 30th June, 2024 other than
trade credit available in the ordinary course of business.

Attendance Status of Board Meeting of Directors

During the year there was 7 Board Meetings were held. The attendance status of all the meetings is as follows:

Name of the Directors Position Duration/ Period Meeting Held Attended
Shafiul Islam Chairman 7 4
Khaleda Islam Director 7 5
Saiful Islam Managing Director 7 7
Sajedul Islam Director July, 2023 to June, 2024 7 6
Farhana Islam Director 7 4
Md. Mustafizur Rahman Independent Director 7 4
Abul Layes Afsary Independent Director 7 4

Auditors fees for service rendered

As per schedule XI, part Il, para 6 of Companies Act, 1994, auditors are only paid audit fees (Excluding VAT) of Tk. 450,000. No
other service has been taken from auditor hence other then this no other fees given to aditor.

Disclosures as per Requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il of the Companies Act, 1994

(Employee Position as on 30th June, 2024)

(A) Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part I, Notes 5 of Para 3

Monthly Salary Range Head Office Factory No. of Employee
Above 5000 8,503,967 11,563,076 43
Below 5000 Nil Nil Nil
(B) Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il, Para 4
Payment/Perquisites to Directors and Officers
. - . Festival .
Name of the Directors Position Remuneration Bonus AIT Deduction Net Amount
Shafiul Islam Chairman
Khaleda Islam Director
Saiful Islam Managing Director 4,200,000 - 420,000 3,780,000
Sajedul Islam Director
Farhana Islam Director

Md. Mustafizur Rahman

Independent Director

Abul Layes Afsary

Independent Director

137

aftab automobiles limited



/;g!g MZ Islam & Co.

Chartered Accountants

The period of payment to Directors is from 1st July 2023 to 30th June 2024.
The above Directors of the Company did not take any benefit from the Company other than the remuneration and festival bonus.

i) Expenses reimbused to the managing agent: Nil.

i) Commission or other remuneration payable seperately to a managing agent or his associate: Nil.

iii) Commission received or receivable by the managing agent or his associate as selling or buying agent of other concerns in respect of
contracts entered into such concerns with the company: Nil.

iv) The money value of the contracts for the sale or purchase of goods and materials or supply of services, entered into by the company
with the managing agent or his associate during the financial year: Nil.

v) Any other perquisites or benefit in cash or in kind stating: Nil.

vi) Other allowances and commission including guarantee commission: Nil.

vii) Pernsions: Nil.

viii) Gratuities: Nil.

ix) Payments from Provident Fund: Nil.

x) Compensatin for Loss of Office: Nil.

xi) Consideration in connection with retirement from office: Nil.

49.00 Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part I, Para 3

Compliance status
Di
Requirements under Condition No. Sccl:fe d::l(:‘;(SI:‘Ir’ngII,
Para3
3(i)(a) The Turnover 130,933,817
3(i)(b) Commission Paid to Selling Agents (Incentive) N/A
3(i)(c) Brokerage and discount of Sales, Other than the usual trade discount Nill
3(i)(d)(i) The value of the raw materials consumed, giving item-wise as possible 77,824,212
. " . . OB 95,002,066,CB
3(i)(d)(ii) The opening and closing stocks of goods produced 70,391,879
3(i) (e) In the case of companies, the purchase made and the opening and closing stocks N/A
3(i)(f) In the case of companies rendering or supplying services, the gross income derived from services rendered or 99 655.951
supplied U
3(i)(g) Opening and closing stocks, purchases, sales and consumption of raw materials with value and quantity break
up for the Company, which falls under one or more categories i.e. manufacturing and/or trading Complied
3(i)(h) In the case of other companies, the gross income derived under different heads 44,236,004
3(i)(i) Work-in-progress, which have been completed at the commencement and at the end of the accounting period Nill
3(i)(i) Provision for depreciation, renewals or diminution in value of fixed assets N/A
3(i)(k) Interest on the debenture paid or payable to the Managing Director, Managing Agent and the Manager N/A
3(i)(1) Charge for income tax and other taxation on profits 22,134,556
3(i)(m) Reserved for repayment of share capital and repayment of loans Nill
3(i)(n)(i) Amount set aside or proposed to be set aside, to reserves, but not including provisions made to meet any Nill
specific liability, contingency or commitment, known to exist at the date as at which the balance sheet is made up
3(i)(n)(ii) Amount withdrawn from above mentioned reserve Nill
3(i)(0)(i) Amount set aside to provisions made for meeting specific liabilities, contingencies of commitments. Nill
3(i)(0)(i) Amount withdrawn from above mentioned provisions, as no longer required. Nill
3(i)(p) Expenditure incurred on each of the following items, seperately for each item:
(i) Power and Fuel 3,427,394
(i) Rent 1,047,986
(iii) Repairs of Buildings 135,318
(iv) Repairs of Machinery 123,532
(v) Other include:
(1) Salaries, wages and bonus 20,067,043
(2) Workmen and staff welfare expenses 157,333
(3) Reserve 67,338,231

aftab automobiles limited 138




50.00

51.00

52.00

53.00

54.00

55.00

/;g!g MZ Islam & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Information regarding Accounts Receivables, Advance in line with Schedule XI
i. Disclosure in line with 4(a) of Part | of Schedule XI
The details of trade receivable are given below:

SI. No. Particulars Al il
30.06.2024 30.06.2023
1 Within 3 Months 956,872,332 957,989,431
2 Within 6 Months 800,335,988 802,119,067
3 Within 12 Months 847,920,380 833,936,741
4 More than 12 Months 2,123,330,738 2,134,933,513

ii. Disclosure in line with 4(b) of part | of Schedule XI

There are no debts outstanding in this respect.

Disclosure in line with Instruction of Part of Schedule XI

In regard to sundry debtors the following particulars shall be given separately:
i) Debt considered good in respect of which the company is fully secured

Within six months trade debtors occurred in the ordinary course of business are considered good but no security given by the d
ii) Debt considered good for which the company holds no security other than the debtors' personal security

Withinsix monthstradedebtorshavearisenin the ordinarycourseof businessin goodfaith as wellas marketreputationof the company
for the above mentioned reasons no personal security taken from debtors.

iii) Debt considered doubtful or bad

The company considered more than one-year debts to be doubtful and a provision was created for Tk. Nill.

iv) Debt due by directos or other officers of the Company
There is no debt due by directors or other officers of the company.

v) Debt due by common management
There is no debt under common management.

vi) The maximum amount due by directors or other officers of the Company
There is no such debt in this respect.

Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part Il, Para 7

Details of Production Capacity Utilization:

Particulars Assembling Body Total (AAL)
Production Capacity (Vehicle/Fabrication) 2400 400 2,800
Produciton duting the year 22 5 27
Capacity Utilization (%) 0.92% 1.25% 0.96%

Disclosure as per requirement of Schedule XI, Part I, Para 8(b) during the year under audit.
Details of import on CIF basis

i) Raw Materials

Purchase in Taka L
Items Consumption in Taka Percentage
Import Local Total
Raw Materials 49,105,477 4,108,547 53,214,025 77,824,212 146%)|
Total 49,105,477 4,108,547 53214025 77,824,212

The value of imported material is calculated on CIF Basis.

ii) The Company has not incurred any expenditurein foreign currency for the period from 1st July, 2023 to 30th June, 2024 on account of
royalty, know-how, professional fee, consultancy fees and interest.

iii) The Company has not earned any foreign exchanges for royalty, know-how, professional fees and consultancy fees.

iv) The value of export from the period from 1st July, 2023 to 30th June, 2024.

Schedule XI, Part I, Para 8(b) & Para 8(d) Foreign Currencies remitted during the year

During the year under review the company did not remit any amount as dividend, technical know-how, royalty, professional consultation
fees, interest and other matters either its shareholder or others.

Disclosure for purchase in foreign currency during the year
Disclosure as per Para 8 of Schedule XI (kh) of the Companies Act, 1994 regarding purchase made in foreign currency during the year are
as follows:

Type of Expenditure Amount in Foreign Currency Amount in BDT.
Import of Raw Material (Hino Bus Chassis CKD) ¥ 60,150,000 49,105,477
Total 49,105,477
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56.00 Financial Instrument-Fair Values and Risk Management

56.01 Accounting Classifications and Fair Values

The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities. It does not include fair value information for financial assets
and financial liabilities not measured at fair value as the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Carrying Amount Tk. '000
Reconciliation of Carrying Fair Value | Mandator Financial
. ¥ FVOCl-debt | FVOCI-equity Other Financial
Amount Note Hedging at FVTPL- ) 3 assets at o Total
instruments | instruments i Liabilities
Instruments others amortized cost

30.06.2024

Financial Assets measured at Fair
Value:

Equity Securities

Financial Assets not measured at

Fair Value:

Receivables 10 - - - - 4,728,459 - 4,728,459
Advance, Deposit & Prepayments 15 - - - - 6,253,974 - 6,253,974
Investlments in subsidiary and 9 . . . ) 1,230,733 1,230,733
associate company

Deferred Tax Assets 11 123,010 123,010
Cash and Cash Equivalents 16 - - - - 295,700 - 295,700
Total - - - - 12,631,877 - 12,631,877
Financial Liabilities measured at
fair value:

Financial Liabilities not measured

at fair value:

Loan and deferred liabilities 21 . . . ) 25,310 25310
Unsecured)

Long Term Loan 22 - - - - 11,112,440 11,112,440
Short Term Loan 23 - - - - 2,522,823 2,522,823
Accrued and Other Current 2 . . A . 1,645,045 1,645,045
Liabilities

Unclaimed Dividend Account 25 - - - - 151,419 151,419
Total - - - - - 15,457,038 15,457,038
30.06.2023

Financial Assets measured at Fair

Value:

Equity Securities

Financial Assets not measured at

Fair Value:

Receivables 10 - - - - 4,728,979 - 4,728,979
Advance, Deposit & Prepayments 15 - - - - 5,735,943 - 5,735,943
Invest.ments in securities and 9 1,199,135 1,199,135
associate company

Deferred Tax Assets 11 95,457 95,457
Cash and Cash Equivalents 16 - - - - 274,690 - 274,690
Total - - - - 12,034,203 - 12,034,203
Financial Liabilities measured at

fair value:

Financial Liabilities not measured

at fair value:

Loan and deferred liabilities 21 25,310 25,310
Unsecured)

Long Term Loan 22 - - - - - 9,200,823 9,200,823
Short Term Loan 23 - - - - - 3,583,915 3,583,915
Alccr‘u‘e'd and Other Current 24 . . i i i 1,207,900 1,207,900
Liabilities

Unclaimed Dividend Account 25 - - - - - 103,033 103,033
Total - - - - - 14,120,982 14,120,982

Advances, deposits and prepayments are not included in the financial assets.

The company has not disclosed the fair values for financial instruments such as trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, investment in
subsidiaries, investment, trade/security deposit, employment benefits, short term interest bearing loans, accrued & other current liabilities and
unclaimed dividend account because of thair carrying amount are a reasonable approximation of fair value.
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M1

Financial Risk Management Framework

The Company's management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the company's risk management
framework. The Company's Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed
regularly to reflact changes in market conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environmentin which all employees understand their
roles and obligations. The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

56.02.1 Credit Risk, 56.02.2 Liquidity Risk 56.02.3 Market Risk.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of a financial loss to the companyif a customer or counterpartyto a financial instrumentfails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the company's receivable.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of customer, including the default risk of the
industry and financial strength of the customer, as these factors may have an influence on credit risk. Geographically there is no
concentration of credit risk.

The debtors management review committee has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for
creditworthiness before the company’s payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. Credit limits are established for each
customer, which representsthe maximum outstandingamount of credit sale without requiring approval from the committee; these limits
are reviewed as per guideline of Aftab Automobiles Limited in each quarter. Customers that fail to meet the company’s benchmark
creditworthiness may transact with the company only on a cash / deposit scheme basis.

Managementhas a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitor on an ongoing basis. As at 30th June, 2024, substantial
part of the receivables are as follows and subject to insignificant credit risk. Risk exposure from other financial assets, i.e. Cash at bank
and other external receivables are also nominal.

(i) Exposure to Credit Risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
data was:

Non-Derivative Financial Assets: Cuouidiniisie
30.06.2024 30.06.2023

Receivables 4,728,459,439 4,728,978,753
Inter Company Transactions 4,378,896,687 4,906,691,199
Advance to Suppliers 917,274,738 872,497,960
Advance to Employees 12,320,097 13,941,124
Advance to Others 572,296,258 427,299,486
Security Deposits 276,056,260 279,116,960
Cash at Bank 274,182,635 274,182,635
Cash in Hand 507,244 507,244
Total 11,159,993,358 11,503,215,361
At 30th June, 2024 the maximum exposure to credit risk for trade and other receivables by geographic regions was as follows:
Particulars 30.06.2024 30.06.2023
Domestic 4,728,459,439 4,728,978,753
Foreign Receivable - -
Total 4,728,459,439 4,728,978,753
Ageing Schedule of Receivables: 4,728,459,439 4,728,978,753
Duration
1-30 days 265,003,311 269,063,951
31-60 days 280,602,895 274,220,986
61-90 days 411,266,126 414,704,494
91-180 days 800,335,988 802,119,067
181-365 days 847,920,380 833,936,741
Over 365 days 2,123,330,738 2,134,933,513
Total 4,728,459,439 4,728,978,753

To mitigate the credit risk against trade receivablesand others, the company has a system of specific credit line period to the customers.
This outstanding period and amount are regularly monitored. The company endeavors to cover the credit risks on all other receivables,
where possible, by restricting credit facility and stringent monitoring.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The company's approach to
managing liquidity (cash and cash equivalents)is to ensure, as far possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the company's
reputation. Typically, the company ensures that it has sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet expected operational expenses,
including financial obligations through preparation of the cash flow forecast, prepaid based on time line of payment of the financial
obligation and accordingly arrange for sufficient liquidity/fund to make the expected payment within due date.

aftab automobiles limited
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Exposure to Liquitty Risk

The followingare the remaining contractualmaturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amountsare gross and undiscounted,and
include estimatedinterest paymentsand excludethe impact of netting agreements.The carringamountof financialliability representthe maximum
exposure to liquidity risk. The maximum exposure to liquidity risk as at 30th June, 2024.

30th June, 2024

Contractual Cash Flows

In Taka Notes | Carrying Amount Total 2 months or les§ 2-12 months 1-5 years

Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Loan and Deferred Liabilities (Unsecured)| 21 25,310,440 25,310,440 2,531,044 7,593,132 15,186,264
Long Term Loan-Non-Current Maturity 22 8,334,329,953 8,334,329,953 833,432,995 2,500,298,986 5,000,597,972
Long Term Loan-Current Maturity 22 2,778,109,984 2,778,109,984 277,810,998 833,432,995 1,666,865,991
Short Term Loan 23 2,522,823,334 2,522,823,334 - 1,009,129,334 1,513,694,000
Accrued and Other Current Liabilities 24 1,645,044,967 1,645,044,967 164,504,497 493,513,490 987,026,980
Unclaimed Dividend Account 25 151,419,440 151,419,440 15,141,944 45,425,832 90,851,664

15,457,038,118 15,457,038,118 1,293,421,478 4,889,393,769 9,274,222,871
Derivative financial liabilities - - - R .
15,457,038,118 15,457,038,118 1,293,421,478 4,889,393,769 9,274,222,871

30th June, 2023

Contractual Cash Flows

In Taka Notes | Carrying Amount Total 2 months or IesJ 2-12 months 1-5 years

Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Loan and Deferred Liabilities (Unsecured)] 21 25,310,440 25,310,440 2,531,044 7,593,132 15,186,264
Long Term Loan-Non-Current Maturity 22 6,900,617,178 6,900,617,178 690,061,718|  2,070,185,153 |  4,140,370,307
Long Term Loan-Current Maturity 22 2,300,205,726 2,300,205,726 230,020,573 690,061,718 1,380,123,436
Short Term Loan 23 3,583,915,275 3,583,915,275 - 1,433,566,110 2,150,349,165
Accrued and Other Current Liabilities 24 1,207,899,602 1,207,899,602 120,789,960 362,369,881 724,739,761
Unclaimed Dividend Account 25 103,033,470 103,033,470 10,303,347 30,910,041 61,820,082

14,120,981,692 14,120,981,692|  1,053,706,642|  4,594,686,035|  8,472,589,014

Derivative financial liabilities

14,120,981,692 14,120,981,692 1,053,706,642 4,594,686,035 8,472,589,014
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Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that any change in market price, such as foreign exchange rates and interest
rates will affect the company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters.

(i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rate. Exposure to fair value movement relates to fixed rate
instrument subject to fair value accounting and exposure to cash flow fluctuation relates to variable
rate instruments. The compan is primarily exposed to cash flow fluctuation arising from variable rate
borrowings. The objective of interest rate management for the Aftab Automobiles Limited is to
reduce financial cost and ensure predictability.

(ii) Currency Risk

The company is exposed to currency risk on certain revenues and purchases such as revenue from
foreign customers and import of raw material, machineries and equipment. Majority of the
company's foreign currency transactions are denominated in USD and relate to procurement of raw
materials, machineries and equipment from abroad.

Capital Management

Capital management refers to implementing policies and measures to maintain sufficient capital,
assessing company’s internal capital adequacy to ensure company’s operation as a going concern.
Capital consists of share capital, general reserve and revaluation reserve. All major investment and
operational decisions with exposure to certain amount are evaluated and approved by the board. The

board of directors monitors the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

Event after the Reporting Period

The directors in the meeting held on 27th day of October, 2024 recommended 10% cash dividend for
the general shareholders only excluding sponsors & directors whose name will be appeared in the
shareholders' registers at the date of record date which is subject to shareholders' approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on 24th day of December, 2024.

"Except the fact stated above, no circumstances have been arisen since the balance sheet date which
would require adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements or notes thereto."
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Suite No-B13, Level-13,Navana Zohura Square admin@shazzadca.com
28 Kazi Nazrul Islam Avenue

SHAZZAD & CO Banglamotor, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh [8] www.shazzadca.com

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To
The Shareholders of NAVANA BATTERIES LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of NAVANA BATTERIES LIMITED which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2024, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity andthe statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a comprising summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
NAVANA BATTERIES LIMITEDas at 30 June 2024, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the yearthat
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (IASs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have
fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye-Laws. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs, the Companies Act, 1994, andother applicable laws and regulations and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.In preparing the financial statements, management
is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations or has no realistic alternatives but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting processes.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with (ISAs) International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with (ISAs) International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that gives a true and fair view.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the Companies Act, 1994, we also report the following:

(@) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit and made due verification thereof;

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appeared from our examination of those books; and

(c) the statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income dealt
with by the report are in agreement with the books of account.

\

Dr. Mohammad Mosttafa Shazzad Hasan FCA CPA

Proprietor

ICAB Enrolment No.-1433
Place : Dhaka SHAZZAD & CO., Chartered Accountants
22 October 2024 DVC: 2410221433A0664178
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NAVANA BATTERIES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at June 30, 2024
Particulars Notes Amount In Taka !
June 30, 2024 | [ June 30, 2023 |
Assets
Non-Current Assets 1,393,871,515 1,363,609,488
Property, plant and equipment 5 957,165,318 925,117,099
Capital work in progress 6 83,827,112 80,520,189
Right use of assets 7 32,887,317 36,541,463
Receivables -Non current maturity 8 319,991,769 321,430,737
Non-Current Assets
Current Account with Navana Group Companies 2,995,061,238 | | 2,636,842,341
Current Assets : 3,046,430,106 3,080,459,086
Receivables -current maturity 8 254,942,712 257,723,744
Stock and stores 9 841,835,375 866,772,410
Advance, deposits and prepayments 10 1,942,744,855 1,930,747,748
Cash and bank balances 11 6,907,165 25,215,184
Total Assets 7,435,362,859 7,080,910,915
Equity and Liabilities
Equity attributable to equity holders 748,577,362 744,624,266
Share Capital 12 183,702,690 183,702,690
Retained Earnings 13 564,874,672 560,921,576
Non Current Liabilities 3,230,911,098 3,068,080,214
Deferred Tax Liability 14 11,461,267 27,350,977
Long Term Loan-Non current maturity 15 2,092,401,826 2,017,449,233
Inter Company Liabilities (Aftab Automobiles Ltd.) 1,088,164,004 985,680,004
Lease Liability 16 38,884,000 37,600,000
Current Liabilities 3,455,874,399 3,268,206,435
Long Term Loan- current maturity 15 697,467,275 672,483,078
Short Term Loan 17 2,529,163,170 2,370,666,357
Accrued And Other Current Liabilities 18 229,243,954 225,057,000
Total Equity and Liabilities 7,435,362,859 7,080,910,915
Net assets value per share (NAVPS) 24 40.75 40.53

The financial statements were authorized for assurance by the Board Of Directors on 22 October, 2024.

The accompanying notes from an integral part of this financial statement and are to be read in conjunction therewith.

H L’L @é'”él lrﬁéo’.ag‘

Director

Robot [ohmind

Director Company Secretary

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date.

\

Dr. Mohammad Mosttafa Shazzad Hasan FCA, CPA (1433)
SHAZZAD & CO.
Chartered Accountants
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NAVANA BATTERIES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Particulars Notes AmountIn Taka I
June 30,2024 ||  June30,2023 |
Revenues 19 345,816,823 199,446,129
Cost Of Goods Sold 20 248,262,660 143,433,740
Gross profit 97,554,163 56,012,389
Operating Expenses 107,079,321 74,889,743
Administrative Expenses 21 25,189,834 10,659,037
Selling And Distribution Expenses 22 23,313,171 13,735,748
Financial Charges 58,576,315 50,494,958
Operating Profit/Loss (9,525,158) (18,877,354)
Non-Operating Income | - | | - |
Profit before contribution to WPPF (9,525,158) (18,877,354)
Contribution to WPPF | - | | - |
Net Profit/Loss before tax (9,525,158) (18,877,354)
Provision for income tax : (13,478,254) (17,024,926)
Current TAX 23 2,411,456 1,622,651
Deferred TAX 14 (15,889,710) (18,647,578)
Net Profit/Loss after tax 3,953,096 (1,852,427)
Earning Per Share (EPS) 25 0.22 (0.10)

The financial statements were authorized for assurance by the Board Of Directors on 22 October, 2024.

The accompanying notes from an integral part of this financial statement and are to be read in conjunction therewith.

K hwé’v‘-/ﬂ fﬁéo’.flg W MMM,J

Director Director Company Secretary
Signed in terms of our separate report of even date.

>
Dr. Mohammad Mosttafa Shazzad Hasan FCA, CPA (1433)
Dhaka, 22 October 2024 SHAZZAD & CO.
DVC: 2410221433A0664178 Chartered Accountants
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NAVANA BATTERIES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For The Year Ended June 30, 2024
i Attributable to shareholder's equity .
Particulars = = = = Total Equity
Paid-up Capital Retained Earnings
Balance as on July 01, 2023 183,702,690 560,921,576 744,624,266
Net Profit for the Year - 3,953,096 3,953,096
[ Balance as on June 30, 2024 | 183,702,690 | 564,874,672 | 748,577,362 |

NAVANA BATTERIES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For The Year Ended June 30, 2023

. Attributable to shareholder's equity .
Particulars = = = = Total Equity
Paid-up Capital Retained Earnings
Balance as on July 01, 2022 183,702,690 562,774,005 746,476,693
Net Loss for the Year - (1,852,427) (1,852,427)
Balance as on June 30, 2023 | 183,702,690 || 560,921,576 || 744,624,266 |

The financial statements were authorized for assurance by the Board Of Directors on 22 October, 2024.

The accompanying notes from an integral part of this financial statement and are to be read in conjunction therewith.

Robat [ohmid

Company >ecretary

K Jr'L wé-ﬂi—/"t {'..f,éo'.ak

Director Director

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date.

\)

Dr. Mohammad Mosttafa Shazzad Hasan FCA, CPA (1433)
SHAZZAD & CO.

Dhaka, 22 October 2024
Chartered Accountants

DVC: 2410221433A0664178
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NAVANA BATTERIES LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2024

Amount In Taka ]

LI EIETE June 30,2024 || June30,2023 |
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers 401,909,347 270,441,904
Payments for materials, services and expenses (272,556,809) (215,706,337)
Cash generated from operations 129,352,538 54,735,567
Income tax Paid (377,450) | | (1,307,497) |
Net Cash generated from operations 128,975,088 53,428,070
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Acquisition of property, plant & equipment (52,230,663) -
Advance for capital Assets - (65,392,791)
Payments for capital work in progress - (11,890,730)
Net Cash used in Investing Activities (52,230,663) (77,283,521)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from bank loan - 287,593,021
Inter company transaction 102,484,000 37,697,536
Bank interest paid & debt paid (221,058,829) -
Current Account with Navana Group Companies 23,522,385 (277,995,485)
Net Cash provided by Financing Activities (95,052,444) 47,295,072
Net Changes in Cash & Cash Equivalents (18,308,019) 23,439,621
Cash & Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the year | 25,215,184 | | 1,775,564 |
Cash & Cash Equivalents at End of the year 6,907,165 25,215,184
Net operating cash flows per share (NOCFPS) 7.02 291

The financial statements were authorized for assurance by the Board Of Directors on 22 October, 2024.

The accompanying notes from an integral part of this financial statement and are to be read in conjunction therewith.

K J»'Lw»é’”‘-/ﬂ f.r,aéof.a{

Director

Robot Mihmed

Director Company Secretary

Signed in terms of our separate report of even date.

\

Dr. Mohammad Mosttafa Shazzad Hasan FCA, CPA (1433)

Dhaka, 22 October 2024
DVC:2410221433A0664178
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NAVANA BATTERIES LIMITED
EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2024

Raporting Entity

Company Profile

Navana Batteries Limited is a private limited company incorporated on the 21st of April 2009, Vide
Registration number C-76441/2009 of Joint Stock Companies & Firms, Dhaka, Bangladesh under the
Companies Act, 1994. The Company's Registered Office is located at 125/A, Motijheel Commercial Area,
(4th Floor), Dhaka 1000. The Corporate Office of the Company is situated at Bashati Aristocrats (4th
Floor), Block-SW (H) 6, Bir Uttam Mir Shawkat Sarak, Gulshan Avenue, Dhaka-1212.

Other Corporate Information

(i) Trade License: TRAD/DSCC/080216/2019 dated: 06.07.2024
(ii) e-TIN No.: 719565739465 dated: 30.08.2014

(iii) VAT Registration No.: 000793558-0203 dated: 01.07.2019

Nature of Business
The principal activities of the Company are manufacturing of automotive, industrial and solar batteries
in the plant located at Fouzdarhat Industrial Area, Chattagram, Bangladesh.

Presentation of Financial Statements

The presentation of these financial statements is in accordance with the guidelines provided by IAS 1:
Presentation of financial statements. The financial statements comprise of:

i. Statement of Financial Position as at 30th June, 2024;

ii. Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30th June, 2024;

iii. Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 30th June, 2024;
iv. Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 30th June, 2024;
v. Notes comprising summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Operating Segments

No operating segment is applicable for the Company as required by IFRS 8: Operating Segments as the
Company has only one operating segments and the operation of Company is within the geographical
territory in Bangladesh.

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

Statement on Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) and Intemational Accounting Standard (IAS) adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB), the Companies Act, 1994, Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987 and
other relevant laws as applicable.

Other Regulatory Compliances
The Company is also required to comply with the following major legal provisions in addition to
Companies Act, 1994 and other applicable laws and regulations:

The Income Tax Ordinance, 1984;

The Income Tax Rules, 1984;

The Value Added Tax and Supplementary Duty Act, 2012;

The Value Added Tax Rules, 1991;

The Stamp Act, 1899;

The Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission Act, 1993;
The Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987;

The Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969;

Bangladesh Labor Act, 2006 (as amended to 2013)
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Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared based on the accrual basis of accounting and prepare
under the historical cost convention except for the revaluation of certain non current assets which are
stated either at revaluated amount or fair market value as explained in the accompanying notes.

Accrual basis of Accounting

The Company prepares its financial statements, except for cash flow information, using the accrual basis
of accounting. Since the accrual basis of accounting is used, the company recognizes items as assets,
liabilities, equity, income and expenses (the elements of financial statements) when they satisfy the
definitions and recognition criteria for those elements in the IFRS conceptual Framework.

Functional and Presentation Currency

Functional and presentation currency items included in these financial statements are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the company operates (the functional
currency). These financial statements are presented in Bangladesh Taka ("BDT") which is also the
functional currency of the company. The amounts in these financial statements have been rounded off
to the nearest BDT except otherwise indicated.

Key Accounting Estimates and Judgments in applying Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards
including IAS's requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses
and for contingent assets and liabilities that require disclosure during and at the date of the financial
statements.

Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions of accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate
is revised and in any future periods affected as required by IAS 8: "Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors".

In particular, the key areas of estimation, uncertainly and critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements
include accrued expenses, inventory valuation and other payables.

Materiality, Aggregation and Off Setting

Each material item as considered by management significant has been displayed separately in the
financial statements. No amount has been set off unless the Company has legal right to set off the
amounts and intends to settle on net basis. Income and expenses are presented on a net basis only
when permitted by the relevant accounting standards.

The values of assets or liabilities as shown in the statement of financial position are not off-set by way
of deduction from another liability or asset unless there exist a legal right therefore. No such incident
existed during the year,

Going Concern Assumption

The financial statements are prepared on the basis of going concem assumption. As per management
assessment there is no material uncertainties related to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concem.

Comparative Information

Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of 2022-2023 in accordance with IAS-1
"Presentation of Financial Statements" for all numeric information in the financial statements and also
the narrative and descriptive information where it is relevant for understanding of the current periods
of financial statements. Prior year figure has been re-arranged wherever considered necessary to ensure
comparability with the current period.
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Responsibility for Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements as
per requirements of Companies Act, 1994.

Reporting Period
The reporting period of the Company covers one year from 1st day of July, 2023 to 30th June, 2024.

Approval of Financial Statements
The financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on October 22, 2024.

Accounting Principles and Policies
The accounting principles and policies in respect of material items of financial statements set out below
have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements:

Assets and Basis of their Valuation

Property, Plant and Equipments

Recognition and Measurements

These are capitalized at cost of acquisition and subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation in compliance with the benchmark treatment of IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment".
The cost of acquisition of an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use inclusive of inward freight, duties and
non-refundable taxes.

In a situation where it can clearly be demonstrated that expenditure has resulted in an increase in future
economic benefit expected to be obtained from the use of the fixed assets, the expenditure is
capitalized as an additional cost of the assets.

Cost also includes initial estimate of the costs of dismantling, removing the item and restoring this site
(generally called asset retirement obligation) are recognized and measured in accordance with IAS 37:
Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

On retirement or otherwise disposal of fixed assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation are
eliminated and any gain or loss on such disposal is reflected in the statement of comprehensive income
which is determined with reference to the net book value of assets and the net sales proceeds.

Maintenance Activities
Expenditure incurred after the assets have been put into operation, such as repairs & maintanance is
normally charged off as revenue expenditure in the year in which it is incurred.

Subsequent Cost

The Cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant & equipment is recognized in the carrying
amount of the item if it is possible that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow
to the company and its cost measured rellably. The cost of the day to day servicing of property and
equipment are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income as
repairs and maintenance where it is incurred.

Depreciation on Tangible Fixed Assets

As required in Paragraph 43 of IAS-16 Property and Equipments, depreciation in respect of all fixed
assets is provided to amortize the cost of the assets after commissioning, over their expected useful
economic lves in accordance with the provision of IAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment".

Depreciation on all fixed assets excepting land and land development is computed using diminishing
balance method in amount sufficient to write-off depreciable assets over their estimated useful life.
Depreciation has been charged on additions and when it is used. Expenditure for maintenance and
repairs are expenses; major replacements, renewals and betterment are capitalized.

157 aftab automobiles limited



SHAZZAD & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

3.01.5

3.01.6

3.02

3.03

The cost and accumulated depreciation of depreciable assets retired or otherwise disposed off are
eliminated from the assets and accumulated depreciation and any gain or loss on such disposal is
reflected in the comprehensive income statement for the year ended. The annual depreciation rates
applicable to the principal categories are:

Category of Fixed Assets:
(1) Land & Land Development
(2) Building

(3) Plant & Machinery

(4) Tools & Equipments

(5) Office Equipments

(6) Furniture & Fixtures

(7) Transport Vehicles

(8) Electric Line Installation
(9) Office Decoration

(10) Gas Line Installation

Impairment

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is any indication of impalment loss. If any such indication exists, recoverable
amount is estimated to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any, impairment loss is recorded
on judgmental basis, for which provision may differ in the future years based on the actual experience.

Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is removed from the statement of financial position when it is
dispose off or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss
on the disposal of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is induded in the statement of income of the
period in which the de-recognition occurs.

Inventories

Inventories consisting of raw materials, work-in-process and finished goods are valued at a lower of cost
and net realizable value, Cost of inventories include expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories,
production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and
condition. Cost of inventories is determine by using the weighted average cost formula. Where
necessary, allowance is provided for damaged, obsolete and slow-moving items to adjust the carrying
amount of Inventories to the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is best on
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Category of Inventories:
(1) Raw Materials

(2) Work-in-Progress
(3) Finished Goods

Revenue Recognition
In compliance with the requirements of IFRS 15 "Revenue" is recognized to the extent that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the entity and the revenue can be reliably measured.

The Company recognizes as revenue the amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for goods or services when (or as) it transfers control to the customer.
To achieve that core principle, this standard establishes a five-step model as follows:
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3.04.1

3.04.2
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i. Identify the contract with a customer,

ii.  Identify the performance obligations in the contract,

iii. Determine the transaction price;

iv.  Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and
V. Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Considering the five steps model, the company recognizes revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies
a performance obligation by transferring a promised goods to a customer. Goods is considered as
transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of that goods. Revenue from sale of goods is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable net of returns and allowances,
trade discounts, rebates and Value Added Tax (VAT).

Financial Assets & Liabilities and Basis of their Valuation

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument in any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

The Company initially recognizes receivables, advances, deposits and pre-payments on the date that
they are originated. All other financial assets are recognized initially on the date at which the company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the transaction.

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights or probabilities of receiving the
cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the
financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset are transferred.

Financial asset includes accounts receivables, advances, deposits & pre-payments, cash and cash
equivalents.

(a) Accounts Receivables

Accounts receivable are created at original invoice amount less any provision for bed and doubtful debts.
Provisions are made where there is evidence of a risk of non payment, taking into account agting,
previous experience and general economic conditions. Where accounts receivables are determined to
be uncollectible it is written off, firstly against any provision available and than to the statement of profit
or less and other comprehensive income. Subsequent recoveries of the amounts previously provided for
are credited to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

(b) Advance, Deposits and Pre-payments

Advances are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, advances are carried at cost less
deductions, adjustments or charges to other account heads. Deposits are measured at payment value.
Prepayments are initially measured at cost. After initial recognition, prepayments are carried at cost less
charges to profit & loss account.
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3.04.3

3.05

3.06

3.07

3.08

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the Statement of Financial Position and the Statement of Cash Flows, cash in hend
and bank balances represents cash and cash equivalents considering the IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial
Statements" and IAS 7 "Statement of Cash Flow which provide, that cash and cash equivalents are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an in significant risks of changes in
value and are not restricted as to use.

Financial Liability

The company initially recognizes debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities on the date that they
are originated. All other financial liabilities are recognized initially on the transaction date at the
company becomes a party to the contractual provision of the liability.

The company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire.

Financial llabilities include loans and borrowing, accounts payables, provisions and other payables.

(a) Loans and Borrowings

Principal amounts of the loans and borrowings are stated at their amortized amount. Borrowings
repayable after twelve months from the date of statement of financial position are classified as non-
current liabilities whereas the portion of borrowings repayable within twelve months from the date of
statement of financial position, unpaid interest and other charges are classified as current liabilities.

(b) Accounts Payables

The company recognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations arising from past events are
certain and the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow from the entity of resources
embodying economic benefits.

(c) Provisions

A provision is recognized on the statement of financial position date if, as a result of past events, the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Going Concern Assumption

The financial statements are prepared on the basis of going concern assumption. As per management
assessment there is no material uncertainties related to events or conditions which may cast significant
doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the Statement of Financial Position and Cash Flows, cash in hand and bank balances
represents cash and cash equivalents considering the IAS 1 "Presentation of Financial Statements" and
IAS 7 "Cash Flow Statement" which provide, that cash and cash equivalents are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and are subject to an in significant risks of changes in value and are not
restricted as to use.

Statement of Cash Flows

The Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of IAS 7: Statement
of Cash Flows. The cash generated from operating activities has been reported using the Direct Method
as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Rules, 1987 and considering the provisions of Paragraph 19
of IAS 7 which provided that "Enterprises are Encouraged to Report Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Using the Direct Method".

Taxation

Income Tax expense comprises current and deferred taxes. Income tax expense is recognized in profit or
loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is
recognized in equity in accordance with IAS 12: Income Tax.
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(a) Current Tax:

Current Tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the period, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
periods.

The applicable tax rate of the company of Navana Batteries Ltd. is 27.50% as the companies are qualified
as a publicly traded company and private limited company respectively.

(b) Deferred Tax:

Deferred income tax is provided using the deferred method on temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences, except:

Where the deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss;

In respect of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled by the
company and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future;
and

In respect of deductible temporary differences and carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, if it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

(c) Value Added Tax:

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of Value Added Tax except: Where the
value added tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case the value added tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
or as part of the expense item as applicable; and Receivable and payables that are stated with the
amount of value added tax included. The net amount of value added tax recoverable from, or payable
to, taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

Related Party Disclosure

As per International Accounting Standard, IAS-24: 'Related Party Disclosures', parties are considered to
be related if one of the parties has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operating decisions. The Company carried out transactions
in the ordinary course of business on an arm's length basis at commercial rates with its related parties.

Borrowing Costs

In compliance with the requirements of IAS 23 "Borrowing Costs" borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they incurred and capitalized the
same that incurred before commencemerit of commercial operation.

Accruals, Provisions and Contingencies
(a) Accruals
Accruals are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or supplied but have not

been paid, invoiced or formally agreed with the supplier, including amounts due to employees. Accruals
are reported as part of trade and other payables.
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3.12

4.00

(b) Provisions

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the company has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provision is ordinarily measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting date. Where the company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the income statement net of any
reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a
finance cost. During the reporting year the company has made sufficient provisions where applicable.

(c) Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the company; or a present obligation that arises from past events but is not
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient
reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the company. At the reporting date the company does not have any contingent asset.

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognized in the statement of financial position of the
company.

Earnings per Share (EPS)

Earnings Per Share (EPS) are calculated in accordance with the International Accounting Standard IAS-33
"Earnings Per Share".

Basic Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the entity by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. The Basic
EPS of previous year has been restated to adjust the effect of bonus issue of shares during the year.

Diluted Earnings Per Share
For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per shares, an entity adjusts profit or loss attributable to
each ordinary equity holders of the entity, and weighted average number of shares outstanding, for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. Diluted EPS is only calculated where the company has
commitment to issue ordinary shares in future at reporting date. No such commitment is hold by
company at reporting date.

General
These notes form an integral part of the financial statements and accordingly are to be read in
conjunction therewith. Figures shown in the accounts have been rounded off to the nearest taka.
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6

Property, plant and equipment
Land & Land Development
Building
Plant & Machinery
Tools & Equipment's
Office Equipment
Furniture & Fixture
Transport Vehicles
Electric line Installation
Office Decoration
Gas line Installation

The details of which have been shown in Annexure- A
Capital work in progress

Opening balance

Add : Addition made during the period/ year

Less: Transferred to Property ,plant & equipment
Closing balance

SHAZZAD & CO.
Amount in Taka
30-06-2024 ||  30-06-2023
465,509,438 413,278,775
319,177,047 317,808,790
105,870,543 117,633,936
11,307,423 14,134,279
14,266,081 15,851,201
8,453,633 9,392,925
5,874,565 7,343,206
6,083,644 6,759,605
11,677,360 12,974,844
8,945,584 9,939,538
957,165,318 925,117,099
80,520,189 80,740,540
12,621,046 11,890,730
93,141,235 92,631,270
9,314,124 | | 12,111,081 |
83,827,112 80,520,189

Capital work-in-progress represents Land and Land Development, civil constructions etc.

Right Use of assets
Plant & Machinery

This is made up as follows:

At Cost

Opening Balance

Addition during the year
Disposal/Adjustment during the year

Accumuladed Depreciation

Opening Balance

Charged during the year
Disposal/Adjustment during the year

Written Down Value (WDV)
The details of which have been shown in Annexure- C

Receivables

Receivable current (Maturity less than 12 months )
Receivable Non-current (Maturity More than 12 months )
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32,887,317 || 36,541,463
32,887,317 36,541,463
60,702,954 60,702,954
60,702,954 60,702,954
24,161,491 20,101,328
3,654,146 4,060,163
27,815,637 24,161,491
32,887,317 36,541,463
254,942,712 257,723,744
319,991,769 321,430,737
574,934,481 579,154,481
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Ageing schedule of receivables:
Duration

1-30 days

31-60 days

61-90 days

91-180 days

181-365 days

Over 365 days

9 Stock and stores
Finished stock
Raw materials
Work-in-process
Goods in transit

10 Advance, deposits and prepayments
Advance to suppliers
Advance to employees
Advance to others
Current Account with VAT
Security & Deposits
Demand Tax
Advance for Capital Assets
Advance Income TAX (Note- 10.01)

10.01  Advance Income TAX
Opening balance
Add: during the year

Less: adjustment
Closing balance

Amount in Taka

30-06-2024 ||  30-06-2023
35,352,421 35,148,583
30,060,270 30,744,235
42,142,697 42,363,499
69,386,664 71,170,100
78,000,660 78,297,327

319,991,769 321,430,737
574,934,481 579,154,481
158,692,593 150,254,679
235,449,261 255,504,467
447,693,521 461,013,265
841,835,375 866,772,410
88,965,204 109,685,535
29,758,650 30,767,909
94,203,146 91,343,146
77,407,026 75,855,888
42,128,186 42,128,186
1,100,320 -
1,246,404,058 1,218,566,270
362,778,264 362,400,814
1,942,744,855 1,930,747,748
362,400,814 361,068,707
377,450 1,332,107
362,778,264 362,400,814
362,778,264 362,400,814

The above amount was deducted at the import point as well as from the Bills in different times at delivery

point.

Advance paid to suppliers against work order and considered good. Advance to employees against expenses,

11 Cash & bank balances
Cash in Hand Factory
Cash Balance of Sales Center
Cash at Bank (Note-11.01)
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842,044 311,404
1,984,717 347,167
4,080,404 24,556,613
6,907,165 25,215,184




11.01 Cash at Bank

12

13

14

NCC Bank Ltd., CD-26655, NBL, Dhaka

Standard Bank Ltd., CD-11519, NBL, Dhaka
MTBL, CD-005-02100-12239, NBL, Factory
NCCBL, CD-02-100-22999, NBL, Factory
MTBL,CD-12248, NBL, CTG Sales Centre

National Bank Ltd., CD-15927, NBL, Dhaka

Al Arafah Islami Bank Ltd., CD-52195, NBL, Dhaka
South East Bank Ltd., CD-6873, NBL, Dhaka
MTBL- Dhaka Sales Office-00633

IBL-71407

Uttara Bank Ltd.(A/C No.2667 12200213115)- Bhola
Uttara Bank Ltd. (2600 12200214858) BSL Office
Modhumoti BL, Gulshan Br.110311100000183
Shahjalal Islami Bank Ltd. # 15201

Share capital
Authorized :
50,000,000 ordinary shares of Taka 10/- each

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up capital

Ordinary shares 18,370,269 shares of Taka 10 each
Aftab Automobiles Ltd.

Non-controlling Interest (sponsors )

Retained Earnings
Opening Balance
Add: during the year

Less. Adjustment
Closing balance

Deferred Tax Liability

Total Deferred TAX Expenses (PL AC)
Total Deferred TAX Liabilities (FS AC)
Calculation of Deferred tax

. WDV on PPE as per Accounting Calculation

WDV on PPE as per Taxable Calculation
Unabsorbed Dep.

Unused tax loess

Temporary Difference

Deferred tax liabilities (A1)

Opening Deferred Tax (01.07.23)

Deferred Tax expenses During The Year (A2)
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Amount in Taka
30-06-2024 ||  30-06-2023

92,777 52,558
3,262 5,212
224,074 714,637
3,181 3,468

3,131 31,061
196,163 83,052
2,080 902
12,415 13,450
7,351 18,874,992
335,633 4,378,594
4,458 369,400
10,916 12,181
3,092,171 16,596
92,792 510
4,080,404 24,556,613
500,000,000] | 500,000,000 |
500,000,000 500,000,000
183,602,690 183,602,690
100,000 100,000
183,702,690 183,702,690
560,921,576 562,774,003
3,953,096 (1,852,428)
564,874,672 560,921,576
- | - |
564,874,672 560,921,576
(15,889,710) (18,647,578)
11,461,267 27,350,977
957,165,318 925,117,099
783,200,740 765,966,171
99,492,522 55,182,304
28,693,079 8,697,058
45,778,977 95,271,566
12,589,219 28,581,470
(28,581,470 (45,998,555)
(15,992,251) (17,417,085)
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15

16

17

18

19

B. Bad debts as per accounting base

Bad debts as per tax base

Temporary Difference

Deferred tax liabilities (B1)

Opening Deferred Tax (01.07.23)

Deferred Tax expenses During The Year (B2)

Long Term Loan-Net of current portion
Trust Bank Ltd.

Dutch-Bangla Bank Ltd.

Social Islami Bank Ltd.

Agrani Bank Ltd.

NCC Bank Ltd.

less: Long Term Loan-Current portion
Long Term loan-Net of current portion

Lease Liability
Hajj Finance Company Ltd.

Short Term Loan

Mercantile Bank Ltd.

Southeast Bank Ltd.

Janata Bank Ltd.

Modhumoti Bank Ltd.

Al-Arafah Islami Bank Ltd.

Shahjalal Islami bank ltd.

Islamic Finance & Investment Ltd.
Phoenix Finance & Investments Ltd.

Accrued And Other Current Liabilities.
Payable to suppliers

Liability for expenses

Provision for income tax

For other finance

Revenue
Gross Sales
VAT
Net Sales
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Amount in Taka
30-06-2024 ||  30-06-2023
4,101,643 4,101,643
(4,101,643) (4,101,643)
(1,127,952) (1,230,493)
(1,230,493) | | -]
102,541 (1,230,493)
469,952,087 457,464,506
1,070,547,151 996,749,700
79,280,432 77,362,107
1,054,541,656 1,054,441,656
115,547,775 103,914,342
2,789,869,101 2,689,932,311
[ 697,467,275 | | 672,483,078 |
2,092,401,826 2,017,449,233
[ 38,884,000 | | 37,600,000 |
38,884,000 37,600,000
340,500,000 320,830,157
1,007,756,499 933,745,642
592,610,481 579,379,595
172,032,824 164,664,795
50,321,111 27,187,076
241,963,491 229,600,199
31,200,754 30,000,679
92,778,010 85,258,213
2,529,163,170 2,370,666,357
13,856,450 4,844,731
6,380,713 13,616,934
204,552,677 202,141,221
4,454,114 4,454,114
229,243,954 225,057,000
397,689,347 229,363,048
51,872,524 29,916,919
345,816,823 199,446,129
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20

20.01

20.02

Cost Of Goods Sold
Raw materials consumed

Indirect materials
Total consumption
Add : Opening WIP

Less : Closing WIP

Factory overhead
Cost of production

Finished products (opening)
Finished products (closing)

Raw materials consumed.

Opening stock
Purchases

Closing stock

Factory overhead.
Salary and allowances
Telephone & Mobile
Fuel & QOil
Travelling & Conveyance
Entertainment
Office Expenses
Repairs & Maintenance
Electricity Expenses
Night allowance
Canteen Subsidy
Insurance Expenses
Gas bill
Carrying & Handling
Car Maintenance
Fees and Registration
Security Expenses
Chemicals
Screen Printing
Labour Charges
Laboratory Expenses
Generator Maintenance
Fire Extinguisher
Depreciation
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Amount in Taka

30-06-2024 ||  30-06-2023

140,236,200 154,022,785
1,063,583 2,226,320
141,299,783 156,249,105
461,013,265] | 361,160,758
602,313,048 517,409,863
447,693,521 ] | 461,013,265 |
154,619,527 56,396,598
102,081,047 69,366,770
256,700,574 125,763,368
150,254,679 167,925,050
406,955,253 293,688,418
158,692,593 | | 150,254,679 |
248,262,660 143,433,740
255,504,467 339,664,213
120,180,994 69,863,039
375,685,461 409,527,252
235,449,261 | | 255,504,467 |
140,236,200 154,022,785
26,785,517 18,582,535
296,298 211,250
625,078 228,068
70,846 104,491
1,480 25,471

- 9,940

59,605 28,645
33,331,117 17,751,078
379,650 236,550
1,739,490 930,488
629,440 62,946
4,606,172 1,368,241
388,308 65,730
84,719 52,930

117,037 -

2,877,600 1,004,300
20,200 58,165
18,236 11,136
120,601 47,526
69,660 55,474

- 15,540

24,350 23,000
29,835,643 28,493,266
102,081,047 69,366,770
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21

22

Administrative Expenses
Salary and allowances
Entertainment

TA and Conveyance

Car maintenance
Stationery

Fees and Registration
Electricity Expenses
Telephone/Mobile Bill
Office Rent

Bank Guarantee & Charge documents
Audit fees

Postage & Telegram
Directors Fees
Office maintenance
Maintenance

Depreciation

Selling And Distribution Expenses
Salary & Allowance
Fuel & Lubricant
Promotional Expenses
Delivery Expenses
Rent (Showrooms )
Conveyance
Entertainment
Stationery
Telephone
Fees & Registration
Maintenance
Car Maintenance
Electrical Expenses
Postage & Telegram
Papers & Periodicals
Bank Charges
Security Guard salary
Office Maintenance
Acid Purchases
Utility Bill ( WASA )
Gift & Donation
Chemical Expenses

Depreciation

aftab automobiles limited
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Amount in Taka

30-06-2024 ||  30-06-2023

8,503,603 9,440,152
46,232 77,100
98,705 77,217
27,060 5,930
59,320 4,233
64,868 9,954

14,284,764 :
177,030 169,535

918,000 .
- 9,458
146,440 115,000
22,162 4,710
100,000 88,000
78,546 20,065
- 4,500
663,014 633,184
25,189,834 10,659,037
12,532,045 8,640,152
235,680 88,509
1,436,000 32,166
953,680 319,705
2,261,084 1,085,600
26,565 31,843
154,599 49,889
24,975 7,889
99,482 53,782
203,303 30,712
40,527 25,390
180,652 129,283
455,687 110,112
7,763 12,610
6,582 6,714
361,432 20,045
1,374,602 475,200
59,798 34,906
56,898 33,450
186,110 -
3,650 2,994
- 12,062
2,652,057 2,532,735
23,313,171 13,735,748




23

24

25

26

Income tax expenses

Profit before Tax

Add: Accounting Depreciation

Less: Tax Depreciation

Adjusted Profit for tax calculation

Normal Tax liability

Minimum Tax liabilities @ 0.6% on Gross Receipt
Current Tax Liabilities (whichever is higher)

Net Asset Value Per Share (NAVPS)
This made up as follows:

Net Assets

Number of Ordinary Shares

Earning Per Share (EPS)

This made up as follows:

Profit/(Loss) Attributable to Ordinary Equityholders
Number of Ordinary Shares

Net Operating Cash Flows Per Shares (NOCFPS)
This made up as follows:

Net Cash Generated /(Used) by Operating Activities
Number of Ordinary Shares

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net profit/(loss) before interest & income tax during the year
Adjustment to reconcile net income to net
cash provided by operating Activities
Depreciation

Income tax expenses

Interest on lease liability

Changes in current assets and liabilities
Advance, deposits & prepayments

Trade Receivables

Inventories

Accrued and other liabilities

Net cash flow from operating activities
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SHAZZAD & CO.
Amount in Taka
30062024 ||  30-06-2023
(9,525,158) (18,877,354)
29,496,568 27,599,022
(44,310,218) (29,677,288)
(24,338,807) (20,955,620)
(6,693,172) (6,286,686)
2,411,456 | | 1,622,651 |
2,411,456 1,622,651
748,577,362 744,624,266
18,370,269 18,370,269
40.75 40.53
3,953,096 (1,852,427)
18,370,269 18,370,269
0.22 (0.10)
128,975,088 53,428,070
18,370,269 18,370,269
7.02 2.91
49,051,157 31,617,604
33,150,714 31,659,185
(377,450) (1,307,497)
- 10,555,714
14,746,160 (182,777,400)
4,220,000 70,995,775
24,937,035 95,227,305
3,247,469 (2,542,617)
128,975,088 53,428,070
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SHAZZAD & CO.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

27.00

28.00

29.00

30.00

31.00

32.00

33.00

34.00

Contingent Assets

There was no Contingenet Assets as on 30th June, 2024.

Contingent Liabilities

There was no Contingenet Liabilities as on 30th June, 2024.

Claim against the Company

There was no claim as on 30th June, 2024.

Amount in Taka

30-06-2024

30-06-2023

Securities of the Company owned by the top an ten salaried officers and all other officers as a group:
No securities owned by the top an ten salaried officers and all other officers as a group.

Amount due by Directors

There is no advance in the name of the directors or associates undertaking of the company.

Capital Expenditure Commitment

There was no commitment for capital expenditure and also not incurred or provided for the year ended 30th

June 2024.
Related Party Transactions

In accorance with paragraph 19 of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures, the following matters has been disclosed

in the following sequential order:

(i) Transactions with Key Management Personnel and their Compensation

(a) Loans to Director

During the year, no loan was given to the directors of Company
(b) Key Management Personnel and their Compensation

There is no compensation for Chairman, Director and Managing Director except Board Meeting fee but there
are following categories of compensation in accordance with the paragraph 17 of IAS 24: Related Party

Particulars

JUNE 30, 2024 Taka

JUNE 30, 2023 Taka

Salary

Gratuity

Board Meeting Attendance Fee

100,000

88,000

Short Term Employee Benefits

Total

100,000

88,000

Company's key management personnel includes the Company's directors. Compensation includes salary, non-

(ii) Other Related Party Transactions

During the period, the company carried out a number of transactions with related parties in the normal

Inter Company Receivables/Payables
The beak up of the above is as follows:

Name of Related Party

Nature of Transaction

Loan from Chairman

Interest free loan

Navana Limited

Interest free loan

Navana Real Estate Ltd.

Interest free loan

Aftab Automobiles Ltd.

Interest free loan

Subsequent Events-Disclosures under IAS-10 "Events After the Reporting Period".
There was no adjusting post statement of Financial Position events of such importance, non-disclosure of
which would affect the ability of the users of financial statements to make proper evaluation and decisions.
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AGM Link : https://agmbd.live/aftabautomobiles2024
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EX
aftab

aftab automobiles limited

125/A, Motijheel C/A, Dhaka-1000

Proxy Form

WV ettt e8RS E RS £ RS EEReEEReEEE et t of
........................................................................................................................................................................................................... being
a member of Aftab Automobiles Limited do hereby appoint ME/MIS. ..o seeess s sesssesssssseseens
OF ettt RS8R

as my/our proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 44th Annual General Meeting of the

Company to be held on Tuesday, 24 December, 2024 at 11:00 am under Digital Platform and at any adjournment

thereof.
Revenue Stamp
i Taka 20.00
Name of ShareNoIder ... NAME OF PIOXY covvvvveeveeeeeii ettt
NO. 0f Shares held. ... SIGNALUTE OF PIOXY ovvveerrrveeererrevieneeseseeise e
FOIO ND. oottt DAt s

B.0. A/C. No.

Signature of Shareholder ... CILE et

Signature Verified

Authorized signatory

Note :

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his/her
behalf. The Proxy Form, duly stamped must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company atleast 48 hours
before the meeting.

/
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O aftab automobiles limited

Registered Office : Islam Chamber
125/A, Motijheel C/A. Dhaka, Bangladesh.




